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athrford ternatona Ltc NYSE WET is

Swiss-based multinational oilfield service company

We are one of the largest global providers of innova

tive mechanical solutions technology and services

for the drilling and production sectors of the oil and

gas industry We operate in over 100 countries and

employ over 52000 people worldwide

We are committed to balancing good business

with sound socially responsible engagement This

commitment includes applying efficient resource

management methods and practicing sustainable

development in the communities where our

employees and clients operate and live

We also pursue the highest standards of

excellence in all of our business processes and

partnerships This includes complying with all

applicable laws and regulations in the areas where

we do business promoting safe work practices and

minimizing risk to our employees our communities

and the environment and implementing programs

training and internal controls necessary to achieve

our goals



Financial Highlights

In thousands except per share data 2009 2008 2007

Revenues 8826933 9600564 7832062

Operating Income 703855 1978549 1624336

Net Income from Continuing Operations

Attributable to Weatherford 253766 1406081 1091975

Diluted Earnings per Share from

Continuing Operations Attributable to Weatherford 0.35 2.01 1.57

Diluted Weighted Average Shares 723449 698178 695516

Balance Sheet Data

Total Assets 18866183 16476513 13190957

Total Debt 6716839 5820202 3840555

Shareholders Equity 9798704 8405299 7440046

Depreciation and Amortization 906697 731808 606226
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2009 was year of turbulence but also one in which we laid further foundations

for long-term shareholder value creation

We traditionally have one of the highest growth rates in the industry For exam

ple over the past six years we outperformed our peers in percentage growth of

revenue revenue per rig and EBITDA We intended 2009 to be no different

We set ambitious growth targets both top line and earnings to continue on the

same historical development path and we prepared for it with supply chain and

organizational commitments The abrupt decline in economic activity that began

in September 2008 had major impact on these plans

The collapse of the global economy plummeting commodity prices and

vertical drop-off in both activity and spend by our clients forced us to slam on

the brakes as fast and efficiently as we could We had to quickly transition out

of rapid-growth path one in which we had remained consistently ahead of the

growth curve by aggressively investmg in equipment and infrastructure

Results for fiscal year 2009 reflect the underlying difficulties of collapsed

market and our own rapid deceleration of our growth thrust North America in

particular had rough year with revenue down 38 percent and operating income

down 82 percent swift and significant decline in the active rig count including

unprecedented rock-bottom levels in Canada produced an extremely challenging

business environment for service companies We responded by methodically and

permanently lowering our cost structure We took more than $500 million in costs out of

our North American business and made our operations more efficient We also attempted

to improve focus by restructuring the former two regions Canada and the U.S into four

smaller distncts with dedicated management

In spite of what can be best described as depressed environment we also successfully

introduced several new technologies and services into the North American market

particularly in the growing applications of shale gas and deepwater These included

the debut of surface logging systems into deepwater Gulf of Mexico and new wireline

technologies used in unconventional plays such as the Haynesville Shale

The concurrent international prognosis was also strained but to much lesser degree

International revenues managed to rise by 18 percent but operating income fell

20 percent reflecting severe pricing pressures and costs associated with large

number of contract startup delays

Another issue needs to be highlighted which is at variance with our decisions for the

North American segment During the early days of the year and in spite of the apparent

upstream capital spending collapse we decided to protect and preserve the investments

we had made in the areas of international infrastructure personnel technology and

training This was going to strain our 2009 international results further and it did

While this decision has impacted short-term profitability these investments will leave

us well positioned as recovery occurs The barriers to entry for service work in many

international markets are very high protecting and enhancing our infrastructure and

organizational capabilities there are strategic to our long-term value

Bernard Duroc-Danner

Chairman President and

Chief Executive Officer



Internationally Mexico and the Former Soviet Union were the major contributors to

growth In Mexico despite the backdrop of difficult economic environment we

transformed ourselves from relatively unknown and minor contender into one of the

important providers of integrated services and project management This transformation

began when we were awarded three significant land-based integrated

contracts for Chicontepec large heavy-oil reservoir development project

east and southeast of Mexico City

In the space of less than six months we established and opened major

operating base at Poza Rica rapidly deploying an integrated service

package that included at its peak over 40 drilling rigs and wide scope

of drilling and oilfield services ranging from directional drilling fracturing

and cementing to drilling and completion engineering support This initial

investment ultimately helped us pursue and win additional work in Mexicos

other land and offshore reservoirs It also established our legitimacy as

proficient integrated project managers throughout Latin America

In the Former Soviet Union the July acquisition of TNK-BPs oilfield

service arm called OFS added 75 drilling rigs roughly 8.5 percent of

the total rigs in the region 150 workover units and well developed

cementation pressure pumping capability to our Russian region

It positioned us as one of the three largest independent oilfield service

providers in the Former Soviet Union The bases and support facilities

of TNK-BP are excellent and widespread and they fit well with our existing

technically advanced nascent infrastructure in Russia The TNK-BP

acquisition provides us with high-quality operating bases in critical

Russian regions plus 6000 trained skilled individuals working to modern

ISO 9000 certified standards

The combination of conveyance the rigs and infrastructure bases plus

the full spectrum of our products and services toolbox will be powerful

and pivotal to our future in the Russian market How we manage this in

the years ahead will matter to shareholder value Russia is large market

and will play an increasingly important role in the future development

of hydrocarbons

In other international regional markets we planted significant seeds for

growth in the Middle East North Africa and Asia that we hope will flourish in 2010

and beyond We kicked off our first integrated turnkey heavy-oil project in China

This project involves drilling and completing 165 wells with seven rigs on four man-made

islands in the Yuedong oil field in Bohai Bay We are supplying wide scope of services

ranging from project management and engineering design to completion and well testing

We are the first international energy service company to deliver integrated drilling and

completion services of this scale in the China market and it represents our largest

integrated project in Asia to date

We have started number of other integrated projects in Algeria Ethiopia Iraq and

Oman These projects range from providing rigs with fully integrated drilling and well

construction services in Algeria and Iraq to full-service integrated exploration project

in Ethiopia that includes everything from directional drilling to wellheads
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in international revenues and

international revenues per rig

mirror these trends



We continued our momentum in technology deployment We achieved several very

successful first deployments and set new world records in 2009 for broad range of

technologies ranging from rotary-steerable systems RSS to intelligent completion

In the eastern hemisphere for example we ran the worlds longest expandable reservoir

completion installation in Saudi Arabia In Brunei we set new record for the largest

number of optical pressure/temperature gauges installed in single well on single

optical cable In the North Sea we completed the worlds first complete Renaissance

system installation which enables the reclamation of failed subsurface safety valves

without rig intervention

In the western hemisphere our drilling services set new highest-temperature record for

tool pulsing at 399F 204C in the Gulf of Mexico In offshore California we success

fully ran world record-length liner using our 0verDrive casing running and drilling

system We also were the only company to successfully run RSS with an electromagnetic

hostile-environment logging system in an air-drilled underbalanced well

These milestones along with other successes were examples of good execution in

spite of difficult economic environment

Additionally we did not curtail our commitment to or our investment in technology

development whether organic RD or acquired We added differentiating sensing

capabilities to our highest-growth-area technology platforms RSS logging-while-

drilling LWD/measurement-while-drilling MWD systems managed pressure drilling

and drilling with casing These incremental improvements included developing new

RSS tools for high-pressure/high-temperature environments new LWD systems that

improve real-time data correlation and measurement quality and new openhole

wireline imaging tools to guarantee that geomechanical data are acquired regardless

of borehole conditions

We also continued evolving our technology portfolio in many of our traditional

drilling offerings such as the high-performance RipTide drilling reamer This

technology targets hole-enlargement-while-drilling operations in the worldwide

offshore and deepwater markets

We invested in acquisitions that are strategic to improving our

current product line offerings For example we acquired

Secure Drilling Systems in June 2009 completing our

pre-eminent position in managed pressure drilling Secure

Drilling brings patented revolutionary pressure drilling

tools and software to Weathertords existing systems and

expertise in the same field Managed pressure drilling

improves drilling efficiency enables drilling of high-pressure and

complex wells enhances safety and minimizes reservoir formation

damage As part of our new offering the system already has enabled clients to

drill to depths never reached previously enabled exploration wells to be drilled

where conventional drilling could not be done and finally mitigated drilling hazards

in formations that were notoriously difficult to drill

To add to our extensive line of pressure pumping cementing services and engineered

chemicals portfolio we acquired Integrity leading manufacturer of advanced drilling-

fluid products and oilfield specialty chemicals The addition of Integritys novel

Tech no/ogles such as

Weather forcFs SeaLance

subsea drilling-with-casing

system will enable applications

in the growing market of deep

water subsalt plays
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additives and full formulations for drilling workovers and stimuJation positions us as

single-source chemistry solution and service provider critical component that

further rounds out our integrated project management capabilities

Aaditionally we pursued joint technoiogy agreements with international and nationai

oil companies including the Joint Development Agreement we signed with Exxon

Mobil Corporation in March 2009 to develop and commercialize new sand control

technology called MazeFlo The impact of unwanted sand on well integrity and

production continues to be major challenge for our clients and this technology is

designed to mitigate sand production risk in broad range of applications We also

signed technology agreement with ENI to develop our subsea drilling-with-casing

DwC system This technology known as the SeaLance system will enable

casing seats to be pushed deeper into the wellbore enabling applications in deepwater

sub-salt plays

Beyond operational improvements within our regions and our product lines we

aunched three initiatives in 2009 that are important for our next phase of growth

as we mature into world-class multinational organization These three initiatives

included enhancing our ethics and compliance program transforming our global

supply chain and manufacturing organization and streamlining our operational

support functions

In the area of compliance we have been systematically improving the scope and

effectiveness of our corporate compliance program since 2008 These changes have

included reorganizing our compliance competency recruiting experienced compliance

professionals and establishing and implementing new policies and procedures that

make us better prepared to operate in todays heavily regulated diverse global markets

For us these improvements were not just legal obligation They make good business

sense by maximizing compliance efficiency and minimizing risk
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The bulk of deepwater CAPEX in the

next four years wi/I be Africa and

Latin America

The energy industry is expected to continue

to grow to 2030 with oil as one of its most

important constituent elements



The drive for additional efficiencies also is core to another initiative Late in the year

we started long-term effort to gradually restructure our global supply chain and

manufacturing We strive to increase the geographic diversity of our supply chain capabilities

lower our overall cost structure and improve our flexibility and agility in response to

market demand changes In so doing we will not compromise on quality or safety

The economic events of the past one-and-a-half years will continue to resonate in 2010

Energy demand is still reduced from the peaks of July 2008 when strong economic

growth coupled with relatively inelastic oil supply increased oil prices to as

high as $147 per barrel Prices escalated to the extent they did during that

time because non-OECD oil consumption growth outstripped spare oil production

capacity Oil production capacity was growing slowly in part because economically

and efficiently extracting hydrocarbons was becoming more difficult This is long-

term reality reflecting structural factors On average oil reservoirs are maturing in

their exploitation phase meaning they are in sense further along their production

life span Furthermore newly exploited reservoirs tend to be more remotely located

more difficult in geological structure and more unconventional for example heavy oil in

nature All of the above suggests slower and more laborious progression in oil production

Ultimately the pronounced and severe slowdown in world economic growth sharply

decreased both end-product consumption and in turn petroleum demand sustained

recovery in our industry will occur once oil and gas supply and demand rebalance

We are one derivative away from the oil and gas markets

There are initial signs that we are slowly headed in this direction While world oil

consumption was down in 2009 by about 1.7 million barrels per day from 2008

recent economic growth indicators in non-OECD countries where most of the increase in

world demand will come from is contributing already to the beginnings of rebound in

world oil consumption Should these demand trends be confirmed our industry will need

to restart number of mothballed projects to secure further hydrocarbon spare capacity

What does this mean for Weatherford

Broadly it means that most likely the industry is on the cusp of multi-year upturn

and 2010 will lay the groundwork We expect 2010 to be healthy recovery year

behaving almost as the perfect inverse of 2009 starting at modest levels while finish

ing the year strongly The ensuing period from 2011 through 2015 should see solid

incremental growth and corresponding financial harvesting for our shareholders

North America has already shown the way forward with healthy recovery in activity

late last year and into the first months of 2010

From this point forward international growth will lead the way

The bulk of our growth will be international and should remain materially above market

rates of activity improvements consistent with our historical record The broad global

infrastructure we have built our experience in executing integrated projects our strong

presence in nascent high-growth markets and young technologies with immature share

penetrating across markets will all contribute to Weatherfords growth

From deep hot

holes to extended

reach underbalanced

wells our Revolutiona

RSS is helping clients

develop reservoirs never

before accessible



For 2010 we believe the Eastern Hemisphere will provide the companys greatest

expansion with anticipated growth rates of 30 percent year-on-year significantly

weighted to the second half of 2010 All segments will contribute to this objective

but most likely the Middle East and Russia will be at the forefront

Latin America will be mixed After year of considerable growth in 2009 bucking the

general decline our revenues here will taper off with the completion of number of projects

in Mexico We will consolidate our position in the region continuing with existing projects in

Mexico and beginning new projects in other Latin American countries Brazil and Colombia

in particular will be sources of strength for Weatherford as we continue to develop our

position across all segments We expect Latin America to join the Eastern Hemisphere

on similar growth patterns in 2011 and thereafter

The prognosis for North America is healthy but is limited in scope and scale by the

remarkable elasticity of the gas supply curve The emergence of shale gas as an

economic and prolific source of gas has changed the dynamics of the North American

market in profound way Shale gas reservoirs provide long-term source of production

growth to fuel the U.S and Canadian economies Conventional sources of gas could

not do this As derivative result we view the North American market as less likely to

rise in oilfield activity to prior peak levels and conversely not to fall as low and as

long in down cycles In historically relative terms volatility will drop Of added note

we expect the recent quiet rise of the oil-related markets in the U.S as well as that of

the heavy-oil segment in Canada to persist suggesting new phase of expansion after

years of inertia

The Next Phase of Growth

Our next growth phase will come primarily from harvesting the scope depth and

breadth of what we built thrust of organic leveraging In particular we will

focus on making ourselves fully integrated service company

The extent of our success in scale and profitability will depend on four focal areas

Bring our product and service lines to full maturation in terms of breadth and

distribution Breadth has to do with extension of product lines to their natural limits

while distribution means complete seeding of our extensive infrastructure with the

full range of our portfolio

Extend the technological depth of our product and service lines Our commitment to

technology is unwavering whether organic through RD or acquisitive Technology is

one of two factors of productivity for our clients Productivity gains are ultimately what

will differentiate this company from its peers if we are successful in our objectives

Raise the quality and efficiency of product and service delivery This is an organizational

and cultural issue that will remain for years to come as one of our core objectives It cuts

through all facets of our companys operations Quality and efficiency in delivery comprise

the second critical factor of productivity

Lower our intensity of use of capital which is another way of expressing the drive for

greater efficacy in the use of capital

We are committed to making progress on all four fronts and we shall



In closing Weatherford remains at its roots growth company and one that has

transformed itself over the past 23 years from very humble beginnings to the extraordinary

company our shareholders have allowed its management to build Weatherford your

company is young and new in its size complexity and status We lack in maturity what

our peers mastered many years ago We will learn how to exploit and harvest what we

have assembled and will do so without diluting the energy drive and enthusiasm that

characterize young companies dedicated to the pursuit of growth

We do not write off 2009 as bad year It was by all measures an important year

in terms of the investments and inroads we made for the future We will continue this

evolution in 2010

Our purpose or as is expressed in my native language raison dŒtre is shareholder

wealth generation We are acutely aware of this and understand the responsibility and

trust inherent in being the custodian of your capital Ultimately shareholder value

generation is the only yardstick that matters within value system of strict respect

of ethics compassion and individual responsibility

We are deeply grateful to our clients without whose support nothing is possible

We will endeavor to do all in our power to be of value and earn their loyalty

heartfelt thank you also goes to all of our employees for their unwavering dedication

to Weatherford The employees make the company It is privilege to be given the

responsibility to lead this organization

You have Weatherfords commitment In 2010 we will collectively drive for our

shareholders the very best performance Weatherford is capable of while building

further the limits of your companys potential We will do so with our long-term

aspirations for Weatherford and its shareholders squarely and solely in mind

Respectfully

Bernard Duroc-Danner

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer
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AIgera

Three decades of continued expansion

Operating in Algeria for more than

30 years Weatherford has created an

extensive infrastructure to support the

countrys ongoing growth in the oil and

gas sector In these three decades we

have grown from 12 to more than 1200

employees the majority of whom are

Algerian supporting our local operations

from four facilities including our main

operational base in Hassi Messaoud

Our product portfolio also has management and integrated service

gradually expanded from only providing contracts These contracts range from

tubular running services and mechanical supplying rigs with fully integrated

cementing aids to full range of prod- drilling services to deploying the worlds

ucts and services that can help clients only successful integrated underbalanced

overcome an ever-evolving range of drilling/coiled tubing drilling project

reservoir challenges which include pictured above

maximizing production in mature fields

This broad range of capabilities has

helped us secure number of project
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Just as Chinas economy and demand Today we employ approximately By winning this contract Weatherford

for oil and gas have grown substantially 570 employees the majority of whom became the first international oilfielc

over the past quarter century so have are Chinese nationals at seven locations service company to deliver integratec

Weatherfords operations We first throughout the country We also have added drilling and completion services of this

established presence in China in 1985 range of products and services to better scale in the China market We are providing

with the opening of our Shekou Service serve domestic regional and multinational wide scope of services ranging from

Base located in Shenzhen Guangdong oil and gas companies in China These project management and engineering

Province Our initial product offering expanded capabilities and our infrastructure design to mud and wireline logging to

included fishing and re-entry services helped us win turnkey contract to drill completion and well testing

drilling tools and well construction and complete 165 wells on four man-made

services islands the first of which is shown in the

Ch na

The first to deliver large-scale integrated services

photo above in the Yuedong oil field



Productivty ProfHes

Cou ntres

raq

The largest multinational oilfield services provider

With the worlds second-largest proven oil

reserves Iraq will be significant growth

market due to the rebuilding and infra

structure upgrades that the country is

beginning to undertake

Operating in Iraq since 2005

Weatherford is best positioned to capitalize

on this potential We have more recent

experience in Iraq than any other

multinational oilfield services company

and we are the countrys largest multi-

national oilfield services provider We

have built an extensive infrastructure

that employs more than 500 permanent

employees predominantly nationals

and includes three major facilities in

Basra Erbil and Baghdad In 2010 we are

constructing fourth facility in Rumaila to

support client activity in the massive

Rumaila oil field in southern Iraq

This infrastructure has helped us

win and complete 12 projects in Iraq

ranging from 228-well multi-field

wireline and production logging campaign

to installing the first early production

facility pictured above Our current

integrated project work includes drilling

and completing 20 wells in the South

Rumaila field This project encompasses

11 different products and services

spanning from drilling rigs to wellhead

systems

14



The beginning of Weatherfords transition

in Mexico from minor to major market

player started with dilapidated orange

juice factory in Poza Rica In less than

six months we transformed it into

major modern operating base that

became the nucleus for supporting three

significant land-based integrated services

contracts for Chicontepec heavy-oil

exploitation project northeast of

Mexico City

Our work at Chicontepec distinguished

us as project provider throughout

Latin America The infrastructure we

established also paved the way for new

contracts in other areas and other appli

cations For instance we have won new

integrated project work in Villahermosa

as well as new formation evaluation

contracts

We also are increasing our presence

and share in the offshore Mexico market

due to the successful introduction of our

larger-diameter RSS In 2010 we will be

setting up center focused on RSS and

logging while drilling in Ciudad Carmen

to support these growing offshore

applications

Mexico

Integrated projects springboard growth
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New Technoges

Drilting Services

Delivering drilling efficiencies

in all well conditions

Market strengths in our full-service suite

of directional drilling LWD MWD and

RSS systems are legacy-tree equipment

designs coupled with RD expertise

dating back to the earliest days of

LWD/MWD and RSS technology develop

ment The end result is reliable systems

even in the harshest well environments

and most challenging well trajectories

as demonstrated by our multiple record-

breaking wells

In 2009 we continued evolving these

technologies especially for extreme envi

ronments Advances to our Revolution

RSS technology raise the temperature

bar with some of the industrys hottest

operating capabilities while our new

ShockWave sonic tool provides robust

reliable LWD sonic data for key real-time

applications

We also are combining these systems

with other Weatherford products and

services such as running LWD and RSS

services with our Controlled Pressure

Drilling technology which improves

drilling economics and completion in

unconventional gas reservoirs In deep

water we mitigate drilling hazards by

integrating drilling services with MPD

This enhances drilling efficiency and

ultimately field development economics

We also are combining LWD with our

surface logging systems to be more

productive at the well site and provide

integrated formation evaluation



In 2009 we assumed 100 percent

ownership of Secure Drilling the latest

addition to our suite of differentiated

well construction technologies that are

applied to design better wells reduce

well costs and mitigate drilling hazards

These hazards relate to wellbore pres

sures and hole instability and add

12 percent to drilling time As fields

mature drilling hazards increase

Conventional methods to address

them are time consuming costly and

largely ineffective

Our drilling hazard mitigation service

integrates solid expandable systems to

minimize well telescoping and the associ

ated risk of not reaching the target

reservoir with large enough production

string DwCIdri ling-with-l iner DwL sys

tems that enable the casing or liner to be

drilled run set and cemented all in one

trip and MPD that precisely controls the

wellbore pressure profile by drilling with

closed and pressurizable fluid system

The Secure Drilling control system

shown here now integrates our industry-

accepted MPD closed-loop equipmenL

and techniques with sophisticated

proprietary data acquisition and control

technology This is the only system

capable of precise downhole pressure

control based on continuous microflux

measurement of inflow/outflow to/from

the formation and enables drilling

hazard mitigation decisions to be made

in real time

DriHing Hazard Mitigation

Applying differentiated technologies to drill previously undrillable wells
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New Technologies

Wire line

Integrated formation evaluation to

reduce reservoir uncertainty

Acquiring log data from todays wellbores

is becoming more challenging Increasingly

wellbores have problematic hole condi

tions that impede conveyance of logging

tools or are in geographically remote

locations where operational logistics

are difficult

Weatherfords market differentiator

for these issues is the Compact suite

of openhole logging tools which are

shorter lighter and easier to handle than

conventional logging technologies They

can be conveyed to the reservoir by

number of methods other than wireline

including drillpipe and coiled tubing

This
flexibility

of conveyance makes

them well suited for todays remote and

highly deviated wells in deepwater off

shore land and unconventional plays

In 2009 we introduced the Compact

Dipole Sonic the latest addition to

the Compact portfolio This technology

guarantees that geomechanical data

are acquired regardless of borehole

conditions In 2010 we will continue

to integrate wireline services with

other formation evaluation capabilities

including surface logging LWD geochem

istry microseismic core analysis and

geomechanics This integration of

datasets when coupled with interpretive

expertise reduces reservoir uncertainty

and enables more informed field

development decisions





Product and Servce Portfoflo

Drilfing

construction

Cementing products

Cementing plugs

Deepwater systems

Float stage equipment

Mechanical cementing products

Software

Surge reduction systems

Torque drag reduction

Cementing services

Drilling fluids

Mud cult inga disposal

Drilling tools

Psrtormance ddlling tools

Pressure-control equipment

Tubulara handling tools

Inflatable packers

Accessory equipmsnt

Annulus casing packers

Injection production packers

Semice equipment

Straddles

Liner nystema

Expandable liner hangers

Liner accessories

Liner cementing systems

Liner hangers

Liner packers

Liner tie-back equipment

Running tools accessories

Surface equipment

Mechanized rig ayntems

All-in-one technology

Control systems

Iron roughnecko drillpipe longs

Pipe-handling equipment

Poaitioning systems

Powertongo

Rig equipment packages

Sweliable products

Microannulus swellable centralizers

Swellable packers

Tubular running services

Bucking systems

Casing running drilling systems

Handling tools

Monitoring testing equipment

Pick-up lay-down machines

Tongs

Aluminum alloy

Contract

drilling rigs

Heavy-duty

Light-duty

Medium-duty

Drilling
hazard

mitigation

Drilling-with-caaing DwC systems

Secure Drilling aervicen

Air drilling

Dvwnhole tools

Fluid systems

Managed pressure drilling

Pressure-control equipment

Underbalanced drilling

Solid expandable aystema

Internal casing patch

Openhole cased-hole systems

Slotted lobular expandables

MWD

Directional aumey gamma ray

Drilling pertormance

Magnetic ranging

Mud pulse
EM telemetry

Rotary-steerable systems

HPHTRSS

Motorized RSS

Paint-the-bit RSS

Vertical
drilling systems

Integrated laboratory

services

Coalbed methane

Cure photography

Core storage

CT scanning

Enhaaced oil recovery

Fluid phase behavior PVT

Formation damage evaluation

Fractare atsdiea

Surface logging

systeJ

Data management

Integrated
data

systems

Real time operations

Drilling optimization

Electronic drilling
recorders

Geopressure consulting services

H2S detection

Hole-stability monitoring

Kick detection

Underbalanced
drilling

Vibration detection

Formation evaluation

Advanced formation gas analysis

Formation cuttings analysis

Genscisnce consulting services

Source rock analysis

Welisite geochemical analysis

Geomechanj

Conuslting

Software

Training

Openhole
completions

Meltizone completion aystems

Swellable packers

Wireline services

Cased-hole

Casing inspection

Cement evaluation

Formation evaluation

Intervention

Perforating

Production logging

Propellant stimolaftnn

Micreaeismic services

Openhule

Acouofics

Formation testing

Imaging

Nuclear magnetic resonance

Pvrvoity/lithnlngy

Reviotivity

Subsurface evaluation services

Cased-hole

completions

Dewahole control valves

Flow control

Cniled tubing

Premium flow control

Roller systems

Slickline-set retrievable bridge plug

Standard flow control

Surface pressure-control equipment

Tubing-hanger plugs

Wireline

Hydraulic flow control

Packer systems

Accessories

Bridge plugs

Cement retainers

Circulating sleeves

Downhsls valves

Permanent packers

Retrievable packers

Setting toxIn

Swellable packers

Safety eyntsma

Self-piloting injection valves

Surface-conlrolled subsurface

safety valves

-i Sand_controij

Conventional well screen

Metal mesh

Prepack

Thrs-tubing

Wire wrap

Expandable sand central

ECV enpandable completion liner

ESS enpandable sand screen

Gravel pack

lnflnw control

FloReg device

Reservoir iaolatien

Expandable zvnal iovlat ion

Swellable packers

Specialty screen

Intelligent

Multifuncfivn

ation eetion

LWD

Acoustics

Azimuthal resiativity

Formation testing

Imaging

Spectral gamma ray

Standard triple combo

Geochemistry

Oil reaervair characterization

Petregraphic analysis

Reservnir flow atudiea

Rock mechanics

Routine core analysis

Sedimentelogy

Shale rack propertiea

Sorption properties

Source richness maturity

Special cure analyaia

Weilaite atabilization tranaport

1Jiiling servic

Directiunal performance drilling

Adjustable gauge
stabilizers

Coiled-tubing-drilling BHAs

Directional ssmeyixg survey management

Steerable
drilling

motors

Well planning engineering

Jng fl
production services

Drillstem teat toxin

Early production facilities

Life-of-field production

facilitiea

Tubing-cunveyed

perferating syatema

Well tenting systems

systemJ

Accessorien

Adapteru

Casingitubing hangers

Caaingflubing heads

Frac equipment

Gate valves actuatora chokea

Primaryliaolutien rings

Rental service tools

Secendarylannulus bushings

Tees crosses

Tree caps

Elastomer productj

Drillpipe protectors

Drillpipe wipers

Guides

Breakout

Stabbing

Stand protectore

Thread protectors

Tubular racking syatuma
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ction nj
Intervention

Casing exits

Accessories

QuickCut

Shallow-angle

Standard

Whipstocks

Hinge-type

Openhole

PackWhipe

WhipBacke

Casing exits

Fishing/milling

Fishing interventions

Motor-assisted

interventions

Packers

In-tubing completion

interventions

In-tubing remedial

interventions

Sand-control intervenlions

Thm-tubing completion

interventions

Thm-tubing remedial

interventions

Artificial-lift systems

Capillary technologies

CORODC continuous rod

F/uuhby services

Electric submersible

pumping systems

Acceseodes

Cables

Downhole monitoring

Intakes
gas separatom

Motors

Pumps

Switchboards

Vsdable-frvquency drives

Gas lift

Communication isolation devices

Injection systems

Kickover tools

Latches

Mandrels

Pack-off equipment

Specialty systems

Subsurface safety valves

Surface controls

Valves

Hydraulic lift

Jet-lit systems

Multiphase pumps

Piston-lit systems

Subsurface
hydraulic pumps

Surface systems

Plonger lift

Accessodes

Bumper sphnge

Controllers

Lubricalors

Optimization equipment

Plungem

Prime movers

Combustion engines

Electric generation packages

Electric motors

Progressing cavity pumping

Accessodes

Controllers

Downhole
pumps

Optimizahon equipment

Surface drives

Surface equipment

Reciprocating rod lift

Subsurface rod
pumps

Sucker rods

Sucker rods

API grade

API ponyrods

Couplings

High-slrength

Quenched tempered

Sucker-rod connections

16600

Ultrahigh-strength

Surface pumping anita

Conventional

Long-stroke

Low-profile

NEtrogen-over-hydreulic

Optimizat ion equipment

MillThru

OneTrip StarBurst

Selective re-entry system

StarE urst

Pump fluid systems sPecaltJ

Horizontal multiplex pumps
Nitrogee services

Mud pumps Cryogenic nitrogen

Ellis-Williams Memb ave mtrsgen

Iron Man series

Pipeline construction

Parts and service

Pipeline services

Multiphase boaster
pumps

Abandonment

Progressing cavity pumps Composite-sleeve repairs

Inspection

Triplex pumps
Leak detection

Pigging

Precommiseioning

commissioning

Subsea precommissioning

Pressure pumping
commissioning

services
Umbilical tesbng

Acidizing chemical stimulation

Process services

Chemical cleaning

Cement pumping Controlled bolting

Inlegrated process services

Coiled-tubing technology
Leek testing

CT completions
Oil flushing

CT drilling

Rental solutions

CT intervention

CT nitrogen Speciulty drying services

CT production Sirocco air drying

Data acquisition

Hydraulic fracturing

Sand-control pumping

rSurface production

Production equipment

optimization

Early production facilities

Artificial lift

Mechanical production
Controllers

treaters

Downhole pressure

temperature sensors Natural-gas line heaters

Variable-speed drives

Well surveillance

Sand removal

management systems
analysis software

Control systems

Control panels

Pilots

Safety shutdown systems

Safety-system field instmmenls

Workover control systems

Flow measurement iital
Custom measurement uslutions products

Multiphase wafer-cut meter

Real-time well feet log systems Johnson Screens

Water-cut meters Architecture constmction

Wet-gas modular Field services

multiphase meters Gene xl industry

Mineral aggregate

Reservoir monitoring
Polyurethane casting

Flowmefers

Refining pelrochemical

Pressure/temperature gauges
Water process

In-well seismic sensor systems
Water wells

Temperature measurement systems

Software

Artificial-lit analysis

Asset management

Flow assurance

Production engineedng

Real-time msnitohng

Well design and diagnostics

Subsea production

Communication controllers

Control
systems

Topside information control syslemu

Chemical services

Acidizing additives

Acid gel/ing agents

Anti-sludge agents

Corrssion innibitors infensifivm

Fdcfion reducers

H2S
contrul

Iron cant rol/sequestvdng agents

Mutual so/vests

Retardera emulaifers

Surtactants

Cementing additives

Defoamers

Dispersants

Extvndere lightweight additives

Fluid-loss additivesgas migration

Retarders

Spacerslost circulation

Drilling completion additives

Air foam surfactants

Biocides

Completion-fluid inhibitors

Corrosion inhibitors

Detosmeru

Drilling-mud detergents

Drilling polymers/shale conlroi

Emulsifiers

Flocculants

Friction reducers

H2S scavengers

Oxygen scavengers

Packer inhibitors

pH buffers

Scale inhibitors

Shale cost rvl

Spoffing
fluids

drilling
lubhcants

Viscosifers

Wsfer conformance

Well flush clesnout

Wetting agents

Engineered Chemistiyv services

Analytical testing

Capillary coiled-lubing testing

Cement analysis

Customized chemicals

Drilling fluids testing

Format ion characteristic snaiysis

Formation fluid analysis

Pipeline chemical development

Prvducfion chemical development

Fracturing additives

Breakers for wafer gels

Clay-control additives

Cross-linkers fur water gels

Fluid-loss/diverting agents

Foaming agent s/surtact ants

Friction reducers

Hydrscarbvn gelling agents

activators breakers

Specialty add/lives

Wafer gelling agents

Pipeline compression chemicals

Cleaners

Coolants glycols

Corrosion inhibitors

Paraffin products scavengers

Specialty chemicals

Abandosment services

_Jibore clea

services ___J

Chemicals

Hydraulic systems

Mechanical tools

Casing jacks

Fishing jars

Bumper subs

Fishing jam

Intensifiers

Fishing tools

Back-off tools

Bushings

Casing scrapem

Cuffera

External catch

Impression blocks

Infernal catch

Joints

Junk beskets

Magnets

Mills

Pulling tools

Stabilizers

Subs

Swivels

Undenreumem

Washover equipment

Wireline stripping

Heavy-duty

wireline fishing

Well repair

Casing alignment

Casing rollem

Casing swages

External patch

Internal patch

Production chemical intermediates

Hooks

Heavy-duty rvd husks

Tubing hooks blocks

Hydraulic power
units

Rud-handling

accessories

Depthometers

Rod-hook clevia

Rod swivel

Sucker-rod wrenches

Tongs

Backup

Cixeed-head tubing

Master-tubing

Open-head tubiny

Sucker-rod

Production chemicals

Corrosivn intribifors

Emulsion breakeru

H2S scsvengers

Paraffin treating

Scale inhibitors

Specialty treating compounds
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PART

Item Business

Weatherford International Ltd NYSEWFT is one of the worlds leading providers of equipment and

services used in the drilling evaluation completion production and intervention of oil and natural gas wells Many

of our businesses including those of our predecessor companies have been operating for more than 50 years

We were originally incorporated in Delaware in 1972 and moved our incorporation to Bermuda in 2002 In

February 2009 we completed share exchange transaction in which Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda

exempted company Weatherford Bermuda became wholly-owned subsidiary of Weatherford International

Ltd Swiss joint stock corporation Weatherford Switzerland for purposes of changing the Companys place of

incorporation from Bermuda to Switzerland collectively the Transaction Pursuant to the Transaction each

common share par value U.S $1.00 per share of Weatherford Bermuda was exchanged for one registered share par

value 1.16 Swiss francs CHF per share of Weatherford Switzerland

When referring to Weatherford and using phrases such as we and us our intent is to refer to Weatherford

International Ltd and its subsidiaries as whole or on regional basis depending on the context in which the

statements are made

We operate in over 100 countries which are located in nearly all of the oil and natural gas producing regions in

the world Our operational performance is segmented and reviewed on geographic basis and we report the

following regions as reporting segments North America Latin America Europe/West Africa/the Former

Soviet Union FSU and Middle East/North Africa/Asia

Our headquarters are located at 4-6 Rue Jean-Francois Bartholoni 1204 Geneva Switzerland and our

telephone number at that location is 41.22.816.1500 Our Internet address is www.weatherford.com General

information about us including our Corporate Governance Policies and charters for the committees of our board of

directors can be found on our Web site On our Web site we make available free of charge our annual reports on

Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or

furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we

electronically file or furnish them to the SEC The public may read and copy any materials we have filed with the

SEC at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street NE Room 1580 Washington DC 20549 Information on

the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 The SEC

maintains an Internet site that contains our reports proxy and information statements and our other SEC filings

The address of that site is www.sec.gov

The following is summary of our business strategies and the markets we serve We have also included

description of our products and services offered and our competitors Segment financial information appears in

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Note 19

Strategy

Our primary objective is to provide our shareholders with above-average returns on their investment through

income growth

Principal components of our strategy
include

Continuously improving the efficiency productivity and quality of our products and services and their

respective delivery in order to grow revenues and operating margins in all of our geographic markets at rate

exceeding underlying market activity

Through commitment to innovation and invention developing and commercializing new products and

services capable of meeting evolving needs of our customers and

Further extending our global infrastructure in
scope

and scale at level consistent with meeting customer

demand for our products and services in an efficient manner

AR-i



Markets

We are leading provider of equipment and services to the oil and natural gas exploration and production

industry Demand for our industrys services and products depends upon the number of oil and natural gas wells

being drilled the depth and drilling conditions of wells the number of well completions and the level of workover

activity worldwide

As result of the maturity of the worlds oil and natural gas reservoirs accelerating production decline rates

and the focus on complex deepwater prospects technology has become increasingly critical to the marketplace

Clients continue to seek test and prove production-enabling technologies at an increasing rate Technology is an

important aspect of our products and services as it helps us provide our clients with more efficient tools to find and

produce oil and natural gas We have invested substantial amount of our time and resources in building our

technology offerings We believe our products and services enable our clients to reduce their costs of drilling and

production and/or increase production rates Furthermore these offerings afford us additional opportunities to sell

our traditional core products and services to our clients

Product Offerings

Our product offerings can be grouped into ten service lines artificial lift systems drilling services

well construction drilling tools completion systems wireline and evaluation services re-entry and

fishing stimulation and chemicals integrated drilling and 10 pipeline and specialty services The following

discussion provides an overview of our various product offerings With the exception of integrated drilling our

service line offerings are provided in all of our regional segments Our integrated drilling service line is offered only

outside of North America

Artificial Lift Systems

Artificial lift systems are installed in oil wells and to lesser extent natural
gas

wells that do not have

sufficient reservoir
pressure to raise the produced hydrocarbon to the surface These systems supplement the natural

reservoir pressures to produce oil or natural
gas

from the well There are six principal types of artificial lift

technologies used in the industry With the exception of our electrical submersible pumps business which we sold

to an equity investment partner in January 2008 we are able to provide all forms of lift including progressing cavity

pumps reciprocating rod lift systems gas
lift systems hydraulic lift systems plunger lift systems and hybrid lift

systems We also offer wellhead systems and production optimization

Progressing Cavity Pumps progressing cavity pump PCP is downhole pump driven by an above-

ground electric motor system connected to it by coupled rod or continuous rod string PCPs are particularly useful

in heavy-oil-producing basins around the world

Reciprocating Rod LfI Systems reciprocating rod lift system is an artificial lift pumping system that uses

an above-ground mechanical unit connected to sucker rod and downhole pump It uses an up-and-down suction

process to lift the oil from the reservoir

Gas Lift Systems Gas lift is form of artificial lift that uses natural gas to lift oil in producing reservoir to

the surface The process of gas lift involves the injection of natural gas into the well through an above-ground

injection system and series of downhole mandrels and gas lift valves in the production tubing string The injected

gas acts as the lifting agent for the oil Gas lift systems are used primarily for offshore wells including deepwater

and ultra-deepwater and for wells that have high component of gas
in the produced fluid or have gas supply near

the well

Hydraulic Lift Systems hydraulic lift oil pumping system uses an above-ground surface power unit to

operate downhole hydraulic pump jet or piston to lift oil from the reservoir Hydraulic pumps are well suited for

wells with high volumes and low solids

Plunger Lift Systems Plunger lift is the only artificial lift method that requires no assistance from outside

energy sources The typical system consists of plunger or piston top and bottom bumper springs lubricator and

surface controller As the plunger travels to the surface it creates solid interface between the lifted
gas

below and
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produced fluid above to maximize lift energy Plunger lift is low-cost easily maintained method of lift It is

particularly useful for dewatering gas
wells and increasing production from wells with emulsion problems

Hybrid Lft Systems We offer variety of hybrid artificial lift systems which are engineered for special

applications and may incorporate two or more of the artificial lift methods described above

Wellhead Systems We offer line of conventional wellhead equipment and valves manufactured to the latest

API industry specifications and client requirements including conventional surface wellheads through 20000 psi

gate valves from 2000 to 20000 psi complete welihead systems drill-through multi-bowl unitized and mud-

line and all the accessories and aftermarket services to go with them

Production Optimization Production optimization is the process of monitoring oil and natural gas fields

and interpreting the resulting data to inform production and reservoir management decisions The ultimate goal is to

assist operators in making better decisions that maximize profits through improved optimized well production and

maximized reservoir recovery The major benefits of production optimization are increased production with

decreased operating costs resulting in increased bottom-line profits for producers

Weatherford offers products for optimizing at the well reservoir and field level Both hardware and software

are combined into solutions that fit the customers specific needs for optimizing production

Well Optimization For wellsite intelligence we offer specific controllers for each type of artificial lift

These controllers contain computers with specific logic to control the well in response to changes in the reservoir

artificial-lift equipment or well completion The desktop software provides advanced analytical tools that allow the

operator to make changes by controlling the well directly or by changing the parameters that the controller is using

to operate the well In 2007 we enhanced our plunger lift controller and added new variable speed drive for

progressing cavity pumps PCP rod pumping and electric submersible pumps ESP

Flow Measurement Our Production Optimization group develops metering and software solutions to supply

real-time production information to the operator allowing accurate production measurements as part of individual

well and field optimization

Field Optimization We provide tools for optimizing workflow These software tools assist the operator in

tracking the operations needed for optimal field management Tasks such as chemical injection well workovers and

allocation of injection gas can easily generate unnecessary expenses by inefficient prioritization of tasks poor

recordkeeping and lack of analysis of the effectiveness of the total field operations The combination of our

experienced consultants and advanced software tools help the operator optimize operations for entire fields

Heavy-oil Production Optimization Equipment We provide mechanical production treators and sand

management systems to improve heavy-oil flow to and separation in sit-storage tanks Sands removed from the

storage tanks can be used as environmentally friendly field-road base material without any special treatment or

processing

Drilling Services

These capabilities include directional drilling Controlled Pressure Drilling CPD Well Testing drilling-

with-casing DwCTM and drilling-with-liner DwLTM systems and surface logging systems

Directional drilling involves the personnel equipment and engineering required to actively control the

direction of wellbore and its eventual optimal position in the target reservoir Directional drilling allows drilling of

multiple wells from single offshore platform or land-based pad site It also allows drilling of horizontal wells and

penetration of multiple reservoir pay zones from single weilbore We supply range of specialized patented

equipment for directional drilling and real-time wellbore logging including

Measurement while drilling MWD and logging while drilling LWD MWD and LWD measure

respectively wellbore trajectory and formation properties in real time while the well is being drilled

to enable it to be steered into its optimum position

Rotary steerable systems RSS These systems allow control of wellbore trajectory while drilling at the

surface with continuous rotation of the drillstring at the surface RSS technology is crucial for enabling long
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step-out directional wells and for reducing completion-running complications resulting from abrupt small-

scale hole-angle changes caused by conventional drilling methods

Directional drilling services These services include surveying design and operational support for

directional and horizontal drilling and performance drilling in vertical wells products include drilling

motors and other associated equipment software and expertise required to deliver the well on target as

efficiently as possible

Our directional drilling capabilities are supported by our engineering facilities in Houston and other locations

globally which house and support qualified engineers scientists and technicians all focused on developing

technologies for the MWDILWD and directional drilling markets both land based and offshore

Controlled Pressure Drilling CPD Weatherfords CPD offerings are provided through three tech

niques Managed Pressure Drilling Underbalanced Drilling and Air Drilling

Managed Pressure Drilling MPD This technique provides an advanced form of primary well control

using closed pressurized fluid system that more precisely controls the wellbore pressure profile than mud

weight adjustments alone The main objective of MPD is to optimize drilling processes by decreasing non

productive time and mitigating drilling hazards

Underbalanced Drilling UBD This technique is used in development exploration and mature field

applications to minimize formation damage and maximize productivity UBD is drilling with bottomhole

pressure that is maintained below reservoir pressure to intentionally invite fluid influx This technique

permits the reservoir to flow while drilling takes place thereby improving well productivity by protecting

the formation from damage by the drilling fluids

Air Drilling This technique applies reduced density fluid systems to drill sub-hydrostatically Air drilling

is used primarily in hard rock applications to reduce drilling costs by increasing the rate of penetration

full range of downhole equipment such as high temperature motors wireline steering tools drillpipe air

rotary hammer drills casing exit systems downhole deployment valves and downhole data acquisition equipment

make our product offerings unique

Well Testing Well testing uses specialized equipment and procedures to obtain essential information about

oil and gas wells after the drilling process has been completed Typical information derived may include reservoir

performance reservoir pressure formation permeability formation porosity and formation fluid composition

related application is our separation business which supplies personnel and equipment on wellsite to

recover mixture of solids liquids and gases from oil and gas wells These services are used during drilling after

stimulation or after re-completion to clean up wells The operator requires that well be properly cleaned before

undertaking well test to ensure that the true deliverability of the well is attained and that debris and spent

stimulation chemicals do not ultimately flow to the process plant

Drilling-with-casing and drilling-with-liner systems These systems allow operators to simultaneously drill

and case oil and natural gas wells Our DwC and DwL techniques eliminate downhole complexity reducing

expensive rig modifications and the number of trips downhole Consequently drilling hazards are mitigated well

construction is simplified and productivity can be improved when drilling through the reservoir

Surface Logging Systems Often referred to as mud logging this is well-site service that uses fluid and gas

samples along with drilling cuttings to evaluate the geology and geo chemistry of the formation as it is being drilled

The derived data and interpretation is used to help geologists and drillers ensure that the well is placed in the most

productive formation to maximize ultimate well productivity

Well Construction

This grouping includes the primary services and products required to construct well and spans tubular

running services cementation tools liner systems solid tubular expandable technologies and aluminum alloy

tubular products
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Tubular Running Services These services consist of wide variety of tubular connection and installation

services for the drilling completion and workover of an oil or natural gas well We provide tubular handling

preparation inspection and wellsite installation services from single source We offer suite of products and

services for improving rig floor operations by reducing personnel exposure increasing operational efficiency and

improving safety We also specialize in critical-service installations where operating conditions such as downhole

environments and/or metallurgical characteristics call for specific handling technology

Cementation Tools Cementing operations comprise one of the most expensive phases of well completion

We produce specialized equipment that allows operators to centralize the casing throughout the wellbore and

control the displacement of cement and other fluids Our cementing engineers also analyze complex wells and

provide recommendations to help optimize cementing results

Liner Systems Liner hangers allow suspension of strings of casing within weilbore without the need to

extend the casing to the surface Most directional wells include one or more liners to optimize casing programs We

offer both drilling and production liner hangers Drilling liners are used to isolate areas within the well during

drilling operations Production liners are used in the producing area of the well to support the wellbore and to isolate

various sections of the well

Solid Tubular Expandable Technologies Proprietary expandable tools are being developed for downhole

solid tubular applications in well remediation well completion and well construction Our solid tubular expandable

products include the MetalSkin line and the HydraSkinTM System MetalSkin systems are used for well cladding to

shut off zones retro-fit corroded sections of casing and strengthen existing casing MetalSkin open-hole clad

systems are used for controlling drilling hazards such as unwanted fluid loss or influx and as slim-bore drilling

liners Slim-bore and ultimately monobore liner systems are designed to allow significant cost reductions by

reducing consumables for drilling and completion of wells allowing use of smaller rigs and reducing cuttings

removal needs The benefits are derived because of the potential of expandable technologies to significantly reduce

or eliminate the reverse-telescoping architecture inherent in traditional well construction The HydraSkin system is

hydraulic bottom-up expansion system that can be used for increased diameter efficiency in either planned or

contingency operations

Aluminum Alloy Tubular Products We design and manufacture aluminum alloy AA tubular goods for

drilling production and completion Unique physical and mechanical properties of aluminum alloys provide

number of benefits especially superior corrosion resistance in various aggressive environments and enhanced

strength-to-weight ratio resulting in better drilling performance Products range from Aluminum Alloy Drill Pipe

which is used in most drilling applications but especially recommended for ultra deep and extended reach wells and

rigs with limited load capacity to drillpipe risers designed for drilling production and completion operations These

large diameter products possess high strength and significant corrosion resistance properties essential in aggressive

environments such as deepwater wells

Drilling Tools

We design and manufacture patented tools including our drilling jars rotating control devices and other

pressure-control equipment used in drilling oil and natural gas wells We also offer broad selection of in-house or

third-party manufactured equipment for the drilling completion and workover of oil and natural
gas

wells We offer

these proprietary and nonproprietary drilling tools to our clients primarily operators and drilling contractors

on rental basis allowing the clients to use unique equipment to improve drilling efficiency without the cost of

holding that equipment in inventory

Our drilling tools include the following

Drillpipe and related drillstem tools drill collars heavyweight pipe and drilling jars

Downhole tools

Pressure-control equipment such as blowout preventers high-pressure valves accumulators adapters and

choke-and-kill manifolds and

Tubular handling equipment such as elevators spiders slips tongs and kelly spinners
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Completion Systems

We offer our clients comprehensive line of completion tools and sand screens These products and services

include the following

Completion Tools These tools are incorporated into the tubing string used to transport hydrocarbons from

the reservoir to the surface We offer wide range of devices for enhancing the safety and functionality of the

production string including permanent and retrievable packer systems subsurface safety systems flow control

systems and tool strings specialized downhole isolation valves and associated servicing equipment Over the past

decade we have evolved our portfolio from one of basic cased-hole commodity products to one that focuses more

heavily on premium offerings for deepwater and high-pressure/high-temperature environments

Sand Screens Sand production often results in premature failure of artificial-lift and other downhole and

surface equipment and can obstruct the flow of oil and natural gas To remedy this issue we provide two different

sand screen approaches conventional and expandable

Conventional sand screens These products are used in the fluid-solid separation processes and have

variety of product applications Our primary application of well screens is for the control of sand in

unconsolidated formations We offer premium pre-pack and wire-wrap sand screens We also offer

FloReg line of inflow control devices that balance horizontal wellbore production ultimately maximizing

reservoir drainage We also operate the water well and industrial screen business of Johnson Screens Served

markets include water well petrochemical wastewater treatment and surface water intake mining and

general industrial applications

Expandable Sand Screens ESS Our ESS systems are proprietary step-change sand-control devices that

reduce cost and improve production An ESS system consists of three layers including slotted base pipe

filtration screens and an outer protective shroud The system can be expanded using fixed cone and/or

compliantly using our proprietary axial and rotary expansion system This system aids productivity because

it stabilizes the wellbore prevents sand migration and has larger inner diameter ESS technology can

replace complex gravel-packing techniques in many sand-control situations

Reservoir Optimization Our intelligent completion technology ICT uses downhole optical and electronic

sensing to allow operators to remotely monitor the downhole pressure temperature flow rate phase fraction and

seismic activity of each well and the surrounding reservoir This advanced monitoring capability allows the operator

to monitor the reaction of the reservoir to the production of the well Combining this monitoring with multiple-zone

downhole flow control allows field pressure management and shutoff of unwanted flows of water or gas

Wireline and Evaluation Services

Wireline and evaluation services in concert with surface logging systems and LWD form data acquisition

and interpretation capability that enables clients with an integrated approach to formation evaluation and reservoir

characterization Open-hole wireline services and logging while drilling compliment laboratory-derived analysis of

core and reservoir fluid samples When combined with geosciences consulting this integrated capability provides

the data and interpretation to reduce reservoir uncertainty and ultimately optimize production and maximize

recovery

Wireline services Wireline services measure the physical properties of underground formations to help

determine the location and potential deliverability of oil and gas from reservoir Wireline services are provided

from surface logging units which lower tools and sensors into the weilbore mainly on single or multiple conductor

wireline

The provision of wireline and associated interpretation services is divided into four categories open hole

wireline geoscience services cased hole wireline and slickline services

Open Hole Wireline This service helps locate oil and gas by measuring certain characteristics of

geological formations and providing permanent records called logs Open hole logging can be performed

at different intervals during the well drilling process or immediately after well is drilled The logging data

provides valuable benchmark to which future well management decisions may be referenced The open
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hole sensors are used to determine well lithology and the presence of hydrocarbons Formation charac

teristics such as resistivity density and porosity are measured using electrical nuclear acoustic magnetic

and mechanical technologies

The formation characteristics are then used to characterize the reservoir and describe it in terms of porosity

permeability oil gas or water content and an estimation of productivity Wireline services can relay this

information from the welisite on real-time basis via secure satellite transmission network and secure

Internet connection to the clients office for faster evaluation and decision making

Geoscience Services This capability consisting of geologists geophysicists and drilling completion

production and reservoir engineers serves as the interpretive bridge across diverse data sources to support

client efforts to maximize their oil and gas assets for the life of the well from well planning through

drilling evaluation completion production intervention and finally abandonment

Major computing centers in Calgary and Houston along with branches in Europe the Middle East Latin

America and Asia Pacific use the latest technology to deliver data to our clients from real-time LWD
geosteering for critical well placement decisions to ongoing reservoir monitoring with permanent

intelligent completion sensors We provide advanced reservoir solutions by incorporating open hole

cased hole and production data

Cased Hole Wireline This service is performed at various times throughout the life of the well and

includes perforating completion logging production logging and casing integrity services Perforating

creates the flow path between the reservoir and the weilbore Production logging can be performed

throughout the life of the well to measure temperature fluid type flow rate pressure and other reservoir

characteristics In addition cased hole services may involve weilbore diagnostics and remediation which

could include the positioning and installation of various plugs and packers to maintain production or repair

well problems and casing inspection for internal or external abnormalities in the casing string

Slickline Services This service uses solid steel or braided nonconductor line in place of single or

multiple conductor braided line used in electric logging to run downhole memory tools manipulate

downhole production devices and provide fishing services primarily in producing wells

Integrated Evaluation Services These services help clients plan the development of new and existing oil

and gas production fields Specifically global network of laboratories provide support in terms of fluid and

reservoir characterization specialized core and fluid testing enhanced oil recovery rock strength and character

ization sour richness and maturity sorption properties assessment and reservoir flow studies

Re-entry and Fishing

Our re-entry fishing and thru-tubing services help clients repair wells that have mechanical problems or that

need work to prolong production of oil and natural gas reserves

Re-entry Services Our re-entry services include casing exit services and advanced multilateral systems

Conventional and advanced casing exit systems allow sidetrack and lateral drilling solutions for clients who either

cannot proceed down the original well track or want to drill lateral wells from the main or parent welibore

Fishing Services Fishing services are provided through teams of experienced fishing tool supervisors and

comprehensive line of fishing and milling tools Our teams provide conventional fishing services such as removing

weilbore obstructions including stuck or dropped equipment tools driuistring components and other debris that

have been lost downhole unintentionally during the drilling completion or workover of new and old wells

Specialty fishing tools required in these activities include fishing jars milling tools casing cutters overshots and

spears Our Fishing Services business unit also provides well patches and extensive plug-and-abandonment

products

Thru-tubing Services Thru-tubing services are used in well re-entry activity to allow operators to perform

complex drilling completion and cementing activities from existing welibores without removing existing pro

duction systems We provide full range of thru-tubing services and products including drilling motors casing

exits fishing and milling zonal isolation packers and other well remediation services
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Stimulation and Chemicals

We offer our clients advanced chemical technology and services for safer and more effective production

enhancement These products and services include the following

Fracturing Technologies Hydraulic reservoir fracturing is stimulation method routinely performed on oil

and natural gas wells in low-permeability reservoirs to increase productivity and oil and gas recovery Our offerings

include the latest in equipment design and technology

Coiled Tubing Technologies Our services include line of equipment designed with the latest technology to

ensure effective results during operations that require coiled tubing intervention Offerings include coiled tubing

units appropriate crane trucks and nitrogen tanks and pumpers trailer or skid formats

Cement Services Includes CHEMVIEW and CHEMPRO software to analyze each job to ensure the best

application for each situation Our new fleet of cement pumping equipment includes high-horsepower pump
trailers batch mixers two-pod blended cement trailers and four-pod sand storage trailer all with the latest in

technology and design features for improved operation and performance

Chemical Systems Our Engineered Chemistry business combines proprietary chemical solutions with

internally developed oilfield equipment technologies Our high-performance chemistry solutions include cus

tomized chemical solutions for drilling completion production intervention refining water treatment as well as

many industrial processes total service package product selection application and optimization and precise

formulations and multi-functional chemical formulations that include the only formulas certified for capillary

injection

Drilling Fluids Our drilling fluids service line is engaged in the provision of drilling fluids completion

fluids and other related services The main functions of drilling fluids include providing hydrostatic pressure to

prevent formation fluids from entering into the well bore keeping the drill bit cool and clean during drilling

carrying out drill cuttings and suspending the drill cuttings while drilling is paused and the drilling assembly is

brought in and out of the hole We also provide waste management services which separate and manage drill

cuttings produced by the drilling process Drill cuttings are usually contaminated with petroleum or drilling fluids

and must be disposed of in an environmentally safe manner

Integrated Drilling

We have the ability to offer project management services to our clients in which we provide number of

products and services needed to drill and complete well including the rig All of our land drilling rigs are located

outside of North America

Pipeline and Specialty Services

We provide range of services used throughout the life cycle of pipelines and process facilities onshore and

offshore Our pipeline group can meet all the requirements of the pipeline process industrial and energy markets

worldwide We also can provide any service or package of services carried out on permanently installed client

equipment that involves inspecting cleaning drying testing improving production running or establishing

integrity from the wellhead out

Other Business Data

Competition

We provide our products and services worldwide and compete in variety of distinct segments with number

of competitors Our principal competitors include Baker Hughes BJ Services Halliburton Schlumberger and

Smith Intemational We also compete with various other regional suppliers that provide limited range of

equipment and services tailored for local markets Competition is based on number of factors including

performance safety quality reliability service price response time and in some cases breadth of products
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Raw Materials

We purchase wide variety of raw materials as well as parts and components made by other manufacturers and

suppliers for use in our manufacturing Many of the products sold by us are manufactured by other parties We are

not dependent on any single source of supply for any of our raw materials or purchased components

Customers

Our principal customers consist of major and independent oil and natural gas producing companies Revenue

from Petroleos Mexicanos Pemex accounted for approximately 13% of our revenues during 2009 and no other

individual customer accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated revenues During 2008 and 2007 there was

no individual customer who accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated revenues

Research and Development and Patents

We maintain world-class technology and training centers throughout the world Our 34 research development

and engineering facilities are focused on improving existing products and services and developing new technologies

to meet customer demands for improved drilling performance and enhanced reservoir productivity Our expen

ditures for research and development totaled $195 million in 2009 $193 million in 2008 and $169 million in 2007

As many areas of our business rely on patents and proprietary technology we seek patent protection both

inside and outside the U.S for products and methods that appear to have commercial significance In the U.S we

currently have 1229 patents issued and over 463 pending We have 2470 patents
issued in international

jurisdictions and over 1255 pending We amortize patents over the years expected to be benefited ranging from

three to 20 years

Although in the aggregate our patents are important to the manufacturing and marketing of many of our

products and services we do not believe that the loss of any one of our patents
would have material adverse effect

on our business

Seasonality

Weather and natural phenomena can temporarily affect level of demand for our products and services Spring

months in Canada and winter months in the North Sea and Russia tend to affect operations negatively In the

summers of 2005 and 2008 the Gulf of Mexico suffered an unusually high number of hurricanes that adversely

impacted our operations In addition unfavorable weather conditions in Mexico could reduce our operations and

revenues from that area The widespread geographical locations of our operations serve to mitigate the impact of the

seasonal nature of our business

Federal Regulation and Environmental Matters

Our operations are subject to federal state and local laws and regulations relating to the energy industry in

general and the environment in particular

Our 2009 expenditures to comply with environmental laws and regulations were not material and we currently

do not expect the cost of compliance with environmental laws and regulations for 2010 to be material

Employees

At December 31 2009 we employed approximately 52000 employees Certain of our operations are subject

to union contracts These contracts cover approximately two percent of our employees We believe that our

relationship with our employees is generally satisfactory

Forward-Looking Statements

This report as well as other filings made by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC and

our releases issued to the public contain various statements relating to future results including certain projections

and business trends We believe these statements constitute Forward-Looking Statements as defined in the Private
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Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These forward-looking statements generally are identified by the words

believe project expect anticipate estimate intend strategy plan may should will
would will be will continue will likely result and similarexpressions although not all forward-looking

statements contain these identifying words

From time to time we update the various factors we consider in making our forward-looking statements and

the assumptions we use in those statements However we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any

forward-looking events or circumstances that may arise after the date of this report The following sets forth the

various assumptions we use in our forward-looking statements as well as risks and uncertainties relating to those

statements Certain of the risks and uncertainties may cause actual results to be materially different from projected

results contained in forward-looking statements in this report and in our other disclosures These risks and

uncertainties include but are not limited to the following

Global political economic and market conditions could affect projected results Our operating results and

the forward-looking information we provide are based on our current assumptions about oil and natural gas

supply and demand oil and natural gas prices rig count and other market trends Our assumptions on these

matters are in turn based on currently available information which is subject to change The oil and natural

gas industry is extremely volatile and subject to change based on political and economic factors outside our

control Worldwide drilling activity as measured by average
worldwide rig counts increased in each year

from 2002 to 2008 However activity began declining in the fourth quarter of 2008 particularly in North

America The weakened global economic climate has resulted in lower demand and lower prices for oil and

natural gas which has reduced drilling and production activity which has in turn resulted in lower than

expected revenues and income in 2009 and may affect our future revenues and income Our projections

assume that the decline in North America rig activity reached its trough during 2009 However we are not

certain as to the timing of the recovery in activity We cannot accurately predict how much lower commodity

prices and drilling activity may go or when they may recover Worldwide drilling activity and global

demand for oil and natural gas may also be affected by changes in governmental policies and debt loads laws

and regulations related to environmental or energy security matters including those addressing alternative

energy sources and the risks of global climate change We have assumed global demand will continue to be

down in 2010 compared to 2008 and only slightly up compared to 2009 In 2010 worldwide demand may be

significantly weaker than we have assumed

We may be unable to recognize our expected revenues from current and future contracts Our customers

many of whom are national oil companies often have significant bargaining leverage over us and may elect

to cancel or revoke contracts not renew contracts modify the
scope

of contracts or delay contracts in some

cases preventing us from realizing expected revenues and/or profits Our projections assume that our

customers will honor the contracts we have been awarded and that those contracts and the business that we

believe is otherwise substantially firm will result in anticipated revenues in the periods for which they are

scheduled

Currencyfluctuations could have material adverse financial impact on our business material change

in currency rates in our markets including the devaluation of the Venezuelan Bolivar See Item 7A
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk could affect our future results as well as affect

the carrying values of our assets World currencies have been subject to much volatility As we are not able to

predict changes in currency valuations our forward-looking statements assume no material impact from

future changes in
currency exchange rates

Our ability to manage our workforce could affect our projected results In climate of decreasing demand

we are faced with managing our workforce levels to control costs without impairing our ability to provide

service to our customers Our forward-looking statements assume we will be able to do so

Increases in the prices and availability of our raw materials could affect our results of operations We use

large amounts of raw materials for manufacturing our products The price of these raw materials has

significant impact on our cost of producing products for sale or producing fixed assets used in our business

We have assumed that the prices of our raw materials will remain within manageable range and will be

readily available If we are unable to obtain necessary raw materials or if we are unable to minimize the
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impact of increased raw material costs or to realize the benefit of cost decreases in timely fashion through

our supply chain initiatives or pricing our margins and results of operations could be adversely affected

Our ability to manage our supply chain could affect our projected results We have undertaken efforts to

improve our supply chain invoicing and collection processes and procedures These undertakings include

costs which we expect will result in long-term benefits of our business processes Our forward-looking

statements assume we will realize the benefits of these efforts

Our long-term growth depends upon technological innovation and commercialization Our ability to

deliver our long-term growth strategy depends in part on the commercialization of new technology central

aspect of our growth strategy is to improve our products and services through innovation to obtain

technologically advanced products through internal research and development and/or acquisitions to protect

proprietary technology from unauthorized use and to expand the markets for new technology by leveraging

our worldwide infrastructure The key to our success will be our ability to commercialize the technology that

we have acquired and demonstrate the enhanced value our technology brings to our customers operations

Our major technological advances include but are not limited to those related to controlled pressure drilling

and testing systems expandable solid tubulars expandable sand screens and intelligent well completion

Our forward-looking statements have assumed successful commercialization of and above-average growth

from these new products and services as well as legal protection of our intellectual property rights

Nonrealization of expected benefits from our redomestication could affect our projected results We

operate through our various subsidiaries in numerous countries throughout the world including the United

States During the first quarter of 2009 we completed transaction in which our former parent Bermuda

company became wholly-owned subsidiary of Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint-stock

corporation and holders of common shares of the Bermuda company received one registered share of

the Swiss company in exchange for each common share that they held Consequently we are or may become

subject to changes in tax laws treaties or regulations or the interpretation or enforcement thereof in the U.S

Bermuda Switzerland or any other jurisdictions in which we or any of our subsidiaries operates or is

resident Our income tax expense is based upon our interpretation of the tax laws in effect in various

countries at the time that the expense was incurred If the U.S Internal Revenue Service or other taxing

authorities do not agree with our assessment of the effects of such laws treaties and regulations this could

have material adverse effect on us including the imposition of higher effective tax rate on our worldwide

earnings or reclassification of the tax impact of our significant corporate restructuring transactions

Nonrealization of expected benefits from our acquisitions could affect our projected results We expect to

gain certain business financial and strategic advantages as result of business acquisitions we undertake

including synergies and operating efficiencies Our forward-looking statements assume that we will

successfully integrate our business acquisitions and realize the benefits of those acquisitions

The downturn in our industry could affect the carrying value of our goodwill As of December 31 2009

we had approximately $4.2 billion of goodwill Our estimates of the value of our goodwill could be reduced

in the future as result of various factors including market factors some of which are beyond our control

Our forward-looking statements do not assume any future goodwill impairment Any reduction in the fair

value of our businesses may result in an impairment charge and therefore adversely affect our results

Adverse weather conditions in certain regions could adversely affect our operations In the summers of 2005

and 2008 the Gulf of Mexico suffered several significant hurricanes These hurricanes and associated hurricane

threats reduced the number of days on which we and our customers could operate
which resulted in lower

revenues than we otherwise would have achieved In parts of 2006 and particularly in the second quarters of

2007 and 2008 climatic conditions in Canada were not as favorable to drilling as we anticipated which limited

our potential results in that region Similarly unfavorable weather in Russia Mexico and in the North Sea could

reduce our operations and revenues from that area during the relevant period Our forward-looking statements

assume weather patterns in our primary areas of operations will be conducive to our operations

U.S Government and internal investigations could affect our results of operations We are currently

involved in government and internal investigations involving various of our operations These investigations
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are not yet resolved and we cannot anticipate the timing outcome or possible impact of the ultimate

resolution of these investigations financial or otherwise The governmental agencies involved in these

investigations have broad range of civil and criminal penalties they may seek to impose against

corporations and individuals for violations of trading sanctions laws the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act

and other federal statutes including but not limited to injunctive relief disgorgement fines penalties and

modifications to business practices and compliance programs In recent years these agencies and authorities

have entered into agreements with and obtained range
of penalties against several public corporations and

individuals in similar investigations under which civil and criminal penalties were imposed including in

some cases fines and other penalties and sanctions in the tens and hundreds of millions of dollars These

agencies likely will seek to impose penalties of some amount against us for past conduct but the ultimate

amount of any penalties we may pay currently cannot be reasonably estimated Under trade sanctions laws

the U.S Department of Justice may also seek to impose modifications to business practices including

immediate cessation of all business activities in specific countries or other limitations that decrease our

business and modifications to compliance programs which may increase compliance costs Any injunctive

relief disgorgement fines penalties sanctions or imposed modifications to business practices resulting

from these investigations could adversely affect our results of operations Additionally during 2008 we

incurred $56 million for costs in connection with our exit from certain sanctioned countries and to date we

have incurred $106 million for legal and professional fees in connection with complying with and

conducting these on-going investigations This amount excludes the costs we have incurred to augment

and improve our compliance function in 2008 and 2009 We may have additional charges related to these

matters in future periods which costs may include labor claims contractual claims penalties assessed by

customers and costs fines taxes and penalties assessed by the local governments but we cannot quantify

those charges or be certain of the timing of them

Failure in the frture to ensure ongoing compliance with certain laws could affect our results of operations In

2009 we substantially augmented our compliance infrastructure with increased staff and more rigorous

policies procedures and training of our employees regarding compliance with applicable anti-corruption laws

trade sanctions laws and import/export laws As part of this effort we now undertake audits of our compliance

performance in various countries Our forward-looking statements assume that our compliance efforts will be

successful and that we will comply with our internal policies and applicable laws regarding these issues Our

failure to do so could result in additional enforcement action in the future

Political disturbances war or terrorist attacks and changes in global trade policies could adversely impact

our operations We operate in over 100 countries and as such are at risk of various types of political

activities including acts of insurrections war terrorism nationalization of assets and changes in trade

policies We have assumed there will be no material political disturbances or terrorist attacks and there will

be no material changes in global trade policies that affect our business Any further military action

undertaken by the U.S or other countries or political disturbances in the countries in which we conduct

business could adversely affect our results of operations

Current turmoil in the credit markets may reduce our access to capital or reduce the availability offinancial

risk-mitigation tools The worldwide credit markets have experienced turmoil and uncertainty since mid-

2008 Our forward-looking statements assume that the financial institutions that have committed to extend

us credit will honor their commitments under our credit facilities If one or more of those institutions

becomes unwilling or unable to honor its commitments our access to liquidity could be impaired and our

cost of capital to fund growth could further increase We use interest-rate and foreign-exchange swap

transactions with financial institutions to mitigate certain interest-rate and foreign-exchange risks associated

with our capital structure and our business Our forward-looking statements assume that those tools will

continue to be available to us However the failure of any counter party to honor swap agreement could

reduce the availability of these financial risk-mitigation tools or could result in the loss of expected financial

benefits In
response to credit market conditions and the global economic and business environment we have

undertaken measures to reduce our use of capital going forward Our forward-looking statements assume

that we will operate with lower capital expenditures in 2010 than in 2009 However as the business climate
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changes and if attractive opportunities for organic or acquisitive growth become available we may spend

capital selectively above the amounts we have budgeted

Finally our future results will depend upon various other risks and uncertainties including but not limited to

those detailed in our other filings with the SEC For additional information regarding risks and uncertainties see our

other filings with the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and the Securities Act of 1933

as amended available free of charge at the SECs website at www.sec.gov

Item 1A Risk Factors

An investment in our common shares involves various risks When considering an investment in our company

you should consider carefully all of the risk factors described below the matters discussed on the foregoing pages

under Business-Forward-Looking Statements as well as other information included and incorporated by

reference in this report

We have significant operations that would be adversely impacted in the event of war political disruption

civil disturbance economic and legal sanctions or changes in global trade policies

Like most multinational oilfield service companies we have operations in certain international areas

including parts of the Middle East Africa Latin America the Asia Pacific region and the FSU that are subject

to risks of war political disruption civil disturbance economic and legal sanctions such as restrictions against

countries that the U.S government may deem to sponsor terrorism and changes in global trade policies Our

operations may be restricted or prohibited in any country in which the foregoing risks occur

In particular the occurrence of any of these risks could result in the following events which in turn could

materially and adversely impact our results of operations

disruption of oil and natural gas exploration and production activities

restriction of the movement and exchange of funds

our inability to collect receivables

enactment of additional or stricter U.S government or international sanctions and

limitation of our access to markets for periods of time

We are involved in several governmental and internal investigations which are costly to conduct have

resulted in loss of revenue and may result in substantial financial penalties

We are currently involved in government and internal investigations involving various areas of our operations

Until 2003 we participated in the United Nations oil-for-food program governing sales of goods and services

into Iraq The U.S Department of Justice DOJ and the SEC have undertaken investigations of our participation

in the oil-for-food program and have subpoenaed certain documents in connection with these investigations We

have cooperated fully with these investigations We have retained legal counsel reporting to our audit committee to

investigate this matter These investigations are not yet resolved and we cannot anticipate the timing outcome or

possible impact of the ultimate resolution of the investigations financial or otherwise

The U.S Department of Commerce Bureau of Industry Security Office of Foreign Assets Control

OFAC DOJ and SEC have undertaken investigations of allegations of improper sales of products and services

by the Company and its subsidiaries in certain sanctioned countries We have cooperated fully with this inves

tigation We have retained legal counsel reporting to our audit committee to investigate these matters and to

cooperate fully with these agencies This investigation is not yet resolved and we cannot anticipate the timing

outcome or possible impact of the ultimate resolution of the investigation financial or otherwise

In light of this investigation and of the current U.S and foreign policy environment and the inherent

uncertainties surrounding these countries we decided in September 2007 to direct our foreign subsidiaries to

discontinue doing business in countries that are subject to comprehensive U.S economic and trade sanctions
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specifically Cuba Iran and Sudan as well as Syria Effective September 2007 we ceased entering into any new

contracts in these countries and began an orderly discontinuation and winding down of our existing business in these

sanctioned countries Effective March 31 2008 we substantially completed our winding down of business in these

countries We can complete the withdrawal process only pursuant to licenses issued by OFAC Our remaining

activities in Iran Sudan and Syria include ongoing withdrawal activities such as attempts to collect accounts

receivable attempts to settle tax liabilities or legal claims and attempts to recover or liquidate assets including

equipment and funds Certain of our subsidiaries continue to conduct business in countries such as Myanmar that

are subject to more limited U.S trading sanctions

The DOJ and SEC are investigating the embezzlement of approximately $175000 at European subsidiary

and the possible improper use of these funds including possible payments to government officials in Europe during

the period from 2000 to 2004 and our compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act FCPA and other laws

worldwide We have retained legal counsel reporting to our audit committee to investigate these matters and to

cooperate fully with the DOJ and SEC As part of our investigations we have uncovered potential violations of

U.S law in connection with activities in West Africa These investigations are not yet resolved and we cannot

anticipate the timing outcome or possible impact of the ultimate resolution of the investigations financial or

otherwise

The DOJ SEC and other agencies and authorities have broad range of civil and criminal penalties they may
seek to impose against corporations and individuals for violations of trade sanctions laws the FCPA and other

federal statutes including but not limited to injunctive relief disgorgement fines penalties and modifications to

business practices and compliance programs In recent years these agencies and authorities have entered into

agreements with and obtained range of penalties against several public corporations and individuals in similar

investigations under which civil and criminal penalties were imposed including in some cases fines and other

penalties and sanctions in the tens and hundreds of millions of dollars These agencies are seeking to impose

penalties against us for past conduct but the ultimate amount of any penalties we may pay currently cannot be

reasonably estimated Under trade sanctions laws the DOJ may also seek to impose modifications to business

practices including immediate cessation of all business activities in specific countries or other limitations that

decrease our business and modifications to compliance programs which may increase compliance costs Any

injunctive relief disgorgement fines penalties sanctions or imposed modifications to business practices resulting

from these investigations could adversely affect our results of operations In addition our activities in sanctioned

countries such as Sudan and Iran could result in certain investors such as government sponsored pension funds

divesting or not investing in our registered shares Based on available information we cannot predict what if any

actions the DOJ SEC or other authorities will take in our situation or the effect any such actions will have on our

consolidated financial position or results of operations To the extent we have violated trade sanctions laws the

FCPA or other laws or regulations fines and other penalties may be imposed Because these matters are now

pending before the indicated agencies there can be no assurance that actual fines or penalties if any will not have

material adverse affect on our business financial condition liquidity or results of operations

During 2009 and 2008 we incurred $45 million and $47 million respectively in connection with these on

going investigations In addition we incurred $56 million for costs incurred in connection with our exit from certain

sanctioned countries during 2008

Our significant operations in foreign countries expose us to currency fluctuation risks or devaluation

portion of our net assets are located outside the U.S and are carried on our books in local currencies

Changes in those currencies in relation to the U.S dollar result in translation adjustments which are reflected as

accumulated other comprehensive income in the shareholders equity section in our Consolidated Balance Sheets

We recognize remeasurement and transactional gains and losses on currencies in our Consolidated Statements of

Income which may adversely impact our results of operations We enter into foreign currency forward contracts

and other derivative instruments as an effort to reduce our exposure to currency fluctuations however there can be

no assurance that these hedging activities will be effective in reducing or eliminating foreign currency risks

In certain foreign countries component of our cost structure is denominated in different currency than our

revenues In those cases currency fluctuations could adversely impact our operating margins
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Uninsured claims and litigation could adversely impact our results

In the ordinary course of business we become the subject of various claims and litigation We maintain

insurance to cover many of our potential losses and we are subject to various self-retentions and deductibles with

respect to our insurance Although we are subject to various ongoing items of litigation we do not believe any of our

current items of litigation are likely to result in any material uninsured losses to us However it is possible an

unexpected judgment could be rendered against us in cases in which we could be uninsured and beyond the amounts

we currently have reserved or anticipate incurring and in some cases those losses could be material

We currently carry variety of insurance for our operations We are partially self-insured for certain claims in

amounts we believe to be customary and reasonable Although we believe we maintain insurance coverage adequate

for the risks of our business our insurance may not be sufficient to cover any particular loss or our insurance may

not cover all losses For example while we maintain product liability insurance this type of insurance is limited in

coverage and it is possible an adverse claim could arise in excess of our coverage Finally insurance rates have in the

past been subject to wide fluctuation and in the current global economic environment could increase significantly

in the near future Changes in coverage insurance markets and our industry may result in further increases in our

cost and higher deductibles and retentions

We are also subject to various federal state and local laws and regulations relating to the energy industry in

general and the environment in particular Environmental laws have in recent years become more stringent and have

generally sought to impose greater liability on larger number of potentially responsible parties While we are not

currently aware of any situation involving an environmental claim that would be likely to have material adverse

effect on our business it is always possible that an environmental claim with respect to one or more of our current

businesses or business or property that one of our predecessors owned or used could arise and could involve

material expenditures

Customer credit risks could result in losses

The concentration of our customers in the energy industry may impact our overall exposure to credit risk as

customers may be similarly affected by prolonged changes in economic and industry conditions Those countries

that rely heavily upon income from hydrocarbon exports will be hit particularly hard given the drop in oil prices

Further laws in some jurisdictions in which we operate could make collection difficult or time consuming We

perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers and do not generally require collateral in support of our trade

receivables While we maintain reserves for potential credit losses we cannot assure such reserves will be sufficient

to meet write-offs of uncollectible receivables or that our losses from such receivables will be consistent with our

expectations

Any capital financing that may be necessary to fund growth may not be available to us at economic

rates

Turmoil in the credit markets and the potential impact on liquidity of major financial institutions may have an

adverse effect on our ability to fund growth opportunities through borrowings under either existing or newly

created instruments in the public or private markets on terms we believe to be reasonable

terrorist attack could have material and adverse effect on our business

We operate in many dangerous countries such as Iraq in which acts of terrorism or political violence are

substantial and frequent risk Such acts could result in kidnappings or the loss of life of our employees or

contractors loss of equipment which may or may not be insurable in all cases or cessation of business in an

affected area We cannot be certain that our security efforts will in all cases be sufficient to deter or prevent acts of

political violence or terrorist strikes against us or our customers operations

Changes in tax laws could adversely impact our results

On June 26 2002 the stockholders and Board of Directors of Weatherford International Inc Weatherford

Delaware approved our corporate reorganization and Weatherford International Ltd Weatherford-Bermuda
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newly formed Bermuda company became the parent holding company of Weatherford International Inc During

the first quarter of 2009 we completed transaction in which Weatherford Bermuda company became wholly-

owned subsidiary of Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint-stock company Weatherford-Switzerland

and holders of our common shares received one registered share of Weatherford Switzerland for each common

share of Weatherford Bermuda that they held We refer to this transaction as the redomestication The realization

of the tax benefit of this reorganization could be impacted by changes in tax laws tax treaties or tax regulations or

the interpretation or enforcement thereof or differing interpretation or enforcement of applicable law by the

U.S Internal Revenue Service or other taxing jurisdictions The inability to realize this benefit could have material

impact on our financial statements

The anticipated benefits of moving our principal executive offices to Switzerland may not be realized

and difficulties in connection with moving our principal executive offices could have an adverse effect

on us

In connection with the redomestication we relocated our principal executive offices from Houston Texas to

Geneva Switzerland Most of our executive officers including our Chief Executive Officer and other key decision

makers have relocated or will relocate to Switzerland We may face significant challenges in relocating our

executive offices to different country including difficulties in retaining and attracting officers key personnel and

other employees and challenges in maintaining our executive offices in country different from the country where

other employees including corporate support staff are located Employees may be uncertain about their future roles

within our organization as result of the redomestication Management may also be required to devote substantial

time to the redomestication and related matters which could otherwise be devoted to focusing on ongoing business

operations and other initiatives and opportunities In addition we may not realize the benefits we anticipate from the

redomestication including the benefit of moving to location that is more centrally located within our area of

worldwide operations Any such difficulties could have an adverse effect on our business results of operations or

financial condition

The rights of our shareholders are governed by Swiss law and documents following the

redomestication

Following the redomestication the rights of our shareholders are governed by Swiss law and Weatherford

Switzerlands articles of association and organizational regulations The rights of shareholders under Swiss law

differ from the rights of shareholders of companies incorporated in other jurisdictions For example directors of

Weatherford-Switzerland may be removed by shareholders with or without cause but such removal requires the

vote of shareholders holding at least 66%% of the voting rights and the absolute majority of the par value of the

registered shares represented at the meeting as well as quorum of at least two-thirds of the registered shares

recorded in the share register

We intend to hold future shareholder meetings in Switzerland and our required quorum for those

meetings is lower

We intend to hold future shareholders meetings in Switzerland which may make attendance in
person more

difficult for some investors For shareholders meetings for Weatherford-Switzerland for the transaction of
any

business other than removal of director or certain other specified resolutions quorum comprises at least one

third of the registered shares recorded in the share register and entitled to vote and at least two-thirds of the

registered shares recorded in the share register and entitled to vote for the removal of directors and certain other

specified resolutions

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None
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Item Properties

Our operations are conducted in approximately 100 countries and we have manufacturing facilities and sales

service and distribution locations throughout the world The following table describes our material facilities as of

December 31 2009

Owned Research and development

Owned Sand screens

Owned Cementing products

Owned Water well and industrial screens

Owned Reciprocating rod lift

Owned Drilling equipment fishing wireline controlled

pressure drilling and testing services

Owned Fishing drilling equipment

Owned Cementation mfg plant well construction

services

Leased Wireline

Leased Casing exit cementation equipment systems

directional drilling fishing managed pressure

drilling

ReynosaTamaulipas Mexico Leased Service center

Europe/West AfricaIFSU

Aberdeen Scotland

Langenhagen Germany

Nizhnevartovsk Russia2

Nyagan Russia

Middle East/North Africa/Asia

Awjila Libya

Deyang China

Dongyin Shangdong China

Hassi Messaoud Algeria

Corporate

Geneva Switzerland

Houston Texas

Item Legal Proceedings

Expandable slotted tubulars

Manufacturing

Drilling sidetracking wireline fishing well

workover and tool rental

Owned Drilling sidetracking wireline fishing well

workover and tool rental

Warehouse and service

Pump jacks and wellhead

Progressing cavity pumping

Fishing liner hangers controlled pressure

drilling and testing services

In the ordinary course of business we become the subject of various claims and litigation We maintain

insurance to cover many of our potential losses and we are subject to various self-retention limits and deductibles

with respect to our insurance

See Item Business Other Business Data Federal Regulation and Environmental Matters which is

incorporated by reference into this item

Owned/

Leased
Principal Services and Products

Offered or ManufacturedLocation

North America

Houston Texas

Houston Texas

Houma Louisiana

New Brighton Minnesota

Nisku Alberta Canada

Nisku Alberta Canada

Pearland Texas

Schriever Louisiana

Latin America

Ciudad Del Carmen Campeche Mexico

ReynosaTamaulipas Mexico

Leased

Leased

Owned

Leased

Owned

Leased

Owned

Leased Headquarters

Leased Corporate offices
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See Item 1A Risk Factors We are involved in several governmental and internal investigations which are

costly to conduct have resulted in loss of revenue and may result in substantial financial penalties which is

incorporated by reference into this item

Although we are subject to various ongoing items of litigation we do not believe any of the items of litigation

to which we are currently subject is likely to result in any material uninsured losses to us It is possible however an

unexpected judgment could be rendered against us in the cases in which we are involved that could be uninsured and

beyond the amounts we currently have reserved and in some cases those losses could be material

Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to vote of our shareholders during the fourth quarter of the year ended

December 31 2009

PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Our shares are traded on the New York Stock and the Euronext Exchanges under the symbol WFT As of

February 24 2010 there were 2865 shareholders of record Additionally there were 55 stockholders of Weath

erford International Inc as of the same date who had not yet exchanged their shares The following table sets forth

for the periods indicated the range of high and low sales prices per share for our stock as reported on the New York

Stock Exchange

Price

High Low

Year ending December 31 2009

First Quarter $14.47 9.08

Second Quarter 23.75 10.50

Third Quarter 23.00 17.22

Fourth Quarter 20.92 15.43

Year ending December 31 2008

First Quarter $36.82 $25.91

Second Quarter 49.98 34.96

Third Quarter 49.76 22.26

Fourth Quarter 24.69 7.75

On February 24 2010 the closing sales price of our shares as reported by the New York Stock Exchange was

$16.56 per share We have not declared or paid cash dividends on our shares since 1984

We have an approved share repurchase program under which we can spend up to $1 billion to repurchase our

outstanding shares As of December 31 2009 we have $205 million available under this authorization to repurchase

shares During the year ended December 31 2009 no shares were repurchased

In addition under our restricted share plan employees may elect to have us withhold shares to satisfy

minimum statutory federal state and local tax withholding obligations arising on the vesting of restricted stock

awards and exercise of options When we withhold these shares we are required to remit to the appropriate taxing

authorities the market price of the shares withheld which could be deemed purchase of shares by us on the date of
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withholding During the quarter ended December 31 2009 we withheld shares to satisfy these tax withholding

obligations as follows

No of Average
Period Shares Price

October 1-October 31 2009 11934 $20.33

November 1-November 30 2009 3298 16.84

December 1-December 31 2009 877714 15.91

Information concerning securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans is set forth in

Part III of this report under Item 12d Security Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

which is incorporated by reference into this Item

Performance Graph

This graph compares the yearly cumulative return on our shares with the cumulative return on the Dow Jones

U.S Oil Equipment Services Index and the Dow Jones U.S Index for the last five years The graph assumes the

value of the investment in our shares and each index was $100 on December 31 2004 The stockholder return set

forth below is not necessarily indicative of future performance The following graph and related information shall

not be deemed soliciting material or to be filed with the SEC nor shall such information be incorporated by

reference into any future filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 except to

the extent that Weatherford specifically incorporates it by reference into such filing

Comparison of Five Year Total Return

450

Weatherford International Ltd
_____________________________

Dow Jones U.S Oil Equipment and Services Index

350

0- Dow Jones U.S Index

300 ________________________________________________

250
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AR-19



Item Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth certain selected historical consolidated financial data and should be read in

conjunction with Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Oper

ations and Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data both contained in this report The following

information may not be indicative of our future operating results Results for 2008 have been conected in the

following table to reflect change in our income tax provision during that year

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005a

In thousands except per share amount

Statements of Operations Data

Revenues 8826933 9600564 7832062 6578928 $4333227

Operating Income 703855 1978549 1624336 1354687 570598

Income From Continuing Operations

Attributable to Weatherford 253766 1406081 1091975 906106 470095

Basic Earnings Per Share From

Continuing Operations Attributable

To Weatherford 0.35 2.06 1.61 1.31 0.78

Diluted Earnings Per Share From

Continuing Operations Attributable

To Weatherford 0.35 2.01 1.57 1.28 0.74

Balance Sheet Data

Total Assets $18866183 $16476513 $13190957 $10139248 $8580304

Long-term Debt 5847258 4564255 3066335 1564600 632071

Shareholders Equity 9798704 8405299 7440046 6197837 5676303

Cash Dividends Per Share

In 2005 we acquired Precision Energy Services and Precision Drilling International for $943 million in cash

and 104 million Weatherford shares In connection with the acquisition we recorded exit and restructuring

charges of $114 million or $79 million net of tax Also in 2005 we recorded $115 million gain on the sale of

our remaining shares of Universal stock with no income tax impact
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Our Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations MDA
begins with an executive overview which provides general description of our company today synopsis of

industry market trends insight into managements perspective of the opportunities and challenges we face and our

outlook for 2010 Next we analyze the results of our operations for the last three years including the trends in our

business Then we review our cash flows and liquidity capital resources and contractual commitments We

conclude with an overview of our critical accounting judgments and estimates and summary of recently issued

accounting pronouncements

The Company we us and our refer to Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint stock corporation

or prior to February 26 2009 to Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company which as of that

date became direct wholly owned subsidiary of Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint stock corporation

in either case on consolidated basis

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes

thereto included in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data Our discussion includes various

forward-looking statements about our markets the demand for our products and services and our future results

These statements are based on certain assumptions we consider reasonable For information about these assump
tions you should refer to the section entitled Item Business Forward-Looking Statements

Overview

General

We provide equipment and services used for drilling completion and production of oil and natural
gas

wells

throughout the world We conduct operations in approximately 100 countries and have service and sales locations in

nearly all of the oil and natural
gas producing regions in the world Our product offerings can be grouped into ten

service lines drilling services artificial lift systems well construction completion systems integrated

drilling drilling tools re-entry and fishing stimulation and chemicals services wireline and evaluation

services and 10 pipeline and specialty services

Our operational performance is segmented and reviewed on geographic basis and we report the following

regions as separate distinct reporting segments North America Latin America Europe/West AfricaJFSU

and Middle East/North Africa/Asia

In July 2009 we acquired the Oilfield Services Division OFSof TNK-BP for 24.3 million shares valued at

approximately $450 million plus contingent and other consideration In this transaction we acquired drilling well

workover and cementing services operations in West Siberia East Siberia and the Volga-Urals region
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Industry Trends

Changes in the current price and expected future prices of oil and natural gas influence the level of energy

industry spending Changes in expenditures result in an increased or decreased demand for our products and

services Rig count is an indicator of the level of spending for the exploration for and production of oil and natural

gas reserves The following chart sets forth certain statistics that reflect historical market conditions

North

Henry Hub American Rig International

WTI Oill Gas2 Count3 Rig Count3

2009 $79.36 $5.57 1485 1113

2008 44.60 5.62 2143 1175

2007 95.98 7.48 2171 1122

Price per barrel as of December 31 Source Thomson Reuters

Price per MMJBTU as of December 31 Source Thomson Reuters

Average rig count for December Source Baker Hughes Rig Count and other third-party data

Oil prices increased during 2009 ranging from low of $33.98 per barrel in February to high of $81.37 per

barrel late in October Natural gas prices decreased for most of the first three quarters of 2009 but started to rally

late in September ranging from high of $6.07 MMIBTU in early January to low of $2.51 MM/BTU early in

September Factors influencing oil and natural gas prices during the period include hydrocarbon inventory levels

realized and expected economic growth realized and expected levels of hydrocarbon demand levels of spare

production capacity within the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries OPEC weather and geopolitical

uncertainty

Opportunities and Challenges

The nature of our industry offers many opportunities and challenges The cyclicality of the energy industry

impacts the demand for our products and services Certain of our products and services such as our drilling and

evaluation services well installation services and well completion services depend on the level of exploration and

development activity and the completion phase of the well life cycle Other products and services such as our

production optimization and artificial lift systems are dependent on production activity We have created long-

term strategy aimed at growing our businesses servicing our customers and most importantly creating value for

our shareholders The success of our long-term strategy will be determined by our ability to manage effectively any

industry cyclicality respond to industry demands and successfully maximize the benefits from our acquisitions

Outlook

We believe the long-term outlook for our businesses is favorable As decline rates accelerate and reservoir

productivity complexities increase our clients will face growing challenges securing desired rates of production

growth The acceleration of decline rates and the increasing complexity of the reservoirs increase our customers

requirements for technologies that improve productivity and efficiency and for our products and services These

phenomena provide us with positive outlook over the longer term

The near-term outlook is more difficult to assess Climate natural gas storage levels and commodity prices as

well as expectations for the U.S economy will dictate the level of oilfield service activity in North America The

prognosis for North America in 2010 is favorable but limited in scope and scale by the relative elasticity of the gas

supply curve We are currently anticipating that North America will experience an increase in volume during 2010

While it is difficult to predict exact growth rates given the current fluid economic conditions and volatility we

expect our total international businesses to grow 20% in 2010 as compared to 2009 The Eastern Hemisphere is

anticipated to contribute essentially all of the year-over-year
increase in revenues with our Latin America business

essentially flat year-over-year Given the activity declines experienced during the first half of 2009 in North

America pricing in the U.S and Canada had seen significant weakness with rigs tubulars and stimulation showing

the strongest pressures In the international markets pricing softened during the first half of 2009 where and when

contractual terms had come to renewal time Requests by clients to renegotiate existing contracts yielded more
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modest price erosion with significant differences between international regions On global basis we believe that

these pricing moves are now behind us

Overall the level of improvements for our businesses for 2010 will continue to depend heavily on volume

increases and our ability to further penetrate existing markets with our younger technologies as well as to

successfully introduce these technologies to new markets In addition our ability to continue to grow our business

aggressively will rely on our continued demonstration of high level of operational efficacy for our clients on

project management opportunities The recruitment training and retention of personnel will also be critical factor

in growing our businesses The continued strength of the industry will be highly dependent on many external

factors such as world economic and political conditions member country quota compliance within OPEC and

weather conditions including the factors described above under Forward-Looking Statements

Results of Operations

The following charts contain selected financial data comparing our consolidated and segment results from

operations for 2009 2008 and 2007 Results for 2008 have been conected in the following chart to reflect change

in our income tax provision during that year

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands except percentages and

per share data

Revenues

North America $2765707 $4460147 $3937456

Middle EastlNorth Africa/Asia 2368118 2391520 1823769

Europe/West Africa/FSU 1616460 1539190 1188519

Latin America 2076648 1209707 882318

8826933 9600564 7832062

Operating Income Expense

North America 197211 1125199 1013088

Middle East/North Africa/Asia 441974 561012 416263

Europe/West AfricaIFSU 251991 382772 293846

Latin America 281590 277094 203211

Research and Development 194650 192659 169317

Corporate 173695 135012 101968

Exit and Restructuring 100566 39857 30787

703855 1978549 1624336

Interest Expense Net 366748 243679 171281

Other Net 37633 44956 8569
Effective Tax Rate 6.5% 14.8% 23.0%

Net Income from Continuing Operations Per Diluted Share 0.35 2.01 1.57

Loss from Discontinued Operation per Diluted Share 0.02 0.03

Net Income per Diluted Share 0.35 1.99 1.54

Depreciation and Amortization 906697 731808 606226
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Revenues

The following chart contains consolidated revenues by product line for 2009 2008 and 2007

Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008 2007

Well Construction 17% 15% 16%

Artificial Lift Systems 16 17 18

Drilling Services 16 16 15

Integrated Drilling
13

Completion Systems 10 10

Drilling Tools 11 12

Stimulation Chemicals

Wireline

Re-entry Fishing

Pipeline Specialty Services

Total 100% 100% 100%

Consolidated revenues decreased $774 million or 8% in 2009 as compared to 2008 against 30% decrease in

rig count activity This decrease in revenue is mainly attributable to the significant declines experienced in

North America International revenues increased $921 million or 18% in the current year as compared to the prior

year Our Latin American region was the largest contributor to our year-over-year international revenue growth

This international growth was against an 8% decline in international rig count From service line perspective our

integrated drilling service line experienced the strongest growth in 2009

Consolidated revenues increased $1769 million or 23% in 2008 as compared to 2007 Approximately 70% of

our revenue growth was derived from outside of North America International revenues increased $1246 million or

32% in 2008 as compared to 2007 which outpaced the 8% increase in average international rig count over the

comparable period and is consistent with international growth trends we experienced in the prior year Revenues

from our drilling services well construction artificial lift systems and integrated drilling product lines were strong

contributors to the year-over-year increase

Operating Income

Consolidated operating income decreased $1275 million or 64% in 2009 as compared to 2008 Our operating

segments accounted for $1173 million of this decrease In addition exit and restructuring charges during 2009

increased $61 million and corporate expenditure increased $39 million compared to 2008 The increase in corporate

expenses was primarily attributable to higher employee compensation costs professional fees and costs related to

acquisitions which were capitalized in 2008 and expensed in 2009 due to the adoption of new accounting guidance

related to business combinations and settlement of certain legal disputes In addition 2009 includes costs

associated with business process optimization initiatives that should be ongoing over the next two years We

also augmented our compliance infrastructure with increased staff and more rigorous policies and training of our

employees regarding compliance with applicable anti-corruption laws trade sanction laws and importlexport laws

Consolidated operating income increased $354 million or 22% in 2008 as compared to 2007 Our operating

segments contributed $420 million of incremental operating income during 2008 as compared to 2007 This

incremental gain was partially offset by an increase in corporate and research and development expenditures of

$57 million over 2007 and an increase in exit and restructuring costs of $9 million The increase in corporate
and

research and development expenses was primarily attributable to higher employee compensation costs

We incurred exit and restructuring charges during 2009 of $101 million which was comprised of $45 million

for legal and professional fees incurred in connection with our on-going investigations ii $52 million for

severance and facility closure costs and iii$4 million for unusable assets and cost accruals in certain sanctioned

countries
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Exit and restructuring charges during 2008 include $47 million for legal and professional fees incurred in

connection with our on-going investigations ii $18 million for severance costs incurred associated with

restructuring activities and iii $56 million for costs incurred in connection with our withdrawal from sanctioned

countries These charges were partially offset by an $81 million gain recognized in the second quarter of 2008 as

result of selling our 50% interest in subsidiary we control to Qatar Petroleum for cash consideration of

$113 million

During 2007 we incurred exit and restructuring charges of $31 million which was comprised of $17 million in

severance charges associated with restructuring activities and $14 million for legal and professional fees incurred in

connection with our on-going investigations by the U.S government

Interest Expense Net

Interest expense net increased $123 million or 51% in 2009 compared to 2008 The increase in interest

expense was primarily attributable to an overall increase in our long-term debt balance during the period We issued

$1.5 billion in senior notes in March 2008 and an additional $1.25 billion of senior notes in January 2009 This

increase was partially offset by lower short-term borrowing rates and balances during the comparable period The

incremental borrowings added were primarily used to fund capital expenditures and to fund acquisitions

Interest expense increased $72 million or 42% in 2008 compared to 2007 The increase in interest expense

was primarily attributable to an overall increase in our long-term debt balance during the periods We issued

$1.5 billion in senior notes in June 2007 and an additional $1.5 billion of senior notes in March 2008 This increase

was partially offset by lower weighted average short-term borrowing rates during 2008 as compared to 2007 The

incremental borrowings added were used to fund capital expenditures and to fund our current year acquisitions

Other Expense Net

Other expense net decreased $7 million or 16% in 2009 compared to 2008 The decrease was primarily due to

decline in foreign currency exchange losses During 2008 other expense net increased $36 million from

$9 million in 2007 to $45 million in 2008 The increase was almost entirely attributable to foreign currency

exchange losses incurred as the result of the weakening of foreign currencies against the U.S dollar particularly in

the latter half of 2008

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rates were 6.5% in 2009 14.8% in 2008 and 23.0% in 2007 The decrease in our effective tax

rate during 2009 is primarily due to large decrease in earnings in certain jurisdictions largely North America with

no corresponding decrease in certain tax deductions The decrease in our effective tax rate during 2008 was due to

benefits realized from the refinement of our international tax structure and changes in our geographic earnings mix

During 2008 we recorded benefit of approximately $100 million related to foreign taxes paid that will be

used to reduce our future United States tax liability

Segment Results

North America

Revenues in our North America segment decreased $1694 million or 38% in 2009 as compared to 2008 on

42% decline in average North America rig count over the comparable period The decrease in revenues is the result

of the steep decline in drilling activity both in Canada and the United States and the significant declines in pricing

experienced in the first half of 2009

Operating income decreased $928 million or 82% in 2009 compared to 2008 Operating margins were 7%

and 25% in 2009 and 2008 respectively The combination of the significant reduction in drilling activity in the

region and pricing declines was the primary reason for the deterioration in margins and operating income

Revenues in our North America segment increased $523 million or 13% in 2008 as compared to 2007 and

outpaced 7% increase in rig count over the comparable period Revenues grew across all product lines with
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artificial lift systems drilling services and stimulation chemicals product lines being the strongest contributors to

the year-over-year
increase

Operating income increased $112 million or 11% from $1013 million in 2007 to $1125 million in 2008

Operating margins declined slightly to 25% in 2008 compared to 26% in 2007

Middle East/North Africa/Asia

Middle East/North Africa/Asia revenues decreased $23 million or 1% in 2009 as compared to 2008 on 6%

decline in rig count over the comparable period Integrated drilling was the strongest performer from service line

perspective

Operating income decreased $119 million or 21% during 2009 compared to the prioryear Operating margins

were 19% and 23% in 2009 and 2008 respectively The deterioration in operating income and margins during 2009

was primarily the result of delays in startups and deliveries as well as pricing declines experienced in the region

Revenues in our Middle East/North Africa/Asia segment increased $568 million or 31% in 2008 as compared

to 2007 This region contributed approximately 32% of our total revenue growth for 2008 and exceeded the average

rig count increase of 6% for this region over the comparable period Revenues from our drilling services and

integrated drilling product lines were among the strongest contributors to the year-over-year increase

Operating income increased $145 million or 35% from $416 million in 2007 to $561 million in 2008

Operating margins were 23% in both 2008 and 2007

Euro pe West Africa/FSU

Revenues in our Europe/West AfricafFSU segment increased $77 million or 5% in 2009 compared to 2008

against 16% rig count decrease over the comparable period Our acquisition of OFS in July 2009 contributed

approximately $180 million in revenues during the year This increase was partially offset by activity declines

experienced in the region Integrated drilling and stimulation and chemicals were the strongest performers from

service line perspective

Operating income decreased $131 million or 34% during the current year compared to the prior year

Operating margins were 16% in 2009 and 25% in 2008 The current years operating income includes $21 million

related to gain recorded in connection with the revaluation of contingent consideration included as part of the

acquisition of OFS This gain was offset by activity and pricing declines experienced in the region

Revenues in our Europe/West Africa/FSU segment increased $351 million or 30% in 2008 as compared to

2007 The region contributed approximately 20% of our total revenue growth for 2008 and exceeded the 20%

increase in average rig count in the region over the comparable period Revenues from our well construction and

drilling services product lines were the strongest contributors to the year-over-year increase

Operating income increased $89 million or 30% from $294 million in 2007 to $383 million in 2008

Operating margins were 25% in both 2008 and 2007

Latin America

Revenues in our Latin America segment increased $867 million or 71% in 2009 as compared to the prioryear

against an average rig count decrease of 7% over the comparable period Mexico was the strongest contributor to

revenue growth From service line perspective our integrated drilling and stimulation and chemicals service lines

experienced the strongest growth in 2009

Operating income increased $5 million or 2% during 2009 as compared to 2008 and operating margins

decreased from 23% in 2008 to 14% in 2009 significant change in product mix together with unforeseen delays

shifts in customer focus and market declines in Venezuela Argentina and Colombia negatively impacted margins

In addition weather issues and reduction in gas activity in Mexico contributed to the decline in margins

Revenues in our Latin America segment increased $327 million or 37% in 2008 as compared to 2007 The

region contributed approximately 19% of our total revenue growth for 2008 and outpaced the 8% increase in Latin
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American rig count over the comparable period Revenues from our drilling services completion systems artificial

lift systems and integrated drilling service lines were the strongest contributors to the year-over-year increase

Operating income increased $74 million or 36% from $203 million in 2007 to $277 million in 2008

Operating margins were 23% in both 2008 and 2007

Discontinued Operation

We finalized the divestiture of our discontinued operation consisting of our oil and gas development and

production company during the second quarter of 2008 We recorded gain of $11 million net of taxes in

connection with the finalization of the divestiture On year-to-date basis we had loss from our discontinued

operation net of taxes of $13 million which included approximately $21 million incurred in connection with the

settlement of legal dispute regarding the business This loss was partially offset by the gain recognized in the

second quarter of 2008

Equity Investment Acquisition

We acquired 33% ownership interest in Premier Business Solutions PBS in June 2007 for approximately

$330 million PBS conducts business in Russia and is an electric submersible pump manufacturer In January 2008

we sold our electrical submersible pumps product line to PBS and received combination of cash and an additional

equity investment in PBS in consideration of the sale This transaction increased our ownership percentage to

approximately 40% In September 2009 we converted $38 million note plus accrued interest due from PBS for an

additional equity investment Our ownership percentage was unchanged as the other joint venture partner also

converted its notes receivable for an additional equity investment

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources of Liquidity

Our sources of liquidity include current cash and cash equivalent balances cash generated from operations

and conmiitted availabilities under bank lines of credit We also historically have accessed banks for short-term

loans from uncommitted borrowing arrangements and the capital markets with debt equity and convertible

offerings

Committed Borrowing Facilities

We maintain various revolving credit facilities with syndicates of banks that can be used for combination of

borrowings support for our commercial paper program and issuances of letters of credit At December 31 2009

these facilities allow for an aggregate availability of $1.8 billion and mature in May 2011 The weighted average

interest rate on outstanding borrowings of these facilities at December 31 2009 was 1.3%

Our committed borrowing facilities require us to maintain debt-to-capitalization ratio of less than 60% and

contains other covenants and representations customary for an investment-grade commercial credit Our debt-to-ca

pitalization ratio was 41% at December 31 2009 which is in compliance with these covenants The following is

recap of our availability under our committed borrowing facilities at December 31 2009 in millions

Facilities $1750

Less uses of facility

Amount drawn 799

Commercial paper

Letters of credit 72

Availability 879
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Commercial Paper

We have $1.5 billion commercial paper program under which we may from time to time issue short-term

unsecured notes Our commercial paper issuances are supported by our committed borrowing facilities There was

no commercial paper outstanding at December 31 2009

Cash Requirements

During 2010 we anticipate our cash requirements will include interest payments on our outstanding debt

working capital needs and capital expenditures and may include opportunistic business acquisitions We anticipate

funding these requirements from cash generated from operations and if necessary from availability under our

committed borrowing facilities

Capital expenditures during the year ended December 31 2009 were approximately $1.5 billion net of

proceeds from tools lost down hole We project our capital expenditures for 2010 will be approximately $1.1 billion

We are projecting lower capital expenditures for the coming year largely because our existing equipment people

and infrastructure capacity is sufficient to meet our near-term growth objective

From time to time we acquire businesses or technologies or enter into joint ventures to increase our range
of

products and services expand our geographic scope or otherwise enhance our businesses During the year ended

December 31 2009 we used approximately $54 million in cash for business and technology acquisitions

Consideration for 2009 acquisitions also included the issuance of approximately 35 million shares valued at

approximately $673 million From time to time we also divest of businesses when we believe they are no longer core

to our long-term growth strategy or when combining those businesses with joint venture partner presents us with

strategic opportunity In 2009 we received $123 million in cash from sales of businesses

We have an approved share repurchase program under which we can spend up to $1.0 billion to repurchase our

outstanding shares As of December 31 2009 we have $205 million remaining availability under this share

repurchase program During the year ended December 31 2009 no shares were repurchased

Contractual Obligations

The following summarizes our contractual obligations and contingent commitments by period The obliga

tions we pay in future periods may vary
due to certain assumptions including the duration of our obligations and

anticipated actions by third parties

Payments Due by Period

2011 and 2013 and

2010 2012 2014 Thereafter Total

In millions

Short-term debt 852 852

Long-term debta 959 751 4101 5817

Interest on long-term debt 400 754 621 3319 5094

Noncancellable operating leases 88 115 52 108 363

Purchase obligations 128 128

$1474 $1828 $1424 $7528 $12254

Amounts represent the expected cash payments for our total debt and do not include any unamortized discounts

or deferred gains on terminated interest rate swap agreements

Due to the uncertainty with respect to the timing of future cash flows associated with our unrecognized tax

benefits at December 31 2009 we are unable to make reasonably reliable estimates of the period of cash settlement

with the respective taxing authorities Therefore $82 million in unrecognized tax benefits including interest and

penalties have been excluded from the contractual obligations table above
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We have defined benefit pension plans covering certain of our U.S and international employees that provide

various pension benefits During 2009 we contributed approximately $9 million towards those plans and for 2010

we anticipate funding approximately $7 million through cash flows from operating activities

Senior Notes

In January 2009 we completed $1.25 billion long-term debt offering comprised of $1 billion of

9.625% Senior Notes due in 2019 9.625% Senior Notes and ii $250 million of 9.875% Senior Notes due in

2039 9.875% Senior Notes Net proceeds of $1.23 billion were used to repay short-term borrowings and for

general corporate purposes

In March 2008 we completed $1.5 billion long-term debt offering comprised of $500 million of

5.15% Senior Notes due in 2013 5.15% Senior Notes ii $500 million of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2018

6.00% Senior Notes and iii $500 million of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2038 7.00% Senior Notes Net

proceeds of $1.47 billion were used to repay
short-term borrowings and for general corporate purposes including

capital expenditures and business acquisitions

In June 2007 we completed $1.5 billion long-term debt offering comprised of $600 million of

5.95% senior notes due 2012 5.95% Senior Notes ii $600 million of 6.35% senior notes due 2017

6.35% Senior Notes and iii $300 million of 6.80% senior notes due 2037 6.80% Senior Notes Net

proceeds of approximately $1.49 billion were used to repay outstanding borrowings on our commercial paper

program and for general corporate purposes

Interest Rate Swaps

In August 2009 we entered into interest rate swap agreements to pay variable interest rate and receive fixed

interest rate with an aggregate notional amount of $1.2 billion against our 5.15% 5.50% and 9.625% Senior Notes

These swaps were designed as fair value hedges and were terminated in December 2009 As result of these

terminations we received cash settlement of $53 million In addition we received $11 million in interest

payments while the interest rate swaps were open The gains associated with these interest rate swap terminations

have been deferred and will be amortized over the remaining term of our 5.15% 5.50% and 9.625% Senior Notes

In December 2008 we entered into an interest rate swap agreement on an aggregate notional amount of

$150 million against one of our revolving credit facilities This agreement matured in June 2009

Upon completion of the long-term debt offering in March 2008 we entered into interest rate swap agreements

with an aggregate notional amount of $500 million against our 5.15% Senior Notes These swaps were designed as

fair value hedges and were terminated in December 2008 As result of these terminations we received cash

proceeds net of accrued interest of $12 million The gain associated with this interest rate swap termination has

been deferred and is being amortized over the remaining term of the 5.15% Senior Notes

We have no interest rate swaps outstanding at December 31 2009 As of December 31 2009 we had net

unamortized gains of $68 million associated with our interest rate swap terminations

Cash Flow Hedges

In March 2008 we entered into interest rate derivative instruments with notional amount of $500 million to

hedge projected exposures to interest rates in anticipation of the issuance of our 7.00% senior notes due 2038

7.00% Senior Notes Those hedges were terminated in March 2008 at the time of the issuance We paid cash

settlement of $13 million at termination and the loss on these hedges is being amortized to interest expense over the

life of the 7.00% Senior Notes

We have no interest rate derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges outstanding at December 31

2009 As of December 31 2009 we had net unamortized losses of $13 million associated with our cash flow hedge

terminations
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Other Derivative Instruments

As of December 31 2009 and 2008 we had several foreign currency forward and option contracts with

notional amounts aggregating $1062 million and $503 million respectively which were entered into to hedge

exposure to currency fluctuations in various foreign currencies including but not limited to the British pound

sterling the Canadian dollar the euro and the Norwegian krone The total estimated fair value of these contracts at

December 31 2009 resulted in net liability of approximately $9 million and at December 31 2008 resulted in

liability of approximately $2 million These derivative instruments were not designated as hedges and the changes

in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in current earnings

We have cross-currency swaps between the U.S dollar and Canadian dollar to hedge certain exposures to the

Canadian dollar At December 31 2009 and 2008 we had notional amounts outstanding of $263 million and

$280 million respectively The total estimated fair value of these contracts at December 31 2009 and 2008 resulted

in liability of $26 million and an asset of $1 million respectively These derivative instruments were not

designated as hedges and the changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in current earnings

Warrants

We have outstanding warrants to purchase up to 12.9 million of our shares at price of $15.00 per share The

warrants remain exercisable until February 28 2012 and are subject to adjustment for changes in our capital

structure or the issuance of dividends in cash securities or property Upon exercise by the holders settlement may

occur through physical delivery net share settlement net cash settlement or combination of those methods The

net cash settlement option upon exercise is at our sole discretion

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Guarantees

During the first quarter of 2009 we completed transaction that changed our place of incorporation from

Bermuda to Switzerland new Swiss corporation named Weatherford International Ltd was formed and is now

the ultimate parent Weatherford Switzerland of the Weatherford group and guarantees the obligations of

Weatherford International Ltd incorporated in Bermuda Weatherford Bermuda and Weatherford International

Inc incorporated in Delaware Weatherford Delaware noted below

The following obligations of Weatherford Delaware were guaranteed by Weatherford Bermuda at

December 31 2009 the 6.625% Senior Notes ii the 5.95% Senior Notes iii the 6.35% Senior Notes

and iv the 6.80% Senior Notes

The following obligations of Weatherford Bermuda were guaranteed by Weatherford Delaware at

December 31 2009 the revolving credit facilities ii the 4.95% Senior Notes iii the 5.50% Senior Notes

iv the 6.50% Senior Notes the 5.15% Senior Notes vi the 6.00% Senior Notes vii the 7.00% Senior Notes

viii the 9.625% Senior Notes ix the 9.875% Senior Notes and issuances of notes under the commercial paper

program

Letters of Credit

We execute letters of credit in the normal course of business While these obligations are not normally called

these obligations could be called by the beneficiaries at any time before the expiration date should we breach certain

contractual or payment obligations As of December 31 2009 we had $282 million of letters of credit and bid and

performance bonds outstanding consisting of $210 million outstanding under various unconmitted credit facilities

and $72 million letters of credit outstanding under our committed facilities If the beneficiaries called these letters of

credit the called amount would become an on-balance sheet liability and our available liquidity would be reduced

by the amount called To the extent we are successful in being awarded large contracts in the future our

requirements for posting letters of credit and bid and performance bonds could increase
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operation is based upon our consolidated

financial statements We
prepare

these financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles As such we are required to make certain estimates judgments and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the periods presented We base our estimates on historical experience available information and

various other assumptions we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances On an on-going basis we evaluate

our estimates however actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions

The accounting policies we believe require managements most difficult subjective or complex judgments and are

the most critical to our reporting of results of operations and financial position are as follows

Business Combinations and Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in connection with business combinations represent the excess of

consideration over the fair value of tangible net assets acquired Certain assumptions and estimates are employed in

determining the fair value of assets acquired the fair value of liabilities assumed as well as in determining the

allocation of goodwill to the appropriate reporting unit

We perform an impairment test for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets annually as of October or

earlier if indicators of potential impairment exist

We have indefinite-lived intangible assets totaling $20 million and $16 million as of December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively Our impairment test for indefinite-lived intangible assets involves the comparison of the fair

value of the intangible asset and its carrying value We have determined that no impairment exists related to these

assets

We have goodwill totaling $4.2 billion and $3.5 billion as of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Goodwill impairment is evaluated using two-step process The first step of the goodwill impairment test involves

comparison of the fair value of each of our reporting units with their carrying values Our reporting units are based

on our regional structure and consist of the United States Canada Latin America Europe West Africa FSU
Middle East/North Africa and Asia Pacific If the carrying amount of reporting unit exceeds its fair value the

second step of the goodwill impairment test shall be performed The second step compares the implied fair value of

the reporting units goodwill to the carrying amount of its goodwill to measure the amount of impairment loss

The fair value of our reporting units are determined using discounted cash flows using discount rate adjusted

for the credit risk of the regional reporting unit tested Certain estimates and judgments are required in the

application of these fair value models The discounted cash flow analysis consists of estimating the future revenue

operating margins capital expenditures working capital and cash flows that are directly associated with each of our

reporting units

Many of the assumptions used in our discounted cash flow analysis are based upon our annual financial

forecast This annual planning process takes into consideration many factors including historical results and

operating performance related industry trends pricing strategies customer analysis operational issues competitor

analysis and marketplace data among others Assumptions are also made for growth rates for periods beyond the

financial forecast period Our estimates of fair value are sensitive to changes in all of these variables certain of

which relate to conditions outside our control

None of our reporting units failed the first step of our impairment test during 2009 In addition all reporting

units fair values were substantially in excess of their carrying value with the exception of the FSU reporting unit

This reporting unit had an excess of fair value over carrying value of 12% and has approximately $249 million of

goodwill

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets which includes property plant and equipment and definite-lived intangibles comprise

significant amount of our assets In accounting for long-lived assets we must make estimates about the expected
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useful lives of the assets and the potential for impairment based on the fair value of the assets and the cash flows they

are expected to generate The value of the long-lived assets is then amortized over its expected useful life change

in the estimated useful lives of our long-lived assets would have an impact on our results of operations We estimate

the useful lives of our long-lived asset groups as follows

Useful Lives

Buildings and leasehold improvements 10-40 years or lease term

Rental and service equipment 2-20 years

Machinery and other 2-12 years

Intangible assets 2-20
years

In estimating the useful lives of our property plant and equipment we rely primarily on our actual experience

with the same or similarassets The useful lives of our intangible assets are determined by the years over which we

expect the assets to generate benefit based on legal contractual or regulatory terms

Long lived assets to be held and used by us are reviewed to determine whether any events or changes in

circumstances indicate that we may not be able to recover the carrying amount of the asset Factors that might

indicate potential impairment may include but are not limited to significant decreases in the market value of the

long-lived asset significant change in the long-lived assets physical condition the introduction of competing

technologies legal challenges change in industry conditions or reduction in cash flows associated with the use

of the long lived asset If these or other factors exist that indicate the carrying amount of the asset may not be

recoverable we determine whether an impairment has occurred through the use of an undiscounted cash flow

analysis The undiscounted cash flow analysis consists of estimating the future cash flows that are directly

associated with and expected to arise from the use and eventual disposition of the asset over its remaining useful life

These cash flows are inherently subjective and require significant estimates based upon historical experience and

future expectations such as budgets and internal projections If the undiscounted cash flows do not exceed the

carrying value of the long-lived asset an impairment has occurred and we recognize loss for the difference

between the carrying amount and the estimated fair value of the asset The fair value of the asset is measured using

market prices or in the absence of market prices is based on an estimate of discounted cash flows Cash flows are

generally discounted at an interest rate commensurate with our weighted average cost of capital for similarasset

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

We recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of defined benefit pension or other postretirement benefit

plan as an asset or liability in the financial statements measure plan assets and obligations as of the end of our fiscal

year and recognize gains/losses prior service credits/costs and transition assets/obligations in accumulated other

comprehensive income until they are recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost

Amounts recognized in the financial statements are determined on an actuarial basis Two of the more critical

assumptions in the actuarial calculations are the discount rate for determining the current value of plan benefits and the

expected rate of return on plan assets Discount rates are based on the yields of government bonds or high quality

corporate bonds in the respective country or economic market The expected long-term rates of return on plan assets

are based on combination of historical experience and anticipated future returns in each of the asset categories As we

have both domestic and international.plans the assumptions though the same in nature are based on varying factors

specific to each particular country or economic environment Changes in any of the assumptions used could impact our

projected benefit obligations and benefit costs as well as other pension and postretirement benefit calculations

Due to the significance of the discount rates and expected long-term rates of return the following sensitivity

analysis demonstrates the effect that 50 basis point change in those assumptions will have on annual pension expense

Increase Decrease of Annual

Pension Expense

50 Basis Point 50 Basis Point

Increase Decrease

In millions

Discount rate $0.8 $1.5

Expected long-term rate of return 0.5 0.5
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Percentage of Completion

Revenue from long-term contracts primarily for our integrated project management services is reported on

the percentage-of-completion method of accounting This method of accounting requires us to calculate contract

profit to be recognized in each reporting period for each contract based upon our projections of future outcomes

which include

estimates of the total cost to complete the project

estimates of project schedule and completion date

estimates of the extent of progress toward completion and

amounts of any change orders or claims included in revenue

Measurements of progress are generally output based related to physical progress At the outset of each

contract we prepare detailed analysis of our estimated cost to complete the project Risks related to service

delivery usage productivity and other factors are considered in the estimation process Our personnel periodically

evaluate the estimated costs claims change orders and percentage of completion at the contract level The

recording of profits and losses on long-term contracts requires an estimate of the total profit or loss over the life of

each contract This estimate requires consideration of total contract value change orders and claims less costs

incurred and estimated costs to complete There are many factors that impact future costs including but not limited

to weather inflation labor and community disruptions timely availability of materials productivity and other

factors as outlined in our Risk Factors Anticipated losses on contracts are recorded in full in the period in which

they become evident Profits are recorded based upon the total estimated contract profit times the current percentage

complete for the contract

Income Taxes

We take into account the differences between the financial statement treatment and tax treatment of certain

transactions Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to

differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective

tax bases Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable

income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect of

change in tax rates is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment date Our effective

tax rates for 2009 2008 and 2007 were 6.5% 14.8% and 23.0% respectively

We recognize the impact of an uncertain tax position taken or expected to be taken on an income tax return in

the financial statements at the largest amount that is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the

relevant taxing authority

We operate in approximately 100 countries through various legal entities As result we are subject to

numerous domestic and foreign tax jurisdictions and tax agreements and treaties among the various taxing

authorities Our operations in these jurisdictions are taxed on various bases income before taxes deemed profits

which is generally determined using percentage of revenues rather than profits and withholding taxes based on

revenue The calculation of our tax liabilities involves consideration of uncertainties in the application and

interpretation of complex tax regulations in multitude of jurisdictions across our global operations We recognize

potential liabilities and record tax liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues in the U.S and other tax jurisdictions

based on our estimate of whether and the extent to which additional taxes will be due The tax liabilities are

reflected net of realized tax loss carryforwards We adjust these reserves upon specific events however due to the

complexity of some of these uncertainties the ultimate resolution may result in payment that is different from our

current estimate of the tax liabilities If our estimate of tax liabilities proves to be less than the ultimate assessment

an additional charge to expense would result If payment of these amounts ultimately proves to be less than the

recorded amounts the reversal of the liabilities would result in tax benefits being recognized in the period when the

contingency has been resolved and the liabilities are no longer necessary Changes in tax laws regulations

agreements and treaties foreign currency exchange restrictions or our level of operations or profitability in each

taxing jurisdiction could have an impact upon the amount of income taxes that we provide during any given year

AR-33



Valuation Allowance for Deferred Tax Assets

We record valuation allowance to reduce the carrying value of our deferred tax assets when it is more likely

than not that portion or all of the deferred tax assets will expire before realization of the benefit or that future

deductibility is not probable The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets depends on the ability to generate

sufficient taxable income of the appropriate character and in the related jurisdiction in the future In evaluating our

ability to recover our deferred tax assets we consider reasonably available positive and negative evidence

including our past operating results the existence of cumulative losses in the most recent years and our forecast of

future taxable income In estimating future taxable income we develop assumptions including the amount of future

state federal and international pretax operating income the reversal of temporary differences and the implemen

tation of feasible and prudent tax planning strategies These assumptions require significant judgment

We have identified various domestic and international tax planning strategies that we would implement if

necessary to enable the realization of our deferred tax assets however when the likelihood of the realization of

existing deferred tax assets changes adjustments to the valuation allowance are charged to our income tax provision

in the period in which the determination is made

As of December 31 2009 our net deferred tax assets were $297 million before related valuation allowance of

$70 million As of December 31 2008 our net deferred tax assets were $173 million before related valuation

allowance of $69 million

For more comprehensive list of our accounting policies see Item Financial Statements and Supple

mentary Data Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Note

New Accounting Pronouncements

Effective July 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Boards FASB Accounting Standards Cod

ification ASCbecame the single official source of authoritative nongovernmental generally accepted account

ing principles GAAP in the U.S The historical GAAP hierarchy was eliminated and the ASC became the only

level of authoritative GAAP other than guidance issued by the SEC Our accounting policies were not affected by

the conversion to the ASC However any references to specific accounting standards have been changed to refer to

the appropriate section of the ASC

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are currently exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency and changes in interest rates From

time to time we may enter into derivative financial instrument transactions to manage or reduce our market risk but

we do not enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes discussion of our market risk exposure in

these financial instruments follows

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

We operate in virtually every oil and natural gas exploration and production region in the world In some parts

of the world such as the Middle East and Southeast Asia the currency of our primary economic environment is the

U.S dollar We use this as our functional currency In other parts of the world we conduct our business in currencies

other than the U.S dollar and the functional currency is the applicable local currency In those countries in which we

operate in the local currency the effects of foreign currency fluctuations are largely mitigated because local

expenses of such foreign operations are also generally denominated in the same currency

In January 2010 the Venezuelan government announced its intention to devalue its currency Bolivar and

move to two tier exchange structure The official exchange rate is expected to move from 2.15 to 2.60 for essential

goods and 4.30 for non-essential goods and services While we are still evaluating the impact of these actions our

preliminary assessment of the impact of the devaluation is that we will incur one-time loss of approximately

$50 million in the first quarter of 2010 for the remeasurement of the local balance sheet at the date of the

devaluation
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Assets and liabilities of which the functional currency is the local currency are translated into U.S dollars

using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date resulting in translation adjustments that are reflected as

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in the shareholders equity section on our Consolidated Balance

Sheets portion of our net assets are impacted by changes in foreign currencies in relation to the U.S dollar We

recorded $377 million adjustment to increase our equity account for the
year

ended December 31 2009 to reflect

the net impact of the weakening of the U.S dollar against various foreign currencies

As of December 31 2009 and 2008 we had several foreign currency forward and option contracts with

notional amounts aggregating $1062 million and $503 million respectively which were entered into to hedge

exposure to currency fluctuations in various foreign currencies including but not limited to the British pound

sterling the Canadian dollar the euro and the Norwegian krone The total estimated fair value of these contracts at

December 31 2009 resulted in net liability of approximately $9 million and at December 31 2008 resulted in

liability of approximately $2 million These derivative instruments were not designated as hedges and the changes

in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in current earnings

We have
cross-currency swaps between the U.S dollar and Canadian dollar to hedge certain exposures to the

Canadian dollar At December 31 2009 and 2008 we had notional amounts outstanding of $263 million and

$280 million respectively The estimated fair value of these contracts at December 31 2009 and 2008 resulted in

liability of $26 million and an asset of $1 million respectively These derivative instruments were not designated as

hedges and the changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in current earnings

Interest Rates

We are subject to interest rate risk on our long-term fixed-interest rate debt and variable-interest rate

borrowings Variable rate debt where the interest rate fluctuates periodically exposes us to short-term changes

in market interest rates Fixed rate debt where the interest rate is fixed over the life of the instrument exposes us to

changes in market interest rates reflected in the fair value of the debt and to the risk that we may need to refinance

maturing debt with new debt at higher rate All other things being equal the fair value of our fixed rate debt will

increase or decrease as interest rates change

Our longterm borrowings that were outstanding at December 31 2009 and 2008 subject to interest rate risk

consist of the following

December 31

2009 2008

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Amount Value Amount Value

In millions

6.625% SeniorNotes due 2011 353 380 $354 $330

5.95% Senior Notes due 2012 599 648 599 585

5.15% Senior Notes due 2013 511 526 511 463

4.95% Senior Notes due 2013 ... 253 263 254 213

5.50% Senior Notes due 2016 360 351 349 306

6.35% Senior Notes due 2017 ... 600 647 600 513

6.00% Senior Notes due 2018 ... 498 514 498 456

9.625% Senior Notes due 2019 1034 1236

6.50% Senior Notes due 2036 ... 596 574 596 495

6.80% Senior Notes due 2037 ... 298 303 298 227

7.00% Senior Notes due 2038 ... 498 517 498 394

9.875% Senior Notes due 2039 247 326

We have various other long-term debt instruments of $18 million at December 31 2009 but believe the impact

of changes in interest rates in the near term will not be material to these instruments The carrying value of our short

term borrowings of $852 million at December 31 2009 approximates their fair value
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As it relates to our variable rate debt if market interest rates average
1% more in 2010 than the rates as of

December 31 2009 interest expense for 2010 would increase by $9 million This amount was determined by

calculating the effectof the hypothetical interest rate on our variable rate debt This sensitivity analysis assumes

there are no changes in our financial structure

Interest Rate Swaps and Derivatives

We manage our debt portfolio to achieve an overall desired position of fixed and floating rates and may employ

interest rate swaps as tool to achieve that goal The major risks from interest rate derivatives include changes in the

interest rates affecting the fair value of such instruments potential increases in interest expense due to market

increases in floating interest rates and the creditworthiness of the counterparties in such transactions The

counterparties to our interest rate swaps are multinational commercial banks In light of events in the global

credit markets and the potential impact of these events on the liquidity of the banking industry we continue to

monitor the creditworthiness of our counterparties

We use interest rate swaps to take advantage of available short-term interest rates Amounts received upon

termination of the swaps represent the fair value of the agreements at the time of termination and are recorded as an

adjustment to the carrying value of the related debt These amounts are being amortized as reduction to interest

expense over the remaining term of the debt

In August 2009 we entered into interest rate swap agreements to pay variable interest rate and receive fixed

interest rate with an aggregate notional amount of $1.2 billion against our 5.15% 5.50% and 9.625% Senior Notes

These swaps were designed as fair value hedges and were terminated in December 2009 As result of these

terminations we received cash settlement of $53 million In addition we received $11 million in interest

payments while the interest rate swaps were open The gains associated with these interest rate swap terminations

have been deferred and will be amortized over the remaining term of our 5.15% 5.50% and 9.625% Senior Notes

In December 2008 we entered into an interest rate swap agreement on an aggregate notional amount of

$150 million against one of our revolving credit facilities This agreement matured in June 2009

Upon completion of the long-term debt offering in March 2008 we entered into interest rate swap agreements

on an aggregate notional amount of $500 million against our 5.15% Senior Notes These swaps were designed as

fair value hedges and were terminated in December 2008 As result of these terminations we received cash

proceeds net of accrued interest of $12 million The gain associated with this interest rate swap termination has

been deferred and is being amortized over the remaining term of the 5.15% Senior Notes

We have no interest rate swaps outstanding at December 31 2009 As of December 31 2009 and 2008 we had

net unamortized gains of $68 million and $21 million respectively associated with interest rate swap terminations
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MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting as such term is defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule l3a-15f The Companys
internal controls were designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the reliability of its financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2009 In making its assessment management has utilized the criteria set forth by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-Integrated Framework Based on this

assessment management concluded that as of December 31 2009 the Companys internal control over financial

reporting is effective

The effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 has

been audited by Ernst Young LLP an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report

which
appears

herein
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Weatherford International Ltd and subsidiaries

We have audited Weatherford International Ltd.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31

2009 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria Weatherford International Ltd.s

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment

of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report

on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the companys internal

control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit

included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material

weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe

that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys

assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Weatherford International Ltd and subsidiaries maintained in all material respects effective

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the consolidated balance sheets of Weatherford International Ltd and subsidiaries as of

December 31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of income shareholders equity and cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2009 of Weatherford International Ltd and

subsidiaries and our report dated March 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

Houston Texas

March 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Weatherford International Ltd and subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Weatherford International Ltd and

subsidiaries as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of income shareholders

equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2009 Our audits also included

the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 These financial statements and schedule are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements and schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtainreasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements refened to above present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of Weatherford International Ltd and subsidiaries at December 31 2009 and

2008 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31 2009 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion

the related financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as

whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the Company changed its method of

accounting for noncontrolling interests

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Weatherford International Ltd.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009
based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion

thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

Houston Texas

March 2010
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Ernst Young Ltd

Bleicherweg 21

CH-8002 Zurich

Phone 41 582863111

Fax 41 58 286 30 04

www.ey.com/ch

To the General Meeting of

Weatherford International Ltd Zug

Zurich March 2010

Report of the statutory auditor on the consolidated financial statements

As statutory auditor we have audited the consolidated financial statements of Weatherford International Ltd which

comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2009 and the related consolidated statements of income

shareholders equity and cash flows and notes thereto pages AR-42 to AR-87 for the year then ended

Board of Directors responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial

statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and the requirements of

Swiss law This responsibility includes designing implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to

the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement

whether due to fraud or error The Board of Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate

accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances

Auditors responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit We

conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law Swiss Auditing Standards and auditing standards generally accepted in

the United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment including the assessment of

the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due to fraud or error In making those

risk assessments the auditor considers the internal control system relevant to the entitys preparation and fair presentation

of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entitys internal control system An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

made as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements for the
year

ended December 31 2009 present fairly in all

material respects the financial position the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States and comply with Swiss law

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Over-sight Act AOA and

independence article 728 CO and article 11 AOA and that there are no circumstances incompatible with our

independence

In accordance with article 728a paragraph item CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890 we confirm that an internal

control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of consolidated financial statements according to the

instructions of the Board of Directors

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved

Ernst Young Ltd

Is Robin Errico Is Rico Fehr

Licensed audit expert
Licensed audit expert

Auditor in charge
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2009 2008

In thousands except par value

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 252519 238398

Accounts Receivable Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts of $20466 in

2009 and $16425 in 2008 2504876 2442848

Inventories 2239762 2088342
Current Deferred Tax Assets 259077 270252
Other Current Assets 884372 530442

Total Current Assets 6140606 5570282

Property Plant and Equipment

Land Buildings and Leasehold Improvements 976274 756416

Rental and Service Equipment 7534467 6246278

Machinery and Other 1919086 1610474

10429827 8613168

Less Accumulated Depreciation 3438248 2690996

6991579 5922172

Goodwill 4156105 3530915

Other Intangible Assets 778786 701483

Equity Investments 542667 515770

Other Assets 256440 235891

Total Assets $18866183 $16476513

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Current Liabilities

Short-term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-term Debt 869581 1255947

Accounts Payable 1002359 886104

Accrued Salaries and Benefits 274199 257016

Other Current Liabilities 650749 623026

Total Current Liabilities 2796888 3022093

Long-term Debt 5847258 4564255
Other Liabilities 423333 484866

Total Liabilities 9067479 8071214

Shareholders Equity

Shares CHF 1.16 Par Value Authorized 1093303 Shares Conditionally

Authorized 364434 Shares Issued 758447 Shares at December 31 2009
Common Shares $1 Par Value Authorized 1000000 Shares Issued

728689 Shares at December 31 2008 761077 728689

Capital in Excess of Par Value 4642800 4059112

Treasury Shares at Cost 616048 759477
Retained Earnings 4817101 4563335
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss 114742 266761

Weatherford Shareholders Equity 9719672 8324898

Noncontrolling Interests 79032 80401

Total Shareholders Equity 9798704 8405299

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity $18866183 $16476513

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands except per share amounts

Revenues

Products $2921174 $3564636 $2983427

Services 5905759 6035928 4848635

8826933 9600564 7832062

Costs and Expenses

Cost of Products 2311068 2555965 2087296

Cost of Services 4152268 3686495 2970314

Research and Development 194650 192659 169317

Selling General and Administrative Attributable to Segments 1241920 1081165 850359

Corporate General and Administrative 223172 187075 130440

Gain on Sale of Subsidiary _________ 81344 _________

8123078 7622015 6207726

Operating Income 703855 1978549 1624336

Other Income Expense

Interest Expense Net 366748 243679 171281

Other Net 37633 44956 8569

Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes 299474 1689914 1444486

Provision for Income Taxes 19549 249561 332760

Income from Continuing Operations Net of Taxes 279925 1440353 1111726

Loss from Discontinued Operation Net of Taxes
_________ 12928 21369

Net Income 279925 1427425 1090357

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests 26159 34272 19751

Net Income Attributable to Weatherford 253766 $1393153 $1070606

Basic Earnings Per Share Attributable to Weatherford

Income from Continuing Operations 0.35 2.06 1.61

Loss from Discontinued Operation 0.02 0.03

Net Income 0.35 2.04 1.58

Diluted Earnings Per Share Attributable to Weatherford

Income from Continuing Operations 0.35 2.01 1.57

Loss from Discontinued Operation 0.02 0.03

Net Income 0.35 1.99 1.54

Amounts Attributable to Weatherford

Income from Continuing Operations Net of Taxes 253766 $1406081 $1091975

Loss from Discontinued Operation Net of Taxes 12928 21369

Net Income 253766 $1393153 $1070606

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding

Basic 714981 682704 677032

Diluted 723449 698178 695516

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Balance at December 31 2006

Comprehensive Income

Net Income

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment

Defined Benefit Pension Plans Net of Tax

Other Net of Tax

Comprehensive Income

Dividends Paid to Noncontrolling Interests

Purchase of Treasury Shares

Equity Awards Granted Vested and Exercised

Excess Tax Benefit of Share-Based Compensation

Plans

Other

Balance at December 31 2007

Comprehensive Income

Net Income

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment

Deferred Loss on Derivative Instruments

Defined Benefit Pension Plans Net of Tax

Other Net of Tax

Comprehensive Income

Sale of Subsidiary Shares to Noncontrolling

Interests

Dividends Paid to Noncontrolling Interests

Shares Issued for Acquisitions

Equity Awards Granted Vested and Exercised

Excess Tax Benefit of Share-Based Compensation

Plans

Other

Balance at December 31 2008

Comprehensive Income

Net Income

Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment

Defined Benefit Pension Plans Net of Tax

Other Net of Tax

Comprehensive Income

Dividends Paid to Noncontrolling Interests

Shares Issued for Acquisitions

Equity Awards Granted Vested and Exercised

Excess Tax Benefit of Share-Based Compensation

Plans

Other

Balance at December 31 2009

3362 52031

28895

1208
________

727204 3995747

4197

9952

$4642800 $4817101

Total

Noncontrolling Shareholders

Interests Equity

23038 $6197837

1090357

334217

15736

_______
154

1408992

14350

246190

58126

28895

_______
6736

7440046

279925

377313

3580

_______
610

661428

30464
673046

91603

4197

________
6405

_______
$9798704

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Accumulated

Capital In Other

Issued Excess of Par Retained Comprehensive Treasury

Shares Value Earnings Income Loss Shares

In thousands

$723842 $3913613 $2099307 $119153 $681116

1070606

1070606

19751

19751

14350

334217

15736
154

318635

437788

682669

12576

9788
484

704549

246190

2733

371

924202

4888

33327

34272

34272

27156

18903

168817

2331

________ __________
269

3170182

1393153

1393153

38683

1433 102019

10032

52 10003

728689 4059112 4563335

253766

253766

32208 522657

66786

180
________ ________

$761077
_________ _________

1427425

682669

12576

9788
484

722876

27156

18903

130134

101121

10032

7163

8405299

1761

759477

4549

80401266761

377313

3580

610

381503

26159

26159

30464
118181

24817

431 2936

114742 $616048 79032
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating

Activities

Depreciation and Amortization

Gain on Sale of Assets and Businesses Net

Fair Value Adjustments on Contingent Consideration

Loss from Discontinued Operation

Employee Share-Based Compensation Expense

Excess Tax Benefits from Share-Based Compensation

Deferred Income Tax Provision Benefit

Other Net

Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities Net of Effect of Businesses

Acquired

Accounts Receivable

Inventories

Other Current Assets

Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities

Other Net

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities-Continuing Operations

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities-Discontinued Operation

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Businesses Net of Cash Acquired

Capital Expenditures for Property Plant and Equipment for Continuing

Operations

Acquisition of Intellectual Property

Acquisition of Equity Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates

Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses Net

Other Investing Activities

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities-Continuing Operations

Net Cash Provided Used by Investing Activities-Discontinued

Operation

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Borrowings of Repayments on Short-term Debt Net

Borrowings of Long-term Debt

Repayments on Long-term Debt

Purchase of Treasury Shares

Proceeds from Exercise of Stock Options

Excess Tax Benefits from Share-Based Compensation

Proceeds from Interest Rate Derivatives

Other Financing Activities Net

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities-Continuing Operations

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities-Discontinued Operation

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

461239
581981
168140
230596

62715

___________
31104

1110787

__________
6219

__________
1104568

798530

2484163
24079
11568
297285

3021055

11000

1516936 3010055

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

2009 2008 2007

In thousands

279925 1427425 1090357

731808

110326

12928

101416

10032
80692
12587

906697

13841
21073

110359

4197
110326
17507

100205

46030
312950

41277

178751
119466

614322

614322

9695

1569477
34210
26999
123445

1516936

606226

41185

21369

64901

28895
28873

4608

296120
417305

45794
74815

108362
70833

882655

10149

872506

275149

1635041
23035

335220
84476

38500

2222469

10579

2233048

117865

1488934

18171
246190

34192

28895

3896

1401629

1401629

3340

44427

126287

170714

392920
1240300

13714

5721

4197

63544

973

906155

906155

10580

14121

238398

252519

477821

1498874

20541

9942

10032

638
2041

1977531

1977531

4360
67684

170714

238398
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

In February 2009 Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company Weatherford Bermuda

became wholly-owned subsidiary of Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint stock corporation Weath
erford Switzerland for purposes

of changing the Companys place of incorporation from Bermuda to Switzerland

collectively the Transaction Pursuant to the transaction each common share par value U.S $1.00 per share of

Weatherford Bermuda was exchanged for one registered share par value 1.16 Swiss francs CHF per share of

Weatherford Switzerland

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Weatherford International Ltd all majority-

owned subsidiaries all controlled joint ventures and variable interest entities where the Company has determined it

is the primary beneficiary collectively the Company When referring to Weatherford and using phrases such as

we us and our the intent is to refer to Weatherford International Ltd and its subsidiaries as whole or on

regional basis depending on the context in which the statements are made

Investments in affiliates in which we exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies are

accounted for using the equity method All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated

in consolidation

Nature of Operations

We are one of the largest global providers of innovative mechanical solutions technology and services for the

drilling and production sectors of the oil and natural gas industry

Reclassfications

Certain reclassifications have been made to conform prior year financial information to the current period

presentation

Correction of an Immaterial Error in the Financial Statements

We have corrected our historical consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31 2008 for

the impact of an error in accounting for deferred taxes totaling $39 million The result of this correction was an

increase of net income by the same amount This error was identified in 2009 through the operation of our internal

controls over financial reporting as it relates to our tax provision system Using the guidance of Staff Accounting

Bulletin No 99 Materiality and Staff Accounting Bulletin No 108 Considering the Effects of Prior Year

Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements the determination to

correct these consolidated financial statements was made as result of our assessment that these items although

immaterial to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31 2008 would be considered

material to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31 2009

The information included in this Form 10-K sets forth the effects of this correction on the previously reported

financial statements of operations for the year ended December 31 2008
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

The following tables represent the effect of this correction on the Consolidated Statements of Operations for

the year ended December 31 2008

As Previously

Reported Adjustment As Adjusted

In thousands except per share amounts

Provision for taxes 288811 $39250 249561

Net Income Attributable to Weatherford 1366831 39250 1406081

Net Income 1388175 39250 1427425

Net Income Attributable to Weatherford 1353903 39250 1393153

Basic Earnings per
Share Attributable to Weatherford

Income from Continuing Operations 2.00 0.06 2.06

Net Income 1.98 0.06 2.04

Diluted Earnings per Share Attributable to Weatherford

Income from Continuing Operations 1.96 0.05 2.01

Net Income 1.94 0.05 1.99

The following table presents the effect of this correction on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31

2008

As Previously

Reported Adjustments As Adjusted

In thousands

Selected Balance Sheet Data

Deferred Tax Liabilities 228576 $39250 189326

Total Liabilities 8110464 39250 8071214

Retained Earnings 4524085 39250 4563335

Weatherfords Shareholders Equity 8285648 39250 8324898

The correction had no net effect on operating cash flows for the year ended December 31 2008 The following

table presents the effect to the individual line items within operating cash flows on the Consolidated Statements of

Cash Flows for the year ended December 31 2008

As Previously

Reported Adjustment As Adjusted

In thousands

Selected Cash Flow Data

Net Income $1388175 39250 $1427425

Deferred Income Tax Benefit 41442 39250 80692

Discontinued Operation

In June 2007 our management approved plan to sell our oil and gas development and production business

The business was historically included in our North America and Europe/West AfricafFSU segments The results of

operations financial position and cash flows of the business have been reflected in the consolidated financial

statements and notes as discontinued operation for the
years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007 We finalized the

divestiture of the business in 2008

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period

and disclosure of contingent liabilities On an ongoing basis we evaluate our estimates including those related to

uncollectible accounts receivable lower of cost or market value of inventories equity investments intangible assets

and goodwill property plant and equipment income taxes percentage-of-completion accounting for long-term

contracts self-insurance pension and postretirement benefit plans and contingent liabilities We base our estimates

on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circum

stances the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities

not readily apparent from other sources Actual results could differ from those estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash

equivalents

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Accounts receivable are stated at the historical carrying amount net of allowances for uncollectible accounts

We establish an allowance for uncollectible accounts based on specific customer collection issues we have

identified Uncollectible accounts receivable are written off when settlement is reached for an amount less than the

outstanding historical balance or when we determine the balance will not be collected

Major Customers and Credit Risk

Substantially all of our customers are engaged in the energy industry This concentration of customers may

impact our overall exposure to credit risk either positively or negatively in that customers may be similarly affected

by changes in economic and industry conditions We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our customers and do

not generally require collateral in support of our trade receivables We maintain reserves for potential credit losses

and actual losses have historically been within our expectations International sales also present various risks

including risks of war civil disturbances and governmental activities that may limit or disrupt markets restrict the

movement of funds result in the deprivation of contract rights or the taking of property without fair consideration

Most of our international sales however are to large international or national companies Revenue from Petroleos

Mexicanos Pemex accounted for approximately 13% of our revenues during 2009 and is included in our Latin

America segment see Note 19 No other individual customer accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated

revenues During 2008 and 2007 no individual customer accounted for more than 10% of our consolidated

revenues

Inventories

We value our inventories at lower of cost or market using either the first-in first-out FIFO or average cost

methods Cost represents third-party invoice or production cost Production cost includes material labor and

manufacturing overhead

Property Plant and Equipment

We carry our property plant and equipment both owned and under capital lease at cost less accumulated

depreciation The carrying values are based on our estimates and judgments relative to capitalized costs useful lives

and salvage value where applicable We expense maintenance and repairs as incurred We capitalize expenditures

for renewals replacements and improvements We depreciate our fixed assets on straight-line basis over their

estimated useful lives allowing for salvage value where applicable Our depreciation expense for the years ended
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 was $826 million $669 million and $553 million respectively The estimated

useful lives of our major classes of property plant and equipment are as follows

Estimated

Useful Lives

Buildings and leasehold improvements 10-40 years or lease term

Rental and service equipment 2-20
years

Machinery and other 2-12 years

We classify our rig assets as Rental and Service Equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

We test for the impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives on at least an annual

basis Our goodwill impairment test involves comparison of the fair value of each of our reporting units with its

carrying amount Our indefinite-lived asset impairment test involves comparison of the fair value of the intangible

asset and its carrying value Fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows using discount rate adjusted for the

credit risk of the regional reporting unit tested If the fair value is less than the carrying value the asset is considered

impaired The amount of the impairment if any is then determined based on an allocation of the reporting unit fair

values to individual assets and liabilities

Intangible Assets

Our intangible assets excluding goodwill are acquired technology licenses patents customer relationships

and other identifiable intangible assets Intangible assets are amortized on straight-line basis over their estimated

economic lives generally ranging from two to 20 years except for intangible assets with indefinite lives which are

not amortized As many areas of our business rely on patents and proprietary technology we seek patent protection

both inside and outside the U.S for products and methods that appear to have commercial significance We

capitalize patent defense costs when we determine that successful defense is probable

Long-Lived Assets

We review our long-lived assets to determine whether any events or changes in circumstances indicate the

carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable Factors that might indicate potential impairment may

include but are not limited to significant decreases in the market value of the long-lived asset significant change

in the long-lived assets physical condition change in industry conditions or reduction in cash flows associated

with the use of the long-lived asset If these or other factors indicate the carrying amount of the asset may not be

recoverable we determine whether an impairment has occurred through analysis of undiscounted cash flow of the

asset at the lowest level that has an identifiable cash flow If an impairment has occurred we recognize loss for the

difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset We measure the fair value of the asset using

market prices or in the absence of market prices based on an estimate of discounted cash flows Cash flows are

generally discounted using an interest rate commensurate with weighted average cost of capital for similarasset

Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

We have defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans covering certain of our employees

Costs of the plan are charged to income and consist of several components known collectively as net periodic

pension cost which are based on various actuarial assumptions regarding future experience of the plans Amounts

recorded for these defined benefit plans reflect estimates related to future interest rates investment rates of return

employee turnover and wage increases We review all assumptions and estimates on an ongoing basis As of

December 31 2009 and 2008 we have recognized the overfunded or underfunded status of our plans as an asset or

liability in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Research and Development Expenditures

Research and development expenditures are expensed as incurred

Environmental Expenditures

Environmental expenditures that relate to the remediation of an existing condition caused by past operation

and that do not contribute to future revenues are expensed Liabilities for these expenditures are recorded when it is

probable that obligations have been incurred and costs can be reasonably estimated Estimates are based on

available facts and technology enacted laws and regulations and our prior experience in remediation of contam

inated sites

Insurance

We are self-insured up to certain retention limits for general liability vehicle liability group medical and for

workers compensation claims for certain of our employees The amounts in excess of the self-insured levels are

fully insured up to limit Self-insurance accruals are based on claims filed and an estimate for significant claims

incurred but not reported

Derivative Financial Instruments

We record derivative instruments at fair value in the balance sheet as either an asset or liability Changes in

the fair value of derivatives are recorded each period in current earnings or other comprehensive income depending

on whether the derivative is designated as part of hedge relationship and if so the type of hedge transaction Any

gain or loss associated with the termination of an interest rate swap that was accounted for as hedge instrument is

deferred and amortized as an adjustment to interest expense over the remaining debt term

Foreign Currency

Results of operations for our foreign subsidiaries with functional currencies other than the U.S dollar are

translated using average exchange rates during the period Assets and liabilities of these foreign subsidiaries are

translated using the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet dates and the resulting translation adjustments are

included as Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income component of shareholders equity

For our non-U.S subsidiaries where the functional currency is the U.S dollar inventories property plant and

equipment and other non-monetary assets and liabilities together with their related elements of expense or income

are translated at historical exchange rates All other assets and liabilities are translated at current exchange rates All

other revenues and expenses are translated at average exchange rates Translation gains and losses for these

subsidiaries are recognized in our results of operations during the period incurred The gain or loss related to

individual foreign currency transactions are included in results of operations when incurred These currency gains

and losses are included in Other Net in our Consolidated Statements of Income

Employee Share-Based Compensation

We account for all share-based payment awards including shares issued under employee stock purchase plans

stock options restricted stock and stock appreciation rights by measuring the fair value of employee stock-based

awards granted at the grant date and recognizing it as an expense over the service period which is usually the

vesting period

Income Taxes

Income taxes have been provided based upon the tax laws and rates in the countries in which our operations are

conducted and income is earned Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and

their respective tax bases valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is recorded when it is more likely than not

that some or all of the benefit from the deferred tax asset will not be realized The impact of an uncertain tax position

taken or expected to be taken on an income tax return are recognized in the financial statements at the largest

amount that is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the relevant taxing authority

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when all of the following criteria have been met evidence of an arrangement exists

delivery to and acceptance by the customer has occurred the price to the customer is fixed or determinable and

collectability is reasonably assured

Both contract drilling and pipeline service revenue is contractual by nature and both are day-rate based

contracts We recognize revenue for these contracts based on the criteria outlined above which is consistent with

our other product offerings

From time to time we may receive revenues for preparation and mobilization of equipment and personnel In

connection with new drilling contracts revenues earned and incremental costs incurred directly related to

preparation and mobilization are deferred and recognized over the primary contract term of the project using

the straight-line method Costs of relocating equipment without contracts to more promising market areas are

expensed as incurred Demobilization fees received are recognized along with any related expenses upon

completion of contracts

We incur rebillable expenses including shipping and handling third-party inspection and repairs and custom

and duties We recognize the revenue associated with these rebillable expenses as Products Revenues and all related

costs as Cost of Products in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income

Percentage of Completion

Revenue from long-term contracts primarily for our integrated project management services is reported on

the percentage-of-completion method of accounting This method of accounting requires us to calculate contract

profit to be recognized in each reporting period for each contract based upon our projections of future outcomes

which include

estimates of the total cost to complete the project

estimates of project schedule and completion date

estimates of the extent of progress toward completion and

amounts of any change orders or claims included in revenue

Measurements of
progress are generally output based related to physical progress

At the outset of each

contract we prepare detailed analysis of our estimated cost to complete the project Risks related to service

delivery usage productivity and other factors are considered in the estimation process We periodically evaluate

the estimated costs claims change orders and percentage of completion at the contract level The recording of

profits and losses on long-term contracts requires an estimate of the total profit or loss over the life of each contract

This estimate requires consideration of total contract value change orders and claims less costs incurred and

estimated costs to complete Anticipated losses on contracts are recorded in full in the period in which they become

evident Profits are recorded based upon the total estimated contract profit times the current percentage complete for

the contract
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Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share for all periods presented equals net income divided by the weighted average number

of our shares outstanding during the period Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the

weighted average number of our shares outstanding during the period adjusted for the dilutive effect of our stock

option and restricted share plans and our outstanding warrants The diluted earnings per share calculation excludes

seven million potential shares for the year
ended December 31 2009 and six million potential shares for the year

ended December 31 2008 due to their antidilutive effect Antidilutive potential shares were not significant for the

year ended December 31 2007

We adopted new accounting guidance related to determining whether instruments granted in share-based

payment transactions are participating securities effective January 2009 Under this guidance unvested share-

based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents whether paid or

unpaid are participating securities and are included in the computation of earnings per share following the two-

class method Accordingly we now include our restricted share awards that contain the right to vote and receive

dividends in the computation of both basic and diluted earnings per
share This guidance has not been applied to

prior periods as the impact is immaterial

In 2008 our Board of Directors approved two-for-one share split of our shares effected through share

dividend Shareholders of record on May 2008 were entitled to the dividend which was distributed on May 23

2008 All share and option amounts included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and related

notes reflect the effect of the share split

The following reconciles basic and diluted weighted average of shares outstanding

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands

Basic weighted average
shares outstanding 714981 682704 677032

Dilutive effect of

Warrants 1858 5720 5570

Stock option and restricted share plans 6610 9754 12914

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 723449 698178 695516

New Accounting Pronouncements

Effective July 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Boards FASB Accounting Standards Cod

ification ASCbecame the single official source of authoritative nongovernmental generally accepted account

ing principles GAAP in the U.S The historical GAAP hierarchy was eliminated and the ASC became the only

level of authoritative GAAP other than guidance issued by the SEC Our accounting policies were not affected by

the conversion to the ASC However any references to specific accounting standards in the footnotes to our

consolidated financial statements have been changed to refer to the appropriate section of the ASC when necessary

Effective January 2009 we adopted new standard for the accounting and reporting of ownership interests

in subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent

and to the noncontrolling interest changes in parents ownership interest and the valuation of retained

noncontrolling equity investments when subsidiary is deconsolidated The statement also establishes reporting

requirements that provide sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interest of the

parent and the interest of the noncontrolling owners This standard changed the accounting for and reporting of

minority interest now called noncontrolling interest in the consolidated financial statements Upon adoption

certain prior period amounts were reclassified to conform to the current period financial statement presentation
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Business Combinations

Effective January 2009 we adopted new standard on accounting for business combinations This standard

established principles and requirements for how company recognizes assets acquired liabilities assumed

contingencies and contingent consideration measured at fair value at the acquisition date The statement also

establishes disclosure requirements which will enable users to evaluate the nature and financial effect of the

business combination

We have acquired businesses we feel are important to our long-term growth strategy Results of operations for

acquisitions are included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income from the date of acquisition The

balances included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets related to recent acquisitions are based on preliminary

information and are subject to change when final asset valuations are obtained and the potential for liabilities has

been evaluated Purchase price is allocated to the net assets acquired based upon their estimated fair values at the

date of acquisition

In July 2009 we acquired the Oilfield Services Division OFSof TNK-BP In this transaction we acquired

drilling well workover and cementing services operations in West Siberia East Siberia and the Volga-Urals region

We issued 24.3 million shares valued at approximately $450 million and expect to pay $45 million in additional cash

consideration related to working capital adjustments during the first quarter of 2010 In addition if TNK-BP sells

the shares it received in consideration for the transaction for price less than $18.50 per share prior to June 29 2010

we are obligated to pay TNK-BP additional consideration in an amount equal to the difference between the price at

which the shares were sold and $18.50 We will pay any additional consideration in cash or at our option in certain

instances in additional shares following such date We made preliminary allocation of the purchase price as of the

date of the acquisition We will continue to adjust the allocations until final valuation of the assets and liabilities are

completed

The new accounting guidance adopted on business combinations requires contingent consideration to be

recognized at its acquisition date fair value Based on the terms of the arrangement we classified the contingent

consideration as liability This new guidance requires such liabilities to be remeasured to fair value at each

reporting date until the contingency is resolved with changes in fair value being recognized in earnings We
estimated the fair value of the contingent consideration for the OFS acquisition at the date of acquisition to be

liability of $84 million This liability was estimated to have fair value of $63 million at December 31 2009

resulting in the recognition of $21 million gain during 2009 This gain was recorded in the Selling General and

Administrative Attributable to Segments line in the Consolidated Statements of Income The valuation of the

contingent consideration was determined using lattice-based model incorporating the term of the contingency the

price of our shares over the relevant periods and the volatility of our stock price

In November 2008 we acquired group of affiliated companies in Latin America which provide project

management services drilling fluids contract drilling and environmental services in that region Consideration for

the transaction totaled approximately $160 million which was comprised of approximately six million shares

valued at approximately $65 million non-cash consideration of approximately $75 million and cash of approx

imately $20 million An additional $65 million in cash consideration for this acquisition is contingent on the

occurrence of future events and circumstances and will be recorded by us when and if these events occur

In August 2008 we acquired International Logging Inc ILl provider of surface logging and formation

and evaluation and drilling related services for approximately $400 million We allocated approximately $140 mil

lion of the purchase price to intangible assets See Note

We also acquired various other businesses during the
years

ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 for cash

consideration of approximately $54 million $380 million and $253 million respectively In addition other 2009

acquisitions included the issuance of approximately 11 million shares valued at $222 million and other 2008

acquisitions included the issuance of approximately two million shares valued at approximately $65 million
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Equity Investment Acquisition

We acquired 33% ownership interest in Premier Business Solutions PBS in June 2007 for approximately

$330 million PBS conducts business in Russia and is an electric submersible pump manufacturer In January 2008

we sold our electrical submersible pumps ESP product line to PBS and received combination of cash and an

additional equity investment in PBS in consideration of the sale This transaction increased our ownership

percentage to approximately 40% In September 2009 we converted $38 million note plus accrued interest

due from PBS for an additional equity investment Our ownership percentage was unchanged as the other joint

venture partner also converted its notes receivable for an additional equity investment

Discontinued Operation

In June 2007 our management approved plan to sell our oil and gas development and production business

We finalized the divestiture of the business in 2008 The results of operations financial position and cash flows of

the business have been reflected in the consolidated financial statements as discontinued operation for the years

ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Operating results of the oil and gas development and production business were as follows

Year Ended

December 31

2008 2007

In thousands

Revenues 556 2299

Loss Before Income Taxes $25811 $30303

Benefit for Income Taxes 12883 8934

Loss from Discontinued Operation Net of Taxes $12928 $21369

The 2008 loss includes charges of approximately $21 million associated with settlement of legal dispute

regarding the business These charges were partially offset by an $11 million gain net of taxes recognized upon the

finalization of the divestiture The 2007 loss includes approximately $17 million net of tax for asset impairment

charges related to write-downs of the operations U.S properties In addition we completed the sale of the

operations international properties in November 2007 and recorded gain of approximately $5 million net of tax

in connection with the sale

Cash Flow Information

Gain on Sales of Assets and Businesses Net

Gain on sales of assets and businesses net for the year ended December 31 2008 of $110 million includes

$19 million write-off of fixed assets resulting from our exit from sanctioned countries an $81 million gain

recognized in connection with the sale of 50% interest in subsidiary we control to Qatar Petroleum and

$48 million in gains related to our divestiture of other assets and businesses

Non-cash Activities

We issued approximately 35 million shares valued at $673 million in connection with acquisitions during the

year ended December 31 2009 and eight million shares valued at approximately $130 million in connection with

acquisitions during the year ended December 31 2008 There were no shares issued in connection with acquisitions

during 2007

During the year ended December 31 2009 there was non-cash investing activities of approximately

$18 million related to stock received in exchange for our sale of business During the year ended December 31
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2008 there were non-cash investing activities of approximately $75 million related to our consideration for an

acquisition During the year ended December 31 2007 there was non-cash investing activity of $20 million

related to note received in exchange for our sale of business

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for interest and income taxes net of refunds was as follows

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands

Interest paid net of capitalized interest $331862 $233468 $184093

Income taxes paid net of refunds 389652 271418 372025

Inventories

Inventories by category were as follows

December 31

2009 2008

In thousands

Raw materials components and supplies 328253 346258

Work in process 115564 152864

Finished goods 1795945 1589220

$2239762 $2088342

Work in
process and finished goods inventories include the cost of materials labor and plant overhead

Goodwill

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment on at least an annual basis We perform our annual goodwill impairment

test as of October Our 2009 impairment test indicated goodwill was not impaired We will continue to test our

goodwill annually as of October unless events occur or circumstances change between annual tests that would

more likely than not reduce the fair value of reporting unit below its canying amount

Our operating segments consist of the following reporting units

North America United States and ii Canada

Middle EastlNorth Africa/Asia Middle East/North Africa and ii Asia Pacific

Europe/West Africa/FSU Europe ii West Africa and iii FSU

Latin America
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the two years ended December 31 2009 were as follows

Middle Eastf Europe/

North North Africa/ West Africa/ Latin

America Asia FSU America Total

In thousands

Balance at December 31 2007 $1918411 $604821 678433 $156825 $3358490

Acquisitions 86037 99456 169941 155098 510532

Disposals 4380 1435 27 5842

Purchase price and other

adjustments 5299 15847 5950 7766 3168

Foreign currency
translation 191657 12872 117959 12945 335433

Balance at December 31 2008 1813710 675558 734930 306717 3530915

Acquisitions 146504 245571 392075

Disposals 6648 2659 534 9841

Purchase price and other

adjustments 14000 10672 8554 16 33210

Foreign currency translation 129983 15325 56522 7916 209746

Balance at December 31 2009 $2097549 $698896 $1045577 $314083 $4156105

Other Intangible Assets Net

The components of intangible assets were as follows

December 31 2009 December 31 2008

Gross Gross

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net

In thousands

Acquired technology 410115 $109134 $300981 $377393 67281 $310112

Licenses 259930 101884 158046 243741 87624 156117

Patents 210702 68086 142616 172754 58410 114344

Customer relationships and

contracts 160556 35818 124738 98428 19614 78814

Other 96535 44130 52405 78024 35928 42096

$1137838 $359052 $778786 $970340 $268857 $701483

Intangibles obtained through acquisitions are initially recorded at estimated fair value based on preliminary

information Final valuations are obtained within one year
from the date of acquisition During 2008 we allocated

value to the intangible assets acquired in the acquisition of ILl based on valuation performed by third party We

allocated approximately $100 million to acquired technology and approximately $40 million to customer rela

tionships The acquired technology and customer relationships are being amortized over estimated useful lives

ranging from three to 15 years

We have trademarks that are considered to have indefinite lives as we have the ability and intent to renew them

indefinitely These trademarks had carrying value of $20 million and $16 million as of December 31 2009 and

December 31 2008 respectively and are included in the Other caption in the table above
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Amortization expense was $81 million $63 million and $54 million for the years ended December 31 2009
2008 and 2007 respectively Future estimated amortization expense for the carrying amount of intangible assets as

of December 31 2009 is expected to be as follows in thousands

2010 $87033

2011 84470

2012 81496

2013 78585

2014 72294

Short-term Borrowings and Current Portion of Long-term Debt

December 31

2009 2008

In thousands

Revolving credit facility $798500 $1068000

Commercial paper program 127884

Other short-term bank loans 53007 44205

Total short-term borrowings 851507 1240089

Current portion of long-term debt 18074 15858

Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term debt $869581 $1255947

Weighted average interest rate on short-term borrowings outstanding at

end of year 1.39% 1.07%

We maintain various revolving credit facilities with syndicates of banks that can be used for combination of

borrowings support for our commercial
paper program and issuances of letters of credit At December 31 2009

these facilities allow for an aggregate availability of $1.8 billion and mature in May 2011 The weighted average

interest rate on outstanding borrowings of these facilities at December 31 2009 was 1.3% There were $72 million

in outstanding letters of credit under these facilities at December 31 2009

These borrowing facilities require us to maintain debt-to-capitalization ratio of less than 60% and contain

other covenants and representations customary for an investment-grade commercial credit We are in compliance

with these covenants at December 31 2009

We have $1.5 billion commercial
paper program under which we may from time to time issue short-term

unsecured notes The commercial paper program is supported by our revolving credit facilities There was no

commercial paper outstanding at December 31 2009

We have short-term borrowings with various domestic and international institutions pursuant to unconimitted

facilities At December 31 2009 we had $53 million in short-term borrowings under these arrangements with

weighted average interest rate of 2.7% In addition we had $210 million of letters of credit and bid and performance

bonds under these unconmiitted facilities

The carrying value of our short-term borrowings approximates their fair value as of December 31 2009
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10 Long-term Debt

We have issued various senior notes all of which rank equally with our existing and future senior unsecured

indebtedness have semi-annual interest payments and no sinking fund requirements Our long-term debt consisted

of the following

6.625% Senior Notes due 2011

5.95% Senior Notes due 2012

5.15% Senior Notes due 2013

4.95% Senior Notes due 2013

5.50% Senior Notes due 2016

6.35% Senior Notes due 2017

6.00% Senior Notes due 2018

9.625% Senior Notes due 2019

6.50% Senior Notes due 2036

6.80% Senior Notes due 2037

7.00% Senior Notes due 2038

9.875% Senior Notes due 2039

Foreign bank and other debt denominated in foreign currencies

Other

Less amounts due in one year

Long-term debt

December 31

2009 2008

In thousands

352872 354286

599380 599153

511273 510833

253203 253959

359585 348859

599615 599576

497782 497512

1033818

595880 595824

298192 298171

498376 498318

247118

12933 16046

5305 7576

5865332 4580113

18074 15858

$5847258 $4564255

The following is summary of scheduled long-term debt maturities by year In thousands

18074

366669

612138

756804

6139

4105508

$5865332

In January 2009 we completed $1.25 billion long-term debt offering comprised of $1 billion of

9.625% Senior Notes due in 2019 9.625% Senior Notesand ii $250 million of 9.875% Senior Notes due in

2039 9.875% Senior Notes

In March 2008 we completed $1.5 billion long-term debt offering comprised of $500 million of

5.15% Senior Notes due in 2013 5.15% Senior Notes ii $500 million of 6.00% Senior Notes due 2018

6.00% Senior Notes and iii $500 million of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2038 7.00% Senior Notes

In June 2007 we completed $1.5 billion long-term debt offering comprised of $600 million of

5.95% Senior Notes due 2012 5.95% Senior Notes ii $600 million of 6.35% Senior Notes due 2017

6.35% Senior Notes and iii $300 million of 6.80% Senior Notes due 2037 6.80% Senior Notes

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Thereafter
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The weighted average effective interest rates on our Senior Notes for 2009 was 6.64% The effective rate was

determined after giving consideration to the effect of interest rate derivatives accounted for as hedges and the

amortization of any discounts See Note 12

11 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments Measured and Recognized at Fair Value

On January 2008 we adopted new accounting guidance on fair value measurements The new guidance

defines fair value establishes framework for measuring fair value under U.S generally accepted accounting

principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements The new guidance was effective for us

beginning January 2008 for certain assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis The new

guidance was effective for non-financial assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed at fair value on nonrecurring

basis beginning January 2009

The accounting guidance establishes valuation hierarchy for disclosure of the inputs to the valuations used to

measure fair value This hierarchy prioritizes the inputs into three broad levels as follows Level inputs are quoted

prices unadjusted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level inputs are quoted prices for similar

assets and liabilities in active markets or inputs that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or

indirectly through market corroboration for substantially the full term of the financial instrument Level inputs

are unobservable inputs based upon our own assumptions used to measure assets and liabilities at fair value

financial asset or liabilitys classification within the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest level of input that is

significant to the fair value measurement

The following table presents our non-derivative assets and liabilities that are measured and recognized at fair

value on recurring basis classified under the appropriate level of the fair value hierarchy as of December 31 2009

and 2008

December 31 2009

Level Level Level Total

In thousands

Other Assets

Other investments $40822 $40822

Other Current Liabilities

Contingent consideration on acquisition See Note 62763 62763

December 31 2008

Level Level Level Total

In thousands

Other Assets

Other investments $30611 $30611
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The following table provides summary of changes in fair value of our Level financial liability as of

December 31 2009 and 2008

Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008

In thousands

Balance at beginning of period

Contingent consideration on acquisition See Note 83836

Unrealized gain on contingent consideration on acquisition included in earnings 21073

Balance at end of period
62763

The $21 million gain recorded during 2009 is included in the Selling General and Administrative Attributable

to Segments line in the Consolidated Statements of Income

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments

Our other financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents foreign currency exchange contracts

interest rate swaps accounts receivable notes receivable accounts payable and short and long-term debt With the

exception of long-term debt the carrying value of these financial instruments approximates their fair value

The fair value of outstanding debt fluctuates with changes in applicable interest rates Fair value will exceed

carrying value when the current market interest rate is lower than the interest rate at which the debt was originally

issued The fair value of companys debt is measure of its current value under present market conditions It does

not impact the financial statements under current accounting rules The fair value of our long-term debt was

established based on quoted market prices

The fair value and carrying value of the our long-term debt is as follows

December 31

2009 2008

In thousands

Fair value $6285129 $3991879

Carrying value 5847258 4564255

12 Derivative Instruments

On January 2009 we adopted new accounting guidance regarding the disclosure of derivative and hedging

activities Entities are now required to provide enhanced disclosures about how and why they use derivative

instruments how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for and how derivative instruments

and related hedged items affect an entitys financial position financial performance and cash flows

We are exposed to market risk from changes in foreign currency and changes in interest rates From time to

time we may enter into derivative financial instrument transactions to manage or reduce our market risk but we do

not enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes We manage our debt portfolio to achieve an overall

desired position of fixed and floating rates and we may employ interest rate swaps as tool to achieve that goal The

major risks from interest rate derivatives include changes in the interest rates affecting the fair value of such

instruments potential increases in interest expense
due to market increases in floating interest rates and the

creditworthiness of the counterparties in such transactions In light of events in the global credit markets and the

potential impact of these events on the liquidity of the banking industry we continue to monitor the creditworthiness

of our counterparties which are multinational commercial banks

The fair values of all our outstanding derivative instruments are determined using model with Level inputs

including quoted market prices for contracts with similar terms and maturity dates
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Interest Rate Swaps

We use interest rate swaps to help mitigate exposures related to interest rate movements Amounts received

upon termination of the swaps accounted for as fair value hedges represent the fair value of the agreements at the

time of termination and are recorded as an adjustment to the carrying value of the related debt These amounts are

being amortized as reduction to interest expense over the remaining term of the debt

In August 2009 we entered into interest rate swap agreements to pay variable interest rate and receive fixed

interest rate with an aggregate notional amount of $1.2 billion against our 5.15% 5.50% and 9.625% Senior Notes

These swaps were designed as fair value hedges and were terminated in December 2009 As result of these

terminations we received cash settlement of $53 million In addition we received $11 million in interest

payments while the interest rate swaps were open The gains associated with these interest rate swap terminations

have been deferred and will be amortized over the remaining term of our 5.15% 5.50% and 9.625% Senior Notes

In December 2008 we entered into an interest rate swap agreement on an aggregate notional amount of

$150 million against one of our revolving credit facilities This agreement matured in June 2009

Upon completion of the long-term debt offering in March 2008 we entered into interest rate swap agreements

with an aggregate notional amount of $500 million against our 5.15% Senior Notes These swaps were designed as

fair value hedges and were terminated in December 2008 As result of these terminations we received cash

proceeds net of accrued interest of $12 million The gain associated with these interest rate swap terminations has

been deferred and will be amortized over the remaining term of the 5.15% Senior Notes

We have no interest rate swaps outstanding at December 31 2009 As of December 31 2009 and 2008 we had

net unamortized gains of $68 million and $21 million respectively associated with interest rate swap terminations

Cash Flow Hedges

In March 2008 we entered into interest rate derivative instruments with notional amount of $500 million to

hedge projected exposures to interest rates in anticipation of the 7.00% Senior Notes issued in March 2008 Those

hedges were terminated at the time of the issuance We paid cash settlement of $13 million at termination and the

loss on these hedges is being amortized from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income to interest expense over

the life of the 7.00% Senior Notes

As of December 31 2009 we had net unamortized losses of $13 million associated with our cash flow hedge

terminations

Other Derivative Instruments

As of December 31 2009 and 2008 we had several foreign currency forward and option contracts with

notional amounts aggregating to $1062 million and $503 million respectively which were entered into to hedge

exposure to currency fluctuations in various foreign currencies including but not limited to the British pound

sterling the Canadian dollar the euro and the Norwegian krone The total estimated fair value of these contracts at

December 31 2009 resulted in net liability of approximately $9 million and at December 31 2008 resulted in

liability of approximately $2 million These derivative instruments were not designated as hedges and the changes

in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in Other Net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of

Income

We have cross-currency swaps between the U.S dollar and Canadian dollar to hedge certain exposures to the

Canadian dollar At December 31 2009 and 2008 we had notional amounts outstanding of $263 million and

$280 million respectively The total estimated fair value of these contracts at December 31 2009 and 2008 resulted

in liability of $26 million and an asset of $1 million respectively These derivative instruments were not

designated as hedges and the changes in fair value of the contracts are recorded each period in Other Net in the

accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income
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The fair values of outstanding derivative instruments are summarized as follows

Derivative assets not designated as hedges

Foreign exchange contracts

Cross-currency swap contracts

Derivative liabilities not designated as hedges

Foreign exchange contracts

Cross-currency swap contracts

Accumulated other comprehensive income is comprised of the following

For the Years Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands

$1903l7

62444

_______ 14000 _______

________
$266761

________

Changes in our Issued and Treasury shares during the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 were as

follows

Balance at December 31 2006

Purchase of treasury shares

Equity awards granted vested and exercised

Other

Balance at December 31 2007

Shares issued for acquisitions

Equity awards granted vested and exercised

Other

Balance at December 31 2008

Shares issued for acquisitions

Equity awards granted vested and exercised

Other

Balance at December 31 2009

Issued Treasury

In thousands

723842 44264

10224

3362 5502

32

727204 49018

7709

1433 924

_______
18

40367

5398

6030

_______
138

_______
28801

At December 31 2009 we are authorized to issue 1093303 registered shares and conditionally authorized to

issue 364434 registered shares

Classifications

December 31

2009 2008

In thousands

9831 Other Current Assets

1455 Other Assets

18939 2233 Other Current Liabilities

26170 Other Liabilities

13 Shareholders Equity

Cumulative translation adjustment

Cumulative defined benefit plan adjustments

Deferred loss on derivative instruments net of amortization

$188768

60636

13390

$114742

$495935

56239

1908

$437788

52

728689

29578

Authorized Shares

180

758447
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Share Repurchase Program

We have an approved share repurchase program under which we can spend up to $1 billion to repurchase our

outstanding shares We purchased approximately 10 million shares during the year ended December 31 2007 at an

average price per share of $24.08 under this program No shares were repurchased during the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 As of December 31 2009 we had $205 million available under this authorization to

repurchase shares

Warrants

We have outstanding warrants to purchase up to 12.9 million of our shares at price of $15.00 per share The

warrants remains exercisable until February 28 2012 and are subject to adjustment for changes in our capital

structure or the issuance of dividends in cash securities or property Upon exercise by the holders settlement may
occur through physical delivery net share settlement net cash settlement or combination of those choices The net

cash settlement option upon exercise is at our sole discretion

14 Share-Based Compensation Plans

Incentive Plan

The Weatherford International Ltd 2006 Omnibus Incentive Plan Omnibus Plan provides for awards of

options stock appreciation rights restricted share awards RSA restricted share units RSU performance

share awards performance unit awards other share-based awards and cash-based awards to any employee or our

non-employee directors To date we have granted stock options RSAs and RSUs under the Omnibus Plan The

provisions of each award vary based on the type of award granted and are specified by the Compensation Committee

of our Board of Directors Those awards such as stock options that are based on specific contractual term will be

granted with term not to exceed ten years Upon grant of an RSA the participant has the rights of shareholder

including but not limited to the right to vote such shares and the right to receive any dividends paid on such shares

Recipients of RSU awards will not have the rights of shareholder until such date as the shares are issued or

transferred to the recipient As of December 31 2009 approximately two million shares were available for grant

under the Omnibus Plan All stock options RSA and RSU awards have been made from the Omnibus Plan since its

approval in 2006 The terms of the awards granted under the prior plans are consistent with the awards issued under

the Omnibus plan

Share-Based Compensation Expense and Activity

We recognized the following employee share-based compensation expense during the years ended Decem

ber 31 2009 2008 and 2007

Year Ended

December 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands

Share-based compensation $110359 $101416 $64901

Related tax benefit 38626 35496 22715

The estimated fair value of our stock options is expensed over their vesting period Our stock options generally

vest after one to four years following the date of grant We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine

the fair value of stock options awarded as of the date of grant There were no stock options granted in 2009 or 2008

The expected volatility of stock options granted in 2007 was determined using blended rate based upon implied

volatility calculated on actively traded options on our shares and upon the historical volatility of our shares The

risk-free interest rate is determined based upon the interest rate on U.S Treasury Bill with term equal to the

expected life of the stock option at the time of grant In estimating the expected lives of the stock options we have
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relied primarily on actual experience with previous stock option grants The expected life is less than the term of the

stock option as holders in our experience exercise or forfeit the stock options during the term of the stock option

Year Ended

December 31 2007

Expected volatility
1.0%

Expected dividends

Expected term in years 5.0

Risk-free rate 4.5%

summary of option activity for the year ended December 31 2009 is presented below

Weighted-

Weighted- Average

Average Remaining Aggregate

Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

Options Price Term Value

In years In thousands

Outstanding at December 31 2008 13995269 $8.14

Granted

Exercised 1147233 4.99

Forfeited _________

Outstanding at December 31 2009 12848036 8.42 5.08 $124787

Vested or Expected to Vest at December 31 2009 12848036 8.42 5.08 124787

Exercisable at December 31 2009 12308386 7.89 5.02 124787

Stock options are granted with an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair market value of our shares at

the time of grant The weighted-average grant date fair value of stock options granted during 2007 was $7.16 There

were no stock options granted during 2009 or 2008 The intrinsic value of stock options exercised during 20092008

and 2007 was $18 million $46 million and $110 million respectively As of December 31 2009 there was

$2 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to our unvested stock options which is expected to be

recognized over weighted-average period of one year

RSAs and RSUs vest based on continued employment generally over two to five-year period The fair value

of RSAs and RSUs is determined based on the closing price of our shares on the date of grant The total fair value

less assumed forfeitures is expensed over the vesting period summary of RSAs and RSUs activity for the year

ended December 31 2009 is presented below

Weighted.Average Weighted-Average
Grant Date Grant Date

RSA Fair Value RSU Fair Value

Non-Vested at December 31 2008 7378848 $26.16 6112874 $27.40

Granted 3430302 12.74 3435614 14.60

Vested 3970188 20.31 2623354 21.94

Forfeited 296977 25.86 632650 23.99

Non-Vested at December 31 2009 6541985 22.84 6292484 23.20

The weighted-average grant date fair value of RSAs and RSUs granted during the years ended 2009 2008 and

2007 was $13.67 $32.55 and $25.42 respectively The total fair value of RSAs and RSUs vested during the years

ended 2009 2008 and 2007 was $99 million $40 million and $156 million respectively As of December 31 2009

there was $217 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested RSAs and RSUs which is

expected to be recognized over weighted-average period of two years
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Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

Under our Executive Deferred Compensation Stock Ownership Plan the EDC Plan portion of the

compensation for certain key employees including officers and employee directors can be deferred for payment

after retirement or termination of employment We established grantor trust to fund the benefits under the EDC

Plan The funds provided to such trust are invested by an independent trustee in shares of our stock which are

purchased by the trustee on the open market The assets of the trust are available to satisfy the claims of all our

general creditors in the event of bankruptcy or insolvency Accordingly the shares held by the trust and our liability

under the EDC Plan are included in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as Treasury Shares Effective

December 31 2008 we suspended the EDC Plan While the plan is suspended no new participants may join the

plan and no further deferrals of compensation or matching contributions will be made under the plan unless and

until our Board of Directors determines otherwise

15 Retirement and Employee Benefit Plans

We have defined contribution plans covering certain employees Contribution expenses related to these plans

totaled $36 million $32 million and $29 million in 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Effective for the year ended December 31 2009 we adopted an update to existing accounting standards that

amends the requirements for employers disclosures about plan assets for defined benefit pension and other

postretirement plans The objectives of this update are to provide users of financial statements with an under

standing of how investment allocation decisions are made the major categories of assets held by the plans the

inputs and valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of plan assets significant concentration of risk within

the companys plan assets and for fair value measurements determined using significant unobservable inputs

reconciliation of changes between the beginning and ending balances

We have defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans covering certain U.S and international

employees Plan benefits are generally based on factors such as age compensation levels and years of service We have

supplemental executive retirement plan SERP which provides pension benefits to certain executives upon

retirement This plan is nonqualified unfunded retirement plan and in order to meet our future benefit obligations

under the SERP we maintain life insurance policies on the lives of the participants These policies are not included as

plan assets nor in the funded status amounts in the table below We are the sole owner and beneficiary of such policies

The changes in benefit obligations were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008

United United

States International States International

In thousands

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $121922 $143408 $115585 $189193

Adjustment to beginning of year
benefit

obligation1 34139
Service cost 3085 6964 2879 13557

Interest cost 7805 7195 6017 9905

Plan participants contributions 227 3547
Amendments 30244 553
Curtailments 1341 176
Settlements 12881 12001 2116
Actuarial gainIloss 4312 7273 10691 22099

Currency fluctuations 16871 43060
Benefits paid 1123 2391 1249 4966
Benefit obligation at end of

year $143399 $130686 $121922 $143408

See note following change in plan assets
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The changes in plan assets were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008

United United

States International States International

In thousands

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 7096 96593 10518 $142919

Adjustment to beginning of year fair value of plan

assets1 34139

Actual return on plan assets 1715 8212 2816 23760

Employer contribution 341 8383 535 14408

Plan participants contributions 227 3547

Settlements 1984

Currency fluctuations 12140 34123

Benefits paid 976 1863 1141 4414

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 8176 89553 7096 96593

Funded status $135223 $41133 $114826 $46815

Effective January 2009 our disclosures for one of our international plans reflect the defined benefit related

amounts only In previous years the plan calculations included both the defined benefit obligations and assets

and the defined contribution obligations and assets as the plan is not formally divided In an effort to provide

clarity to the defined benefit obligation specifically we requested that the actuary begin to capture the data

separately starting in 2009 As result the defined contribution obligation and assets were carved out of the

disclosure as shown above and only the true defined benefit obligations and assets remain In addition the

expense shown in the defined benefit disclosure for the year ended December 31 2009 is only the defined

benefit related expense
for this plan and the defined contribution related expense for this plan is disclosed with

our other sponsored defined contribution plans at the beginning of this footnote

The amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008

United United

States International States International

In thousands

Noncurrent assets 4526

Current liabilities 10886 542 8671 494

Noncurrent liabilities 124337 45117 106155 46321
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Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income that have not yet been recognized as components of net

periodic benefit cost were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008

United United

States International States International

In thousands

Net loss $41113 $10903 $57888 $20796

Net prior service costs credit 40631 811 15358 755
Net transition asset 16 20

Total accumulated other comprehensive income $81744 $10076 $73246 $20021

The accumulated benefit obligation for defined benefit pension plans was $104 million and $79 million at

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively for the U.S plans and $116 million and $129 million at December 31
2009 and 2008 respectively for the international plans

The projected benefit obligation accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for the pension

plans with projected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets or accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan

assets as of December 31 2009 and 2008 were as follows

2009 2008

United United

States International States International

In thousands

Plans with projected benefit obligation in

excess of plan assets

Projected benefit obligation $143399 $100953 $121922 $143156

Fair value of plan assets 8176 55295 7096 96162

Plans with accumulated benefit obligation in

excess of plan assets

Accumulated benefit obligation 103752 69750 78727 128474

Fair value of plan assets 8176 32362 7096 96162

The components of net periodic benefit cost during the years ended December31 2009 2008 and 2007 were as

follows

2009 2008 2007

United United United

States International States International States International

In thousands

Service cost 3085 6964 2879 $13557 2642 $11308

Interest cost 7805 7195 6017 9905 5391 8189

Expected return on plan assets 630 4031 687 8700 744 8003
Amortization of transition asset

Amortization of prior service

cost credit 3908 48 1833 47 2108 87
Settlements/curtailments 4760 5621 126 1548

Amortization of net loss 6340 993 3862 319 4224 208

Net periodic benefit cost $25268 $11069 $19525 $14904 $15169 $11615
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Net gain loss for the year

Net prior service cost for the year

Reclassification Adjustments

Net loss

Prior service credit cost

Transition asset

Total other comprehensive income

$10747

90

5.75 6.25%

2.10 6.00

8.00

2.00 5.15
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Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income during the

years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 were as follows

2009 2008

United United

States International States

In thousands

6738 $11550 $14194

30244

International

10037 993 9483 193

4971 48 1833 47

8498 $12491 2878 $10695

Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income expected to be recognized as components of net

periodic benefit cost in 2010 are as follows

United

States International

In thousands

Netloss $3086 $186

Prior service costs credit 6049 54
Transition asset

Prior service costs are amortized using an alternative straight-line method over the average remaining service

period of employees expected to receive plan benefits Assumed long-term rates of return on plan assets discount

rates and rates of compensation increases vary for the different plans according to the local economic conditions

The weighted average assumption rates used for benefit obligations were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008

Discount rate

United States plans
5.25%

International plans
1.68 8.00

Rate of compensation increase

United States plans 6.00

International plans 2.00 4.70
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The weighted average assumption rates used for net periodic benefit costs were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Discount rate

United States plans 5.75 6.25% 5.75 6.00% 5.00 5.50%

International plans 1.68-6.00 1.94- 5.60 1.90-6.60

Expected return on plan assets

United States plans 7.00 7.00 5.00 7.00

International plans 4.20 7.05 4.20 7.34 4.00 6.82

Rate of compensation increase

United States plans 8.00 8.00 8.00

International plans 2.00 5.15 2.00 4.77 2.00 6.50

In determining the overall expected long-term rate of return for plan assets we take into consideration the

historical experience as well as future expectations of the asset mix involved As different investments yield

different returns each asset category must be reviewed individually and then weighted for significance in relation to

the total portfolio

The following table presents the fair values of the Cornpanys pension plan assets as of December 31 2009

United States and International plans are combined below as there is only one United States plan with assets For an

explanation of the various levels see Note 11

Level Level Total

In thousands

Investment funds1 $86765 $86765

Common/collective trust funds2 8176 8176

Cash 2788 2788

Total assets at fair value $2788 $94941 $97729

These international funds invest in the following 4% cash 6% U.S equities 39% non-U.S equities 41%

non-U.S fixed income securities 7% property and 3% other

These U.S funds invest in 62% equities and 38% fixed income securities

Common/collective trust funds are valued at the net assets value of shares in the fund as determined by the

issuer which are based on the fair value of the underlying assets Investment funds are valued by the issuer based on

the fair value of the underlying assets

At December 31 2008 58% of our U.S pension plan assets were invested in equity-based securities and 42%

were invested in debt-based securities Internationally at December 31 2008 62% of our pension plan assets were

invested in equity-based securities 23% in debt-based securities and 15% in other investments

In the U.S our investment strategy includes balanced approach with target allocation percentages of 60%

equity investments and 40% fixed income investments For the international plans the assets are invested primarily

in equity investments as they are expected to provide higher long-term rate of return Our pension investment

strategy worldwide prohibits direct investment in our own stock
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2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015-2019

Our income tax benefit provision from continuing operations

Current

U.S federal and state income taxes

Foreign

Total current

Deferred

U.S federal

Foreign

Total deferred

63635 96549 $132182

193508 233704 171705

129873 330253 303887

In 2010 we expect to contribute less than $1 million in the U.S and $6 million internationally to our pension

and other postretirement benefit plans In addition the following benefit payments which reflect expected future

service and anticipated settlements as appropriate are expected to be paid

United States International

In thousands

$12914 4283

11737 2494

11305 1611

15856 2304

13239 3216

97252 18365

16 Income Taxes

The components of Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands

Domestic $464694 533942 512275

Foreign 764168 1155972 932211

299474 $1689914 $1444486

consisted of the following

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands

43489 76295 47990

66835 4397 19117

110324 80692 28873

19549 $249561 $332760
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The difference between the tax provision benefit at the statutory federal income tax rate and the tax

provision benefit attributable to Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes for the three years

ended December 31 2009 is analyzed below

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands

Statutory federal income tax rate $104816 $591470 $505571

Effect of state income tax net and alternative minimum tax 8268 11177 8957
Effect of domestic non-deductible expenses 38622 2510 5295

Change in valuation allowance 636 4574 6662

Effect of foreign income tax net 140322 371582 197540

Change in income tax reserve 9401 9302 5425
Effect of change in statutory rates 6365 1782 6930

Other 4493 328 5320

19549 $24956 $332760

During 2008 we recorded benefit of approximately $100 million related to foreign taxes paid that will be

used to reduce our future United States tax liability This adjustment is presented in effect of foreign income tax net

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax effects of temporary differences

between the tax basis of an asset or liability and its reported amount in the financial statements The measurement of

deferred tax assets and liabilities is based on enacted tax laws and rates currently in effect in each of the jurisdictions

in which we have operations Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current according to

the classification of the related asset or liability for financial reporting

The components of the net deferred tax asset liability attributable to continuing operations were as follows

December 31

2009 2008

In thousands

Deferred tax assets

Domestic and foreign operating losses 440878 118519

Accrued liabilities and reserves 157429 180476

Tax credits 102288 127332

Other differences between financial and tax basis 97893 91484

Differences between financial and tax basis inventory 47258 32596

Valuation allowance 70349 68853

Total deferred tax assets 775397 481554

Deferred tax liabilities

Property plant and equipment 284441 180852

Goodwill and other intangibles 184365 188883

Unremitted foreign earnings 18987 1046

Other differences between financial and tax basis 61185 6916

Total deferred tax liabilities 548978 377697

Net deferred tax assets 226419 $103857
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The overall increase in the valuation allowance in 2009 is primarily attributable to the establishment of

valuation allowance against net operating losses NOLs in various jurisdictions Managements assessment is

that the character and nature of future taxable income may not allow us to realize the tax benefits of the NOLs and

tax credits within the allowable carryforward period Therefore an appropriate valuation allowance has been made

We have provided additional taxes for the anticipated repatriation of earnings of our foreign subsidiaries where

our management has determined that the foreign subsidiaries earnings are not indefinitely reinvested For foreign

subsidiaries whose earnings are indefinitely reinvested no provision for U.S federal and state income taxes has

been provided If the earnings were not indefinitely reinvested the estimated tax benefit would be approximately

$15 million after application of available foreign tax credits

At December 31 2009 we had approximately $1.4 billion of NOLs $70 million of which were generated by

certain domestic subsidiaries prior to their acquisition by us The use of these acquired domestic NOLs is subject to

limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code and is also restricted to the taxable income of the subsidiaries

generating these losses Loss carryforwards if not utilized will expire at various dates from 2010 through 2029

At December 31 2009 we had approximately $86 million of foreign tax credits available to offset future

payments of federal income taxes The foreign tax credits expire in varying amounts through 2019

tabular reconciliation of the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits at the beginning and end of the

period is as follows

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

In thousands

Balance at beginning of year $45262 $37805 $33891

Additions as result of tax positions taken during prior period 13007 8904 9451

Reductions as result of tax positions taken during prior period 2259 71 3076
Additions as result of tax positions taken during the current

period 1298 1391

Reductions relating to settlements with taxing authorities 1633 2767 2080
Reductions as result of lapse of the applicable statute of

limitations 1319 381

Balance at end of year $54356 $45262 $37805

All of the unrecognized benefits if recognized in future periods would impact our effective tax rate

To the extent penalties and interest would be assessed on any underpayment of income tax such amounts have

been accrued and classified as component of income tax expense in the financial statements This is an accounting

policy election made by us that is continuation of our historical policy and will continue to be consistently applied

in the future We recognized $8 million $2 million and $3 million of
expense relating to interest for the periods

ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively We recognized $5 million of penalties for the year ended

December 31 2009 Penalties during the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 were immaterial The amounts

in the table above exclude accrued interest and penalties of $28 million $14 million and $13 million at

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

We are subject to income tax in many of the approximately 100 countries where we operate including major

operations in the United States the United Kingdom and Canada Many of our subsidiaries are open to examination

in the United Kingdom and Canada dating from 2003 and 2001 respectively through December 31 2009 We are

open to examination in the United States for tax years ended December 31 2004 through December 31 2008

We do not anticipate significant change in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits within the next

12 months
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17 Disputes Litigation and Contingencies

U.S Government and Internal Investigations

We are currently involved in government and internal investigations involving various areas of our operations

Until 2003 we participated in the United Nations oil-for-food program governing sales of goods and services

into Iraq The U.S Department of Justice DOJ and the SEC have undertaken investigations of our participation

in the oil-for-food program and have subpoenaed certain documents in connection with these investigations We

have cooperated fully with these investigations We have retained legal counsel reporting to our audit committee to

investigate this matter These investigations are not yet resolved and we cannot anticipate the timing outcome or

possible impact of the ultimate resolution of the investigations financial or otherwise

The U.S Department of Commerce Bureau of Industry Security Office of Foreign Assets Control

OFAC DOJ and SEC have undertaken investigations of allegations of improper sales of products and services

by the Company and its subsidiaries in certain sanctioned countries We have cooperated fully with this inves

tigation We have retained legal counsel reporting to our audit committee to investigate these matters and to

cooperate fully with these agencies This investigation is not yet resolved and we cannot anticipate the timing

outcome or possible impact of the ultimate resolution of the investigation financial or otherwise

In light of this investigation and of the current U.S and foreign policy environment and the inherent

uncertainties surrounding these countries we decided in September 2007 to direct our foreign subsidiaries to

discontinue doing business in countries that are subject to comprehensive U.S economic and trade sanctions

specifically Cuba Iran and Sudan as well as Syria Effective September 2007 we ceased entering into any new

contracts in these countries and began an orderly discontinuation and winding down of our existing business in these

sanctioned countries Effective March 31 2008 we substantially completed our winding down of business in these

countries We can complete the withdrawal process only pursuant to licenses issued by OFAC Our remaining

activities in Iran Sudan and Syria include ongoing withdrawal activities such as attempts to collect accounts

receivable attempts to settle tax liabilities or legal claims and attempts to recover or liquidate assets including

equipment and funds Certain of our subsidiaries continue to conduct business in countries such as Myanmar that

are subject to more limited U.S trading sanctions

The DOJ and SEC are investigating the embezzlement of approximately $175000 at European subsidiary

and the possible improper use of these funds including possible payments to government officials in Europe during

the period from 2000 to 2004 and our compliance with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act FCPA and other laws

worldwide We have retained legal counsel reporting to our audit committee to investigate these matters and to

cooperate fully with the DOJ and SEC As part of our investigations we have uncovered potential violations of

U.S law in connection with activities in West Africa These investigations are not yet resolved and we cannot

anticipate the timing outcome or possible impact of the ultimate resolution of the investigations financial or

otherwise

The DOJ SEC and other agencies and authorities have broad range of civil and criminal penalties they may

seek to impose against corporations and individuals for violations of trade sanctions laws the FCPA and other

federal statutes including but not limited to injunctive relief disgorgement fines penalties and modifications to

business practices and compliance programs In recent years these agencies and authorities have entered into

agreements with and obtained range of penalties against several public corporations and individuals in similar

investigations under which civil and criminal penalties were imposed including in some cases fines and other

penalties and sanctions in the tens and hundreds of millions of dollars These agencies are seeking to impose

penalties against us for past conduct but the ultimate amount of any penalties we may pay currently cannot be

reasonably estimated Under trade sanctions laws the DOJ may also seek to impose modifications to business

practices including immediate cessation of all business activities in specific countries or other limitations that

decrease our business and modifications to compliance programs which may increase compliance costs Any

injunctive relief disgorgement fines penalties sanctions or imposed modifications to business practices resulting
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from these investigations could adversely affect our results of operations In addition our activities in sanctioned

countries such as Sudan and Iran could result in certain investors such as government sponsored pension funds

divesting or not investing in our registered shares Based on available information we cannot predict what if any

actions the DOJ SEC or other authorities will take in our situation or the effect any such actions will have on our

consolidated financial position or results of operations To the extent we violated trade sanctions laws the FCPA or

other laws or regulations fines and other penalties may be imposed Because these matters are now pending before

the indicated agencies there can be no assurance that actual fines or penalties if any will not have material

adverse affect on our business financial condition liquidity or results of operations

During 2009 and 2008 we incurred $45 million and $47 million respectively in corniection with these on

going investigations In addition we incurred $56 million for costs incurred in connection with our exit from certain

sanctioned countries during 2008

Other Litigation and Disputes

We are aware of various disputes and potential claims and we are party in various litigation involving claims

against us some of which are covered by insurance For claims disputes and pending litigation in which we believe

negative outcome is probable and loss can be reasonably estimated we have recorded liability for the expected

loss These liabilities are immaterial to our financial condition and results of operations In addition we have certain

claims disputes and pending litigation in which we do not believe negative outcome is probable If one or more

negative outcomes were to occur the impact to our financial condition could be as high as $180 million

Our former Senior Vice President and General Counsel the Executive left the Company in June 2009 The

Executive had employment agreements with us that terminated on his departure There is currently dispute

between the Executive and us as to the amount of compensation we are obligated to pay under these employment

agreements based on the Executives separation It is our belief that an unfavorable outcome regarding this dispute

is not probable and as such we have not accrued for $9 million of the Executives claimed severance and other

benefits

18 Commitments

In association with prior acquisition we identified pre-acquisition contingencies related to duties and taxes

associated with the importation of certain assets to foreign jurisdictions At December 31 2009 we have liability

in the amount of $5 million for this matter If we use the high end of the range the aggregate potential liability would

be approximately $6 million higher

We are committed under various operating lease agreements primarily related to office space and equipment

Generally these leases include renewal provisions and rental payments which may be adjusted for taxes insurance

and maintenance related to the property Future minimum rental commitments under noncancellable operating

leases are as follows in thousands

2010 88274

2011 68392

2012 46706

2013 30304

2014 22047

Thereafter 107403

$363126

Total rent expense incurred under operating leases was approximately $367 million $188 million and

$130 million for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively
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19 Segment Information

Reporting Segments

We report the following regions as separate distinct reporting segments North America Middle Eastl

North Africa/Asia Europe/West AfricaIFSU and Latin America Financial information by segment is

summarized below Revenues are attributable to countries based on the ultimate destination of the sale of products

or performance of services The total assets and capital expenditures for the years ended December 31 2009 2008

and 2007 do not include the assets or activity of our discontinued operation The accounting policies of the segments

are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies

Year Ended December 31 2009

Net Income Depreciation Total Assets at

Operating from and Capital December 31
Revenues Operations Amortization Expenditures 2009

In thousands

North America $2765707 197211 $315746 276457 6357021

Middle East/North Africa/Asia 2368118 441974 257065 817635 4568310

EUrope/West AfricaIFSUa 1616460 251991 165108 206559 3601031

Latin America 2076648 281590 152567 228180 3122902

8826933 1172766 890486 1528831 17649264

Corporate and Research and

Development 368345 16211 40646 1216919

Otherb 100566

Total $8826933 703855 $906697 $1569477 $18866183

Year Ended December 31 2008

Net Income Depreciation Total Assets at

Operating from and Capital December 31
Revenues Operations Amortization Expenditures 2008

In thousands

North America $4460147 $1125199 $310054 602876 6541697

Middle East/North Africa/Asia 2391520 561012 196443 1123751 4320875

Europe/West AfricaIFSU 1539190 382772 119957 393532 2641687

Latin America 1209707 277094 93942 312382 2010313

9600564 2346077 720396 2432541 15514572

Corporate and Research and

Development 327671 11412 51622 961941

Otherc 39857

Total $9600564 $1978549 $731808 $2484163 $16476513
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Year Ended December31 2007

Income from operations includes $21 million gain related to the acquisition of OFS

Other for the year ended December 31 2009 is comprised of $4 million for costs incurred in connection with our

withdrawal from sanctioned countries $45 million in legal and professional fees incurred in connection with our on

going investigations by the U.S government and $52 million for severance costs incurred for restructuring activities

Other for the year ended December31 2008 is comprised of $56 million for costs incurred in connection with our

withdrawal from sanctioned countries $47 million in legal and professional fees incurred in connection with our

on-going investigations by the U.S government and $18 million for severance costs incurred for restructuring

activities These charges were partially offset by an $81 million gain recognized as result of our selling our 50%

interest in subsidiary we controlled to Qatar Petroleum for cash consideration of $113 million

Other for the
year

ended December 31 2007 is comprised of $17 million in severance charges associated with

restructuring activities and $14 million in legal and professional fees incurred in connection with our on-going

investigations by the U.S government

Products and Services

We are diversified international energy service and manufacturing company that provides variety of

services and equipment to the exploration production and transmission sectors of the oil and natural gas industry

We operate in virtually every oil and natural gas exploration and production region in the world The composition of

our consolidated revenues by product line is as follows

Well Construction

Artificial Lift Systems

Drilling Services

Integrated Drilling

Completion Systems

Drilling Tools

Stimulation Chemicals

Wireline

Re-entry Fishing

Pipeline Specialty Services

Total

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

17% 15% 16%

17 18

16 16 15

13

10 10

11 12

100% 100% 100%

Net Income Depreciation Total Assets at

Operating from and Capital December 31
Revenues Operations Amortization Expenditures 2007

In thousands

North America $3937456 $1013088 $277222 722277 6265186

Middle EastiNorth Africa/Asia 1823769 416263 158321 446215 3027456

Europe/West AfricaJFSU 1188519 293846 86768 230990 2005391

Latin America 882318 203211 74089 198321 1209846

7832062 1926408 596400 1597803 12507879

Corporate and Research and Development 271285 9826 37238 656876

Otherd 30787

Total $7832062 $1624336 $606226 $1635041 $13164755

16
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Geographic Areas

Financial information by geographic area for each of the three years ended December 31 2009 is summarized

below Long-lived assets are long-term assets excluding deferred tax assets of $67 million $36 million and

$46 million at December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Revenues from Unaffihiated Customers Long-Lived Assets

2009 2008 2007 2009 2008 2007

In thousands

United States $2122389 $3392945 $2955108 4317191 4156196 $3612886

Mexico 1230200 293224 218423 407603 356210 84863

Canada 643318 1067202 982348 1198923 1039899 1259620

Other Countries 4831026 4847193 3676183 6734351 5318283 3715855

$8826933 $9600564 $7832062 $12658068 $10870588 $8673224

20 Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

Quarter

First Second Third Fourth Total

In thousands except per share amounts

2009

Revenues $2256141 $1994832 $2149879 $2426081 $8826933

Gross Profit 721621 551990 540638 549348 2363597

Income Loss from Continuing

Operations Attributable to

Weatherford 164802 41981 77374 30391 253766

Gain Loss from Discontinued

Operation Net of Tax

Net Income Attributable to

Weatherford 164802 41981 77374 30391 253766

Basic Earnings Per Share

Continuie Operations 0.24 0.06 0.11 0.04 0.35

Discontinued Operation

Net Income Loss 0.24 0.06 0.11 0.04 0.35

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Continuing Operations 0.23 0.06 0.11 0.04 0.35

Discontinued Operation

Net Income 0.23 0.06 0.11 0.04 0.35
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Quarter

First Second Third Fourth Total

In thousands except per share amounts

2008

Revenues $2195892 $2229250 $2540796 $2634626 $9600564

Gross Profit 746214 775096 899873 936923 3358106

Income from Continuing Operations

Attributable to Weatherford 284069 364044 370600 387368 1406081

Gain Loss from Discontinued

Operation Net of Tax 19868 6940 12928

Net Income Attributable to

Weatherford 264201 370984 370600 387368 1393153

Basic Earnings Per Share

Continuing Operations 0.42 0.53 0.54 0.56 2.06

Discontinued Operation 0.03 0.01
_________

0.02

Net Income 0.39 0.54 0.54 0.56 2.04

Diluted Earnings Per Share

Continuing Operations 0.41 0.52 0.53 0.56 2.01

Discontinued Operation 0.03 0.01 0.02

Net Income 0.38 0.53 0.53 0.56 1.99

Fourth quarter 2008 results have been corrected in the table above to reflect change in our income tax

provision See Note

21 Subsequent Events

In January 2010 the Venezuelan government announced its intention to devalue its currency Bolivar and

move to two tier exchange structure The official exchange rate is expected to move from 2.15 to 2.60 for essential

goods and 4.30 for non-essential goods and services While we are still evaluating the impact of these actions our

preliminary assessment of the impact of the devaluation is that we will incur one-time loss in the first quarter of

2010 of approximately $50 million for the remeasurement of the local balance sheet at the date of the devaluation

Our compensation committee is in the process of evaluating the components of our executive officers

compensation for 2010 Changes to our Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan may occur as result of this

review including the possible discontinuation of the plan If this were to occur we would be required to record

non-cash charge of up to $30 million while any payments vested under the plan would not be paid until the

executives separation

22 Other Disclosures Required by Swiss Law

Balance Sheet Item

Information regarding insurance coverage on our property plant and equipment is presented in Note 15

Insurance in the Weatherford International Ltd stand-alone statutory financial statements

Statement of Income Item

Information regarding our personnel expenses
is presented in Note 16 Personnel Expenses in the Weath

erford International Ltd stand-alone statutory financial statements
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Compensation and Security Ownership of Board Members and Executive Officers

The compensation and security ownership of members of the Board of Directors of Weatherford International

Ltd and of Weatherford executive officers is presented in Note Board of Directors Compensation Note

Executive Management Compensation and Note 10 Share Ownership Board of Directors and Executive

Management in the Weatherford International Ltd stand-alone statutory financial statements

Risk Assessment

Weatherford International Ltd.s risk assessment is presented in Note 11 Risk Assessment Disclosure of the

Weatherford International Ltd stand-alone statutory financial statements

23 Consolidating Financial Statements

During the first quarter of 2009 we completed transaction that changed our place of incorporation from

Bermuda to Switzerland new Swiss corporation named Weatherford International Ltd was formed and is now

the ultimate parent of the Weatherford group Parent The Parent guarantees the obligations of Weatherford

International Ltd incorporated in Bermuda Weatherford Bermuda and Weatlierford International Inc incor

porated in Delaware Weatherford Delaware noted below

The following obligations of Weatherford Delaware were guaranteed by Weatherford Bermuda as of

December 31 2009 and 2008 the 6.625% Senior Notes ii the 5.95% Senior Notes iii the 6.35% Senior

Notes and iv the 6.80% Senior Notes

The following obligations of Weatherford Bermuda were guaranteed by Weatherford Delaware at Decem

ber 31 2009 the revolving credit facilities ii the 4.95% Senior Notes iii the 5.50% Senior Notes iv the

6.50% Senior Notes the 5.15% Senior Notes vi the 6.00% Senior Notes vii the 7.00% Senior Notes

viii the 9.625% Senior Notes ix the 9.875% Senior Notes and issuances of notes under the commercial paper

program

The following obligations of the Weatherford Bermuda were guaranteed by the Weatherford Delaware at

December 31 2008 the revolving credit facilities ii the 4.95% Senior Notes iii the 5.50% Senior Notes

iv the 6.50% Senior Notes the 5.15% Senior Notes vi the 6.00% Senior Notes vii the 7.00% Senior Notes

and viii issuances of notes under the commercial paper program

As result of these guarantee arrangements we are required to present the following condensed consolidating

financial information The accompanying guarantor financial information is presented on the equity method of

accounting for all periods presented Under this method investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost and

adjusted for our share in the subsidiaries cumulative results of operations capital contributions and distributions

and other changes in equity Elimination entries relate primarily to the elimination of investments in subsidiaries

and associated intercompany balances and transactions Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to

conform to the current year presentation
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

December 31 2009

In thousands

Parent Bermuda Delaware

ASSETS

Other

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Intercompany Receivables Net

Other Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

42623629

616048

2688702

$45928379

Current Liabilities

Short-term Borrowings and

Current Portion of Long-Term

Debt

Accounts Payable and Other

Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long-term Debt

Intercompany Payables Net

Other Long-term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Weatherford Shareholders Equity

Noncontrolling Interests

Total Liabilities and

Shareholders Equity

1656759

2172099

10905

2652096

280737

5115837

25893257

79032

Equity Investments in Affiliates

Shares Held in Parent

102 47 421 251949

510 11163 98033 5778381

612 11210 98454 6030330

8615365 15160748 6754566 12092950

108268 507780

1671487 1017215

9376 68960 190175 12457066

$8625353 $16912405 $8168678 $31088126

252519

5888087

6140606

12725577

$18866183

352373 1868 515340 869581

46160 107984

46160 460357

3988162

36606

8132 132155

90898 4580674

8534455 12331731

116404

118272

1848191

2309

1968772

6199906

2688702

2688702

43239677

1927307

2796888

5847258

423333

9067479

9719672

79032

$8625353 $16912405 $8168678 $31088126 $45928379 $18866183
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

December 31 2008

In thousands

Other

Bermuda Delaware Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
24 50 238324 238398

Other Current Assets 11547 90626 5229711 __________ 5331884

Total Current Assets 11571 90676 5468035 5570282

Equity Investments in Affiliates 14335661 6231144 12611943 33178748

Shares Held in Parent 133519 625958 759477

Intercompany Receivables Net 1289507 906534 2196041

Other Assets 59325 184869 10662037
___________

10906231

Total Assets $15696064 $7546742 $29367973 $36134266 $16476513

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Short-term Borrowings and Current

Portion of Long-term Debt 781443 1758 472746 1255947

Accounts Payable and Other

Current Liabilities 59534 39764 1666848 1766146

Total Current Liabilities 840977 41522 2139594 3022093

Long-term Debt 2701747 1849428 13080 4564255

Intercompany Payables Net 2196041 2196041

Other Long-term Liabilities 110627 2502 371737 484866

Total Liabilities 3653351 1893452 4720452 2196041 8071214

Weatherford Shareholders Equity 12042713 5653290 24567120 33938225 8324898

Noncontrolling Interests 80401 80401

Total Liabilities and

Shareholders Equity $15696064 $7546742 $29367973 $36134266 $16476513
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income

Year Ended December 31 2009

In thousands

Other

Parent Bermuda Delaware Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

Revenues 8826933 8826933

Costs and Expenses 10609 25914 3011 8083544 8123078

Operating Income Loss 10609 25914 3011 743389
___________

703855

Other Income Expense

Interest Income Expense
Net 86 253403 114874 1615 366748

Intercompany Charges Net 20776 5430 143689 159035

Equity in Subsidiary Income 285228 350622 523383 1159233

Other Net 208493 591 245544 37633

Income Loss from Continuing

Operations Before Income

Taxes 253766 285228 261218 658495 1159233 299474

Provision for Income Taxes 89404 108953 19549

Income Loss from Continuing

Operations 253766 285228 350622 549542 1159233 279925

Loss from Discontinued Operation

Net of Taxes

Net Income Loss 253766 285228 350622 549542 1159233 279925

Noncontrolling Interests 26159 26159

Net Income Attributable to

Weatherford $253766 285228 350622 523383 $1159233 253766
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Revenues

Costs and Expenses _________ _________ __________ __________

Operating Income Loss _________ _________ __________ _____

Other Income Expense

Interest Income Expense Net

Intercompany Charges Net

Equity in Subsidiary Income

Other Net
__________ __________ ___________ ___________

Income Loss from Continuing

Operations Before Income Taxes

Provision for Income Taxes
_________ _________ _________ _________

Income Loss from Continuing

Operations

Income Loss from Discontinued

Operation Net of Taxes
___________ ___________ ___________

Net Income Loss

Noncontrolling Interests
__________ __________ ___________ ___________

Net Income Attributable to

Weatherford __________

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income

Year Ended December 31 2008

In thousands

Other

Bermuda Delaware Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

9600564 9600564

35899 1684 7584432 7622015

35899 1684 2016132 1978549

127684 115721 274 243679

128198 128198

1393964 1478574 2872538

6676 1783 36497 44956

1351903 1359386 1851163 2872538 1689914

34578 284139 249561

1351903 1393964 1567024 2872538 1440353

2000 14928 12928

1353903 1393964 1552096 2872538 1427425

34272 34272

$1353903 $1393964 1517824 $2872538 1393153
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Other Income Expense

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Income

Year Ended December 31 2007

In thousands

Bermuda Delaware

Other

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

Revenues 7832062 7832062

Costs and Expenses 15400 3641 6188685 6207726

Operating Income Loss 15400 3641 1643377 1624336

Interest Income Expense Net 95568 73428 2285 171281

Intercompany Charges Net 100538 206371 105833

Equity in Subsidiary Income 1262288 1177140 2439428

Other Net 7709 1101 17379 8569

Income Loss from Continuing

Operations Before Income Taxes 1058491 1307543 1517880 2439428 1444486

Provision for Income Taxes 45255 287505 332760

Income Loss from Continuing

Operations 1058491 1262288 1230375 2439428 1111726

Income Loss from Discontinued

Operation Net of Taxes 12115 33484 21369

Net Income Loss 1070606 1262288 1196891 2439428 1090357

Noncontrolling Interests 19751 19751

Net Income Attributable to

Weatherford $1070606 $1262288 1177140 $2439428 1070606
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31 2009

In thousands

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income Loss to

Net Cash Provided Used by Operating

Activities

Charges from Parent or Subsidiary

Gain Loss from Discontinued Operations

Equity in Earnings Loss of Affiliates

Deferred Income Tax Provision Benefit

Other Adjustments

Net Cash Provided Used by Operating

Activities Continuing Operations

Net Cash Used by Operating

Activities Discontinued Operations

Net Cash Provided Used by Operating

Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Businesses Net of Cash

Acquired

Capital Expenditures for Property Plant and

Equipment

Acquisition of Intellectual Property

Purchase of Equity Investment in Unconsolidated

Affiliate

Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses

Net

Capital Contribution to Subsidiary

Net Cash Provided Used by Investing

Activities Continuing Operations

Net Cash Provided by Investing

Activities Discontinued Operations

Net Cash Provided Used by Investing

Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Borrowings of Repayments on Short-term Debt

Net

Borrowings of Repayments on Long-term Debt

Net

Borrowings Repayments Between Subsidiaries

Net

Proceeds from Capital Contribution

Other Net

Net Cash Provided Used by Financing

Activities Continuing Operations

Net Cash Provided Used by Financing

Activities Discontinued Operations

Net Cash Provided Used by Financing

Activities

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash

Equivalents

Net Increase Decrease in Cash and Cash

Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

9695

1569477
34210

26999

123445

474465 39 474504

474465 39 1516936 474504

429070 110 36040

1233365 6779

92973 194416 284421

474504

110326
444723

614322

614322

Other

Parent Bermuda Delaware Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

253766 285228 350622 549542 $1l59233 279925

20776 5430 143689 159035

285228 350622 523383 1159233

10008 100318
7718 166010 161307 441708

2968 236834 122227 731897

2968 236834 122227 731897

9695

1569477
34210

26999

123445

1516936

474465 39 1516936 474504 1516936

392920

1226586

2968

474504

72489 72489

2968 711322 121817 788186 474504 906155

2968 711322 121817 788186 474504 906155

10580 10580

23 371 13727 14121

102 24 50 238222 238398

102 47 421 251949 252519
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31 2008

In thousands

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Income Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income Loss to Net

Cash Provided Used by Operating Activities

Charges from Parent or Subsidiary

Gain Loss from Discontinued Operations

Equity in Earnings Loss of Affiliates

Deferred Income Tax Provision Benefit

Other Adjustments __________ __________ __________ __________ __________

Net Cash Provided Used by Operating

Activities Continuing Operations

Net Cash Used by Operating

Activities Discontinued Operations
___________ ___________ ___________ ___________ ___________

Net Cash Provided Used by Operating

Activities 191543 220618 1516729 1104568

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Businesses Net of Cash Acquired

Capital Expenditures for Property Plant and

Equipment

Acquisition of Intellectual Property

Purchase of Equity Investment in Unconsolidated

Affiliate

Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses Net

Capital Contribution to Subsidiary __________

Net Cash Provided Used by Investing

Activities Continuing Operations

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Discontinued Operations

Net Cash Provided Used by Investing Activities
__________

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Borrowings of Repayments on Short-term Debt Net

Borrowings of Repayments on Long-term Debt Net

Proceeds from Exercise of Stock Options

Borrowings Repayments Between Subsidiaries Net

Proceeds from Capital Contribution

Other Net _______
Net Cash Provided Used by Financing

Activities Continuing Operations

Net Cash Provided Used by Financing

Activities Discontinued Operations

Net Cash Provided Used by Financing

Activities
___________

Effect of Exchange Changes on Cash and Cash

Equivalents

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 24

798530 798530

2484163 2484163

24079 24079

11568 11568

297285 297285

350966 5050 356016

350966 5050 3021055 356016 3021055

11000 11000

339966 5050 3021055 356016 3010055

199054 23096 301863 477821

1483931 1166 4432 1478333

9942 9942

1151147 226581 924566

356016 356016

533 11968 11435

531305 224229 1578013 356016 1977531

531305 224229 1578013 356016 1977531

4360 4360
204 1439 69327 67684

228 1489 168997 170714

50 238324 238398

Bermuda Delaware

Other

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

1353903 1393964 1552096 $2872538 1427425

128198

2000
1393964 1478574

15687

21284 120321

128198

14928

65005

107269

2872538

12928

80692

248874

191543 220618 1522948

6219 6219

1110787
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31 2007

In thousands

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Income Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income Loss to Net Cash

Provided Used by Operating Activities

Charges from Parent or Subsidiary

Income Loss from Discontinued Operation

Equity in Earnings Loss of Affiliates

Deferred Income Tax Provision Benefit

Other Adjustments

Net Cash Provided Used by Operating Activities

Continuing Operations

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Discontinued Operation

Net Cash Provided Used by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Acquisitions of Businesses Net of Cash Acquired

Purchase of Equity Investments in Unconsolidated

Affiliates

Capital Expenditures for Property Plant and Equipment

Acquisition of Intellectual Property

Proceeds from Sale of Assets and Businesses Net

Capital Contribution to Subsidiary

Distribution of Earnings from Subsidiary

Other Investing Activities

Net Cash Provided Used by Investing Activities

Continuing Operations

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

Discontinued Operation

Net Cash Provided Used by Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Borrowings of Repayments on Short-term Debt Net

Borrowings of Repayments on Long-term Debt Net

Borrowings Repayments Between Subsidiaries Net

Purchase of Treasury Shares

Proceeds from Exercise of Stock Options

Proceeds from Capital Contribution

Other Net

Net Cash Provided Used by Financing

Activities Continuing Operations

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Discontinued Operation

Net Cash Provided Used by Financing Activities

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash

Equivalents

Net Increase Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

275149

335220
1635041

23035
84476

1486365

38500

16361 400691

1485497 14734
213695 939183

246190
34192

772895

24999

426301 1774744

426301 1774744

3340

45016

123981

168997

275149

335220
1635041

23035
84476

38500

117865

1470763

246190
34192

3340

44427

126287

170714

Other

Bermuda Delaware Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidation

1070606 1262288 $1196891 $2439428 1090357

100538

12115
1262288

413899

206371

1177140
16788

115003

105833

33484

45661

556840

2439428

21369

28873

257944

310640 253014 825029 882655

10149 10149

310640 253014 814880 872506

736748 36147
1486365

772895

736748 1522512 736104 772895 2222469

736748

10579 10579

1522512 746683 772895 2233048

299187

725488

772895
24999

26521 772895 1401629

26521 772895 1401629

193

35

228

782
2271

1489
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Item Changes in and Disagreement with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

At the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K we carried out an evaluation under the

supervision and with the participation of management including the Chief Executive Officer CEO and the

Chief Financial Officer CFO of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in

Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act Based upon that evaluation our CEO and CFO have

concluded our disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of the end of the period covered by this report to

ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is

recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange

Commissions rules and forms and that information relating to us including our consolidated subsidiaries required

to be disclosed is accumulated and communicated to management including the CEO and CFO to allow timely

decisions regarding required disclosure

Changes in internal controls

Our management including the CEO and CFO identified no change in our internal control over financial

reporting that occurred during our fiscal quarter ended December 31 2009 that has materially affected or is

reasonably likely to materially affect our internal controls over financial reporting

Internal controls over financial reporting

Managements report on our internal controls over financial reporting can be found in Item of this report

Item 9B Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Pursuant to General Instructions G3 information on directors and executive officers of the Registrant will be

filed in an amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy

statement for the annual meeting to be held on June 23 2010

The Company has adopted code of ethics entitled Code of Business Conduct which applies to all our

employees officers and directors and our board of directors has also adopted separate Supplemental Code of

Business Conduct for our senior officers Copies of these codes can also be found at www.weatherford.com

Item 11 Executive Compensation

Pursuant to General Instructions G3 information on executive compensation will be filed in an amendment

to this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement for the annual

meeting to be held on June 23 2010

Item 12a Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

Pursuant to General Instructions G3 information on security ownership of certain beneficial owners will be

filed in an amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy

statement for the annual meeting to be held on June 23 2010
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Item 12b Security Ownership of Management

Pursuant to General Instructions G3 information on security ownership of management will be filed in an

amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement

for the annual meeting to be held on June 23 2010

Item 12d Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information as of December 31 2009 about the number of shares to be issued

upon vesting or exercise of equity awards including options restricted shares warrants and deferred stock units as

well as the number of shares remaining available for issuance under our equity compensation plans

Number of Shares

Remaining Available

Number of Shares for Future Issuance

to be Issued Upon Weighted Average Under Equity
Exercise of Exercise Price of Compensation Plans

Outstanding Outstanding Excluding Shares

Options Warrants Options Warrants Reflected in the

and Rights and Rights First Column

In thousands except share prices

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved by

shareholdersa 13825 $22.86 2297

Equity compensation plans not

approved by shareholdersb 25061 11.37

Total 38886 15.46 2297

Includes our Omnibus Plan which was approved by our shareholders in May 2006

Includes the following compensation plans that were not approved by our shareholders our 1998 Employee
Stock Option Plan our Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan our Foreign Executive Deferred

Compensation Stock Ownership Plan and our 2003 Restricted Share Plan Those plans and other individual

compensation arrangements that were not approved by our shareholders are described below

Our 1998 Employee Stock Option Plan 1998 Plan provides for the grant of nonqualified options to

purchase our shares to employees or employees of our affiliates as determined by the Compensation
Committee of our Board of Directors The price at which shares may be purchased is based on the market

price of the shares and cannot be less than the aggregate par value of the shares on the date the option was

granted Unless otherwise provided in an option agreement no option may be exercised after one day less than

10 years from the date of vesting Options generally become fully exercisable after three to four years from the

date of grant subject to earlier vesting in the event of the death disability or retirement of the employee or in

the event of change of control of the Company The 1998 Plan provides for the grant of options to purchase up
to 88000000 shares As of December 31 2009 there were options to purchase an aggregate of 9280280 our

shares outstanding under the 1998 Plan all of which are vested Subsequent to the shareholder approval of our

Omnibus Plan in May 2006 awards are no longer granted under the 1998 Plan

total of 3898112 options to purchase shares of our stock were granted under individual compensation

arrangements with the following directors Mr David Butters Mr William Macaulay Mr Robert

Millard Mr Robert Moses Jr and Mr Robert Rayne At December 31 2009 there were an aggregate of

2491456 of these options outstanding under these agreements all of which are fully vested

Under our Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation Plan DDC Plan each non-employee director

may elect to defer up to 7.5% of any fees paid by the us The deferred fees were converted into non-monetary
units representing shares that could have been purchased with the deferred fees based on the market price of

our shares on the last day of the month in which fees were deferred If non-employee director elected to defer

at least 5% of his fees we made an additional contribution to the directors account equal to the sum of 17.5%
of the directors fees plus the amount of fees deferred by the director The non-employee directors are fully

vested at all times Our directors may generally determine when distributions will be made from the plan but in

AR-89



any event all benefits under the DDC Plan will be distributed no later than January 2017 The amount of the

distribution will be number of our shares equal to the number of units at the time of distribution As of

December 31 2009 there were 121226 deferred units outstanding under this plan Effective December 31

2008 we suspended the DDC Plan While the plan is suspended no new participants may join the plan and no

further deferrals of fees or matching contributions will be made under the plan unless and until our Board of

Directors determines otherwise

We established our Foreign Executive Deferred Compensation Stock Ownership Plan for key foreign

employees FEDC Plan and under this plan we contribute 15% of each participants total salary bonus

and commission compensation each year Our contributions vest over five-year period on the basis of 20%

per year
for each year of service Under the FEDC Plan our contributions are converted into non-monetary

units equal to the number of our shares that could have been purchased with the amounts contributed based on

the average closing price of our shares for each day of the month in which contributions are made Distributions

are made under the FEDC Plan after participant retires becomes disabled or dies or after his employment is

tenninated but in any event all benefits under the FEDC Plan will be distributed no later than January 2017

Distributions under the FEDC Plan are made in number of our shares equal to the number of units allocated to

the participants account at the time of distribution As of December 31 2009 there were 153490 deferred

units outstanding under this plan

We issued warrants to purchase up to 12928856 of our shares at price of $15.00 per share which are

exercisable until February 28 2012 The warrant holders may exercise the warrants and settlement may occur

through physical delivery net share settlement net cash settlement or combination thereof The net cash

settlement option upon exercise is at our sole discretion

In 2003 our Board of Directors approved restricted share plan that allows for the grant of up to 15340000 of

our shares to our key employees and directors 2003 Restricted Share Plan Restricted shares are subject to

forfeiture restrictions that generally lapse after specified period from the date of grant and are subject to

earlier vesting in the event of death retirement or change in control As of December 31 2009 there were

12534835 shares granted net of forfeitures under the 2003 Restricted Share Plan and 86000 shares are

unvested Subsequent to the shareholder approval of our Omnibus Plan in May 2006 awards are no longer

made under this plan

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

Pursuant to General Instruction G3 information on certain relationships and related transactions and director

independence will be filed in an amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference from

our definitive proxy statement for the annual meeting to be held on June 23 2010

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Pursuant to General Instruction G3 information on principal accountant fees and services will be filed in an

amendment to this Annual Report on Form 10-K or incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement

for the annual meeting to be held on June 23 2010
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

The following documents are filed as part of this report or incorporated by reference

The consolidated financial statements of the Company listed on page AR-37 of this report

The financial statement schedule on page AR-99 of this report

The exhibits of the Company listed below under Item 15b

Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement dated June 2005 by and between Precision Drilling Corporation and

Weatherford International Ltd incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Amendment No to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 2005 on Form 8-K/A File No 1-31339 filed

June 2005

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated May 2002 among Weatherford International Inc Weatherford

Merger Inc Weatherford International Ltd and Weatherford U.S Holdings LLC incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Amendment No to the Registration Statement on Form S-4

Reg No 333-85644 filed on May 22 2002

2.3 Share Exchange Agreement dated as of December 10 2008 among Weatherford International Ltd
Bermuda exempted company and Weatherford International Ltd Swiss company incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed

December 10 2008

2.5 Sale and Purchase Agreement dated as of May 29 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Novy Investments Limited incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K/A File No 1-34258 filed June 2009
3.1 Memorandum of Association of Weatherford International Ltd incorporated by reference to Annex II

to the proxy statement/prospectus included in Amendment No to the Registration Statement on Form
S-4 Reg No 333-85644 filed on May 22 2002

3.2 Memorandum of Increase of Share Capital of Weatherford International Ltd incorporated by reference

to Annex II to the proxy statement/prospectus included in Amendment No to the Registration

Statement on Form S-4 Reg No 333-85644 filed on May 22 2002

3.3 Bye-laws of Weatherford International Ltd incorporated by reference to Annex III to the proxy

statement/prospectus included in Amendment No to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 Reg
No 333-85644 filed on May 22 2002

3.4 Articles of Association of Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint stock corporation incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed

February 26 2009

3.5 Organizational Regulations of Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint stock corporation

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

3.6 Articles of Association of Weatherford International Ltd incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to

the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed July 27 2009

3.7 Articles of Association of Weatherford International Ltd incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to

the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed September 17 2009

4.1 See Exhibits 3.1 3.2 and 3.3 for provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of

Weatherford International Ltd defining the rights of holders of common shares

4.2 Certificate of Assistant Secretary as to the adoption of resolution increasing authorized share capital

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-31339 filed May 15 2006
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Exhibit

Number Description

4.3 Guarantee dated as of October 25 2005 of Weatherford International Inc for the benefit of holders of

any notes issued by Weatherford International Ltd from time to time pursuant to the Issuing and Paying

Agent Agreement dated as of October 25 2005 between Weatherford International Ltd Weatherford

International Inc and JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October 31 2005

4.4 Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of May 2006 among Weatherford

International Ltd Weatherford International Inc Weatherford Liquidity Management Hungary

Limited Liability Company JPMorgan Chase Bank as Administrative Agent and the other Lenders

party thereto incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-31339 filed May 2006

4.5 Notice of Commitment Increase dated as of November 14 2006 among Weatherford International Ltd

Weatherford International Inc Weatherford Liquidity Management Hungary Limited Liability

Company JPMorgan Chase Bank as Administrative Agent and the other Lenders party thereto

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No

1-31339 filed November 16 2006

4.6 Omnibus Consent and Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated January

2009 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File

No 1-31339 filed January 15 2009

4.7 Credit Agreement dated March 19 2008 among Weatherford International Ltd as borrower

Weatherford International Inc as guarantor and Deutsche Bank AG Cayman Islands Branch as

administrative agent and the other lenders party thereto incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed March 25 2008

4.8 Omnibus Consent and Amendment to Credit Agreement dated January 2009 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed

January 15 2009

4.9 Indenture dated May 17 1996 between Weatherford Enterra Inc and Bank of Montreal Trust

Company as Trustee incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Weatherford Enterra Inc.s

Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-7867 filed May 31 1996

4.10 Third Supplemental Indenture dated November 16 2001 between Weatherford International Inc and

The Bank of New York as Trustee incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to the Registration

Statement on Form S-3 Reg No 333-73770 filed November 20 2001

4.11 Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated June 26 2002 among Weatherford International Inc

Weatherford International Ltd and The Bank of New York as successor in interest to Bank of

Montreal Trust Company incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Registrants Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2002 File No 1-13086 filed August 14 2002

4.12 Indenture dated October 2003 among Weatherford International Ltd Weatherford International

Inc and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October 2003

4.13 Officers Certificate dated as of February 17 2006 establishing the series of 5.50% Senior Notes due

2016 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No

001-31339 filed February 17 2006

4.14 Officers Certificate dated August 2006 establishing the series of 6.50% Senior Notes due 2036

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-31339 filed August 2006

4.15 First Supplemental Indenture dated March 25 2008 among Weatherford International Ltd

Weatherford International Inc and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed

March 25 2008

4.16 Indenture dated June 18 2007 among the Weatherford Delaware as issuer Weatherford Bermuda as

guarantor and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas as trustee incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed on June 18 2007
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Exhibit

Number Description

4.17 First Supplemental Indenture dated June 18 2007 among the Weatherford Delaware as issuer

Weatherford Bermuda as guarantor and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas as trustee

including forms of notes incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed on June 18 2007
4.18 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 2009 among Weatherford International Ltd

Weatherford International Inc and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed

January 2009

4.19 Form of global note for 5.95% Senior Notes due 2012 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.15 to the

Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-4 Registration No 333-146695 filed November

2007

4.20 Form of global note for 5.15% Senior Notes due 2013 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed March 25 2008

4.21 Form of global note for 4.95% Senior Notes due 2013 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October 2003
4.22 Form of global note for 5.50% Senior Notes due 2016 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 001-3 1339 filed February 17 2006
4.23 Form of global note for 6.00% Senior Notes due 2018 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed March 25 2008
4.24 Form of global note for 9.625% Senior Notes due 2019 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed January 2009
4.25 Form of $500000 Global note for 6.50% Senior Notes due 2036 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

4.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed August 2006
4.26 Form of $100000 Global note for 6.50% Senior Notes due 2036 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

4.3 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed August 2006
4.27 Form of global note for 6.80% Senior Notes due 2037 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.17 to the

Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-4 Registration No 333-146695 filed November

2007

4.28 Form of global note for 7.00% Senior Notes due 2038 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed March 25 2008
4.29 Form of global note for 9.875% Senior Notes due 2039 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed January 2009

4.30 Amended and Restated Warrant Agreement dated effective as of July 12 2006 by and among
Weatherford International Ltd Weatherford International Inc and Shell Technology Ventures Inc

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-3 1339 filed July 14 2006

4.31 Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 26 2009 among Weatherford International Inc
Delaware corporation Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company Weatherford

International Ltd Swiss joint stock corporation and The Bank of New York as successor trustee to

the Indenture dated as of May 17 1996 the 1996 Indenture incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1

to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

4.32 Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 26 2009 among Weatherford International Ltd
Bermuda exempted company Weatherford International Inc Delaware corporation Weatherford

International Ltd Swiss joint stock corporation and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas as

trustee to the Indenture dated as of October 2003 the 2003 Indenture incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26
2009

AR-93



Exhibit

Number Description

4.33 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 26 2009 among Weatherford International Inc

Delaware corporation Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company Weatherford

International Ltd Swiss joint stock corporation and Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas as

trustee to the Indenture dated as of June 18 2007 the 2007 Indenture incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 262009

4.34 Opinion of Baker McKenzie Geneva relating to the guarantees
of Weatherford International Ltd

Swiss joint stock corporation with respect to the 9.625% Senior Notes due 2019 and 9.875% Senior

Notes due 2039 issued by Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company under the

2003 Indenture incorporated by reference to Exhibit 5.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-

File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

4.35 Opinion of Andrews Kurth relating to the guarantees of Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint

stock corporation with respect to the 9.625% Senior Notes due 2019 and 9.875% Senior Notes due

2039 issued by Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company under the 2003

Indenture incorporated by reference to Exhibit 5.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

4.36 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of July 27 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Novy Investments Limited incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed July 27 2009

4.37 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of September 16 2009 between Weatherford International

Ltd and Integrity Energy International LLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed September 17 2009

10.1 Issuing and Paying Agent Agreement dated as of October 25 2005 among Weatherford International

Ltd Weatherford International Inc and JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed

October 31 2005

10.2 Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement dated as of October 25 2005 among Weatherford International

Ltd Weatherford International Inc and J.P Morgan Securities Inc incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October 31 2005

10.3 Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement dated as of October 25 2005 among Weatherford International

Ltd Weatherford International Inc and Goldman Sachs Co incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October 31 2005

10.4 Commercial Paper Dealer Agreement dated as of October 25 2005 among Weatherford International

Ltd Weatherford International Inc and Merrill Lynch Money Markets Inc for notes with maturities

up to 270 days and Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith Incorporated for notes with maturities over

270 days up to 397 days incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report

on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October 31 2005

10.5 Weatherford International Ltd Restricted Share Plan including form of agreement for officers and non-

officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Amendment No to the Registrants Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31 2004 on Form 10-Q/A File No 1-3 1339 filed

September 15 2004

10.6 Trust under Weatherford International Ltd Nonqualified Executive Retirement Plan dated March 23

2004 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for

the quarter ended March 31 2004 File No 1-3 1339 filed May 2004

10.7 Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 1995

File No 1-13086 filed August 12 1995

10.8 General Amendment of Employee Stock Option Programs of Weatherford International Inc dated

May 2003 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form

10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2003 File No 1-3 1339 filed August 14 2003

10.9 General Amendment of Directors Stock Option Plans and Agreements dated May 2003

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for

the quarter ended June 30 2003 File No 1-31339 filed August 14 2003
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.10 Weatherford International Inc 1998 Employee Stock Option Plan as amended including form of

agreement for officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2003 File No 1-13086 filed March 24 2004

10.11 Amendment to Stock Option Programs incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.19 to the Registrants

Registration Statement on Form S-8 Reg No 333-36598 filed May 19 2000

10.12 Indemnification Agreement dated as of September 29 2005 between Weatherford International Ltd

and Andrew Becnel incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October 2005

10.13 Indemnification Agreements with Robert Moses Jr incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to

Weatherford Enterra Inc.s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1987 File

No 1-7867 and William Macaulay incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Weatherford

Enterra Inc.s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 1995

File No 1-7867

10.14 Indemnification Agreements with each of Bernard Duroc-Danner Burt Martin Stuart

Ferguson David Butters Robert Rayne Robert Moses Jr Robert Millard and William

Macaulay incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form

10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2002 File No 1-13086 filed November 13 2002

10.15 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Non-Employee Directors dated September 1998 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 1998 File No 1-13086 filed March 31 1999

10.16 Form of Amendment to Stock Option Agreements dated September 1998 for Non-Employee

Directors incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.17 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8

Reg No 333-36598 filed May 2000

10.17 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Non-employee Directors dated July 2000 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 4.16 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 Reg No 333-48322 filed October

20 2000

10.18 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Non-employee Directors dated September 26 2001 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 4.19 to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 Reg No 333-8 1678 filed

January 30 2002

10.19 Assumption and General Amendment of Directors Stock Option and Benefit Programs and General

Amendment of Employee Stock Option and Benefit Programs of Weatherford International Inc dated

June 26 2002 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form

10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2002 File No 1-13086 filed August 14 2002

10.20 Indemnification Agreement dated October 27 2006 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Jessica Abarca incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed October 27 2006

10.21 Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement for Officers pursuant to Weatherford International

Ltd 2006 Omnibus Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 312006 File No 1-31339 filed February

23 2007

10.22 Form of Stock Option Award Agreement for Officers pursuant to Weatherford International Ltd 2006

Omnibus Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to the Registrants Annual Report

on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2006 File No 1-31339 filed February 23 2007

10.23 Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement for Non-employee Directors pursuant to Weatherford

International Ltd 2006 Omnibus Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.47 to the

Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2006 File No 1-31339

filed February 23 2007

10.24 Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement for Officers pursuant to Weatherford International Ltd

2006 Omnibus Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.48 to the Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2006 File No 1-31339 filed February 23

2007
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.25 Form of Stock Option Award Agreement for Non-Employee Directors pursuant to Weatherford

International Ltd 2006 Omnibus Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.49 to the

Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2006

File No 1-31339 filed February 23 2007

10.26 Indemnification Agreement dated as of June 11 2007 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Keith Morley incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed June 11 2007

10.27 Amended and Restated Employment Agreements dated December 31 2008 between Weatherford

International Ltd and each of Jessica Abarca Andrew Becnel David Colley

Bernard Duroc-Danner Stuart Ferguson Burt Martin and Keith Morley incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed

December 31 2008

10.28 Employment Agreements effective as of January 2009 between Weatherford International Inc and

each of Jessica Abarca Andrew Becnel David Colley Bernard Duroc-Danner Stuart

Ferguson Burt Martin and Keith Morley incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.29 Weatherford International Inc Executive Deferred Compensation Stock Ownership Plan as amended

and restated as of December 31 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.30 Weatherford International Inc Foreign Executive Deferred Compensation Stock Plan as amended and

restated as of December 31 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.31 Weatherford International Ltd Non-Employee Director Deferred Compensation as amended and

restated as of December 31 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Current

Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.32 Weatherford International Ltd Non-Employee Director Retirement Plan as amended and restated as of

December 31 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.33 Weatherford Management Incentive Plan including Form of Award Letter as amended and restated as

of December 31 2008 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.34 Amended and Restated Weatherford International Ltd Nonqualified Executive Retirement Plan

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File

No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.35 Weatherford International Inc Supplemental Retirement Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.9 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.36 Weatherford International Ltd 2006 Omnibus Incentive Plan as amended incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-31339 filed December 31 2008

10.37 Amendment to Weatherford International Inc 1998 Employee Stock Option Plan incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-3 1339 filed

December 31 2008

10.38 Amendment to Weatherford International Ltd Non-Employee Director Stock Option Agreements

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-3 1339 filed December 31 2008

10.39 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated December 31 2008 between Weatherford

International Ltd and Carel Hoyer incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-31339 filed February

24 2009

10.40 Employment Agreement dated February 2009 between Weatherford International Inc and Carel

Hoyer incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-31339 filed February 24 2009
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.41 Indemnification Agreement dated as of February 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Care Hoyer incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to the Registrants Annual Report on Form

10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-31339 filed February 24 2009

10.42 Indemnification Agreement dated as of February 2009 between Weatherford International Inc and

Care Hoyer incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to the Registrants Annua Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-31339 filed February 24 2009

10.43 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated December 31 2008 between Weatherford

International Ltd and James Hudgins incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.43 to the Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-31339 filed February

24 2009

10.44 Employment Agreement dated February 2009 between Weatherford International Inc and James

Hudgins incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-31339 filed February 24 2009

10.45 Indemnification Agreement dated as of September 2002 between Weatherford International Ltd

and James Hudgins incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-31339 filed February 24 2009

10.46 Indemnification Agreement dated as of September 2002 between Weatherford International Inc

and James Hudgins incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to the Registrants Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2008 File No 1-31339 filed February 24 2009

10.47 Warrant Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated February 26 2009 between Weatherford

International Ltd Bermuda exempted company and Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint

stock corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form

8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

10.48 Guaranty Agreement dated as of February 26 2009 by Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint

stock corporation in favor of the lenders and certain other parties under the Second Amended and

Restated Credit Agreement dated as of May 2006 among Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda

exempted company Weatherford International Inc Weatherford Liquidity Management Hungary

Limited Liability Company JPMorgan Chase Bank as Administrative Agent and the other Lenders

party thereto incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

10.49 Guaranty Agreement dated as of February 26 2009 by Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint

stock corporation in favor of the lenders and certain other parties under the Credit Agreement dated as

of March 19 2008 among Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company Weatherford

International Inc Deutsche Bank AG Cayman Islands Branch as Administrative Agent and the other

Lenders party thereto incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

10.50 Guaranty Agreement dated as of February 26 2009 by Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint

stock corporation in favor of the lenders and certain other parties under the Credit Agreement dated as

of October 20 2008 among Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted company
Weatherford International Inc UBS AG Stamford Branch as Administrative Agent and the other

Lenders party thereto incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

10.51 Assumption and General Amendment Agreement dated February 25 2009 between Weatherford

International Ltd Bermuda exempted company and Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint

stock corporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Current Report on Form

8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

10.52 Form of Indemnification Agreement of Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint stock corporation

for use with directors and executive officers incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed February 26 2009

10.53 Employment Agreement dated as of June 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and Joseph

Henry incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-34258 filed June 2009
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.54 Employment Agreement dated as of June 2009 between Weatherford International Inc and Joseph

Henry incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-34258 filed June 2009

10.55 Indenmification Agreement dated as of February 262009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Joseph Henry incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on Form

8-K File No 1-34258 filed June 2009

10.56 Employment Agreement dated as of March 30 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

William Jacobson incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed June 2009

10.57 Employment Agreement dated as of March 30 2009 between Weatherford International Inc and

William Jacobson incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed June 2009

10.58 Indemnification Agreement dated as of March 30 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

William Jacobson incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed June 2009

10.59 Employment Agreement dated as of July 21 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and Peter

Fontana incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-34258 filed July 22 2009

10.60 Employment Agreement dated as of July 21 2009 between Weatherford International Inc and Peter

Fontana incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K

File No 1-34258 filed July 22 2009

10.61 Indemnification Agreement dated as of July 21 2009 between Weatherford International Ltd and

Peter Fontana incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on Form

8-K File No 1-34258 filed July 22 2009

10.62 Form of Employment Agreement between Weatherford International Ltd and each of Jessica Abarca

Andrew Becnel David Colley Bernard Duroc-Danner Stuart Ferguson William Jacobson

and Keith Morley incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed December 31 2009

10.63 Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan effective as of January 2010 between Weatherford

International Ltd and each of Jessica Abarca Andrew Becnel David Colley Bernard

Duroc-Danner Stuart Ferguson and Keith Morley incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2

to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K File No 1-34258 filed December 31 2009

1.1 Subsidiaries of Weatherford International Ltd

t23.1 Consent of Ernst Young LLP

1.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

t3 1.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

t32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101 The following materials from Weatherford International Ltd.s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year
ended December 31 2009 formatted in XBRL Extensible Business reporting Language the

Consolidated Balance Sheets ii the Consolidated Statements of Income iii the Consolidated

Statement of Cash Flows iv the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and the notes

to the consolidated financial statements tagged as blocks of text

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

Furnished with this Form 10-K

Filed herewith
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As permitted by Item 601 b4iiiA of Regulation S-K the Company has not filed with this Annual Report

on Form 10-K certain instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Company and its

subsidiaries because the total amount of securities authorized under any of such instruments does not exceed 10% of

the total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on consolidated basis We will furnish copy of any of such

instruments to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request

We will furnish to any requesting stockholder copy of any of the above named exhibits upon the payment of

our reasonable expenses
of obtaining duplicating and mailing the requested exhibits All requests for copies of

exhibits should be made in writing to our U.S Investor Relations Department at 515 Post Oak Blvd Houston TX

77027

Financial Statement Schedules

Valuation and qualifying accounts and allowances

SCHEDULE II

WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND ALLOWANCES
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2009

Additions

Balance at Charged to Balance at

Beginning Costs and End of

Description of Period Expenses Collections Deductions Period

In thousands

Year Ended December 31 2009

Allowance for uncollectible

accounts receivable $16425 $11328 28 $7315 $20466

Year Ended December 31 2008

Allowance for uncollectible

accounts receivable 13760 5970 4975 8280 16425

Year Ended December 31 2007

Allowance for uncollectible

accounts receivable 13452 6984 523 7199 13760

All other schedules are omitted because they are not required or because the information is included in the

financial statements or the related notes
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Registrant has

duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized in the City of

Houston State of Texas on March 2010

WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

Bernard Duroc-Danner

President Chief Executive Officer

Chairman of the Board and Director

Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this Report has been signed by the

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signatures Title

Is Bernard Duroc-Danner

Bernard Duroc-Danner

Is Andrew Becnel

Andrew Becnel

Is Jessica Abarca

Jessica Abarca

Is Nicholas Brady

Nicholas Brady

Is David Butters

David Butters

Is William Macaulay

William Macaulay

Is Robert Millard

Robert Millard

Is Robert Moses Jr

Robert Moses Jr

President Chief Executive Officer Chairman

of the Board and Director

Principal Executive Officer

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer

Principal Financial Officer

Vice President Accounting and Chief

Accounting Officer

Principal Accounting Officer

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

March 2010

March 2010

March 2010

March 2010

March 2010

March 2010

March 2010

March 2010

Is Robert Rayne

Robert Rayne

Director March 2010

By Is Bernard Duroc-Danner

Date
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Statutory Financial Statements

Weatherford International Ltd

For the period November 26 2008 inception to December 31 2009



Ernst Young Ltd

Bleicherweg 21

CH-8002 Zurich

Phone 41 582863111

Fax 41 58 286 30 04

www.ey.comlch

To the General Meeting of

Weatherford International Ltd Zug

Zurich March 2010

Report of the statutory auditor on the financial statements

As statutory auditor we have audited the financial statements of Weatherford International Ltd which comprise the

balance sheet statement of income and notes pages SR-2 to SR-b for the period from November 26 2008 to

December 31 2009

Board of Directors responsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the

requirements of Swiss law and the companys articles of incorporation This responsibility includes designing imple

menting and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the preparation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement whether due to fraud or error The Board of Directors is further responsible for selecting and

applying appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances

Auditors responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit

in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments the auditor

considers the internal control systemrelevant to the entitys preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the entitys internal control system An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our

audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements for the period from November 26 2008 until December 31 2009 comply
with Swiss law and the companys articles of incorporation

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Over-sight Act AOA and

independence article 728 Code of Obligations CO and article 11 AOA and that there are no circumstances

incompatible with our independence

In accordance with article 728a paragraph item CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890 we confirm that an internal

control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of financial statements according to the instructions of

the Board of Directors

We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved

Ernst Young Ltd

Is Robin Errico Is Rico Fehr

Licensed audit expert Licensed audit expert

Auditor in charge
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

BALANCE SHEET

December 31
2009

In CHF thousands

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
106

Other Current Assets
509

Total Current Assets
615

Leasehold Improvements and Other 1938

Intangible Assets 7792

Investment in Affiliates 8532414

Total Assets 8542759

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accrued Expenses 3807

Total Current Liabilities 3807

Due to Affiliates 38500

Other Liabilities 8439

Total Long-Term Liabilities 46939

Shareholders Equity

Share Capital
879798

Legal Reserve 7646851

Reserve for Treasury Shares 100

Retained Earnings 34736

Total Shareholders Equity 8492013

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity 8542759

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statutory financial statements
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

STATEMENT OF INCOME
Period from November 26 2008 Inception to December 31 2009

In CHF thousands

Income

Costs and Expenses

Management Fee 21735

General and Administrative Expenses 13001

34736

Loss Before Income Taxes 34736

Benefit for Income Taxes

Net Loss 34736

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statutory financial statements
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General

On February 25 2009 Weatherford International Ltd Swiss joint stock corporation the Company our
we Weatherford and Weatherford Switzerland and Weatherford International Ltd Bermuda exempted

company Weatherford Bermuda completed share exchange transaction under the terms of share exchange

agreement dated as of December 10 2008 effected by way of scheme of arrangement under Bermuda law for

purposes of changing the Companys place of incorporation from Bermuda to Switzerland collectively the

Transaction Pursuant to the Transaction each common share par value U.S $1.00 per share of Weatherford

Bermuda was exchanged for one registered share par value 1.16 Swiss francs CHF per share of Weatherford

Switzerland

Also the Company will now be required to prepare and have audited Swiss statutory consolidated accounts in

compliance with Swiss law for the first time in 2009

While the standalone statutory financial statements are presented from the period of inception the statutory

consolidated financial statements cover the period from January to December 31 This is deemed appropriate

because it provides the best view about the development of the business in 2009 to the shareholders and it reflects

the fact that the Company has been operating as group long before the redomestication From group perspective

the Transaction only changes the legal headquarters of the Company

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with the provisions of Swiss law

Exchange Rate Differences

The Company keeps its accounting records in U.S Dollars and translates them into Swiss Francs CHF for

statutory reporting purposes Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into CHF using

the year-end rates of exchange except investments in affiliates and the Companys equity other than current-year

transactions which are translated at historical rates Income statement transactions are translated into CHF at the

average rate of the year Exchange differences arising from business transactions are recorded in the income

statement except for net unrealized gains which are deferred and recorded in other current liabilities

Financial Assets

Investments in affiliates are valued at acquisition cost less adjustments for impairment of value
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Investment in Affiliates

The Companys principal investments in affiliates include

Equity

Interest

Name of Legal Entity Domicile

PD International Leasing Inc Barbados 100%

Key International Drilling Company Limited Bermuda 100%

Weatherford Bermuda Holdings Ltd Bermuda 100%

Weatherford International Limited Bermuda 100%

Weatherford Industria Comercio Ltda Brazil 100%

Weatherford Drilling International BVI Ltd British Virgin Islands 100%

Weatherford Holdings BVI Ltd British Virgin Islands 100%

Weatherford Oil Tool Middle East Limited British Virgin Islands 100%

Weatherford Canada Partnership Canada 100%

Weatherford Global Products Limited Cyprus 100%

Weatherford Oil Tool GmbH Germany 100%

Weatherford Hong Kong Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100%

Weatherford European Holdings Luxembourg Sarl Luxembourg 100%

Weatherford Luxembourg S.a.r.l Luxembourg 100%

PD Oilfield Services Mexicana de R.L de C.V Mexico 100%

Weatherford de Mexico S.de R.L C.V Mexico 100%

Al-Shaheen Well Services Company Qatar 50%

WFT Technologies LLC Russia 100%

Weatherford Asia Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore 100%

Weatherford Holdings Singapore Pte Ltd Singapore 100%

Weatherford Worldwide Holdings GmbH1 Switzerland 100%

Weatherford U.K Limited U.K 100%

ILl Acquisition Corp U.S 100%

Precision Energy Services Inc U.S 100%

Precision Oilfield Services LLP U.S 100%

Weatherford Artificial Lift Systems Inc U.S 100%

Weatherford International Inc U.S 100%

Weatherford U.S Holdings L.L.C U.S 100%

WEUS Holding Inc U.S 100%

Precision Drilling de Venezuela C.A Venezuela 100%

Weatherford Worldwide Holdings GmbH is directly owned by the Company

Intangible Assets

The Company entered into an agreement with service provider during 2009 to provide certain administrative

support In connection with this agreement the Company was granted license to certain intellectual property of the

service provider The Company will be required to pay CHF million to the service provider for this license The

license will be amortized over the life of the contract which is eight years
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Shareholders Equity

Reserve for Total

Share Legal Treasury Retained Shareholders

Shares Amount Reserve Shares2 Earnings Equity

In CHF thousands except share data

Balance at November 26 2008

inception 10000000 100 100

Change in Par Value 9913794

Shares Issued to Weatherford International

Ltd Bermuda shareholders in

Redomestication 697802003 845388 7070809 100 7916297

Shares issued to Weatherford Bermuda

Holdings Ltd.1 28053693

Shares issued to Weatherford International

Inc.1 2926729

Shares Issued for business

acquisitions3 29578006 34310 576042 610352

Net Loss 34736 34736

Balance at December 31 2009 758446637 879798 7646851 100 34736 8492013

Shares issued to Weatherford International Inc WIT and Weatherford Bermuda Holdings Limited

WBHL to satisfy obligations of the Company to deliver shares under share-based compensation incentive

plans warrants or other rights to acquire shares of the Company These shares are held by WIT and WBHL
solely for transfer to the Company and do not carry any value in treasury share reserve as they were issued by the

Company in the Redomestication Transaction for no value

The reserve for treasury shares represents the cost of treasury shares held by WBHL on behalf of the Company

which were originally issued for CHF 100000 at formation of the Company and were transferred to the

Company as part of the Redomestication Transaction

See Note and Note 13 regarding shares issued for acquisitions

The Company has 334856309 shares authorized and 364434315 conditional shares The Companys articles

of association provide for authorized and conditional capital that allows the Board of Directors to authorize the

issuance of additional registered shares up to maximum amount of 50% of the share capital registered in the

commercial register without obtaining additional shareholder approval

Treasury Shares

For the period from November 26 2008 Inception Date to December 31 2009 the number of treasury shares

held by our subsidiaries and their movements are as follows in thousands

Balance as of November 26 2008

Redomestication shares 31066

Shares issued in acquisition 5398

Equity awards granted vested and exercised 5134

Balance as of December 31 2009 20534

The treasury shares issued for acquisitions were valued at CHF 113 million on the acquisition date In addition

the proceeds of the treasury share transfers in connection with exercises of options amounted to CHF million The

transfer of treasury shares under our restricted share plans was at book value
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Excluded from our treasury share balance are 8.3 million shares for restricted share awards outstanding which

have restrictions that have not lapsed

Significant Shareholders

This table shows information for each person known by us whose participation exceeds 5% of the Companys

shares as of December 31 2009

Name Number of Shares1 Percent of Shares2

ClearBridge Advisors LLC3 50106539 6.8%

FMR LLC4 54939304 7.4%

The number of shares is based on information contained in Schedule 13G filed with the SEC

The percentage indicated is based on the Companys 737912637 issued and outstanding shares as of

December 31 2009

The beneficial owner has sole voting power over 41766153 shares and sole dispositive power over all shares

The beneficial owner has sole voting power over 4331373 shares and sole dispositive power over all shares

Board of Directors Compensation

The following table sets forth the compensation for each of our non-employee directors for the year ended

December 31 2009 Mr Duroc-Danner was an executive officer and director in 2009 and his compensation is

included in the Executive Management Compensation footnote We do not compensate Mr Duroc-Danner for his

service on the Board

Fees Paid in Share-Based Total

Name Function Cash1 Compensation2 Compensation

In CHF thousands

David Butters35 Presiding Director and 235 192 427

Chairman of the Corporate

Governance and Nominating

Committee

Nicholas BradyS 102 192 294

William Macaulay45 117 192 309

Robert Millard4 Chairman of the 127 192 319

Compensation

Committee

Robert Moses Jr.34 202 192 394

Robert Rayne35 Chairman of the Audit 209 192 401

Committee

Total 992 1152 2144

Fees Paid in Cash represent payments from January 2009 to December 31 2009 for retainers and meeting

attendance

Each non-employee director was awarded 9200 restricted share units on September 2009 The value above

represents the fair value on the date of grant which was based on the Companys closing share price on that day

Members of the Audit Committee

Members of the Compensation Committee

Members of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

Executive Management Compensation

The following table sets forth the compensation awarded to our executive management team for the
year

ended

December 31 2009 For the current members of the executive management team see Note 10 Mr Duroc-Danner

was the highest paid current executive management team member in 2009 and is shown separately in the table in

addition to being included in the total

Total for Executive Total for Highest

Type of Compensation Management Team1 Paid Member

In CHF thousands

Salary 8050 1781

Discretionary bonuses 4990 2032

Share-based awards2 30945 11492

Benefit plan/deferred compensation plan contributions 344 11

Severance pay3 13207

Other4 1472 276

Total 59008 15592

Included in the executive management team total are five new vice presidents all promoted during 2009 see

Share Ownership footnote for specific dates The compensation included for each of the new vice presidents

consists of the total compensation paid during the
year including the time period prior to their appointment as an

executive management team member

Share-based awards were granted to executive management on various days within the year and vest over the

next five years The value above is an accumulation of the grant date fair value of each of those awards The

grant date fair value of each of the awards was based on the Companys closing stock price on the date of grant

In June 2009 Burt Martin Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary left the Company This

payment represents the lump sum equivalent of his pension plan benefit which was paid in December 2009

Other includes car allowance life insurance premiumsclub dues relocation pay expatriate benefits employer

healthcare Medicare and social security costs
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

10 Share Ownership Board of Directors and Executive Management

The following table shows the number of participations in the Company as well as conversion and option rights

of each member of the Board of Directors Executive Management and any person
considered close to each such

member as of December 31 2009

Chairman of the Board

President and Chief Executive

Officer

Senior Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer

Senior Vice President Reservoir

Production and Chief

Technology Officer

Senior Vice President Well

Construction Operations Support

Vice President Accounting and

Chief Accounting Officer

Vice President Artificial Lift

Global Business Unit

Vice President Western

Hemisphere since July 2009

Vice President and Co-General

Counsel since June 2009

Vice President Well

Construction Services since

February 2009

Vice President Tax since

February 2009

Vice President Co-General Counsel

and Chief Compliance Officer since

June 2009

218988 17200 302400

753732 17200 854528

680730 17200 854528

549264 17200

143116 17200 480000

Mr Rayne serves as Chief Executive Officer and director of LMS Capital plc which beneficially owns

2050000 shares Mr Rayne disclaims beneficial ownership of all of the shares beneficially owned by LMS

Capital plc

11 Risk Assessment Disclosure

Weatherford International Ltd as the ultimate parent company of the Weatherford group of affiliates is fully

integrated into the Company-wide internal risk assessment process

Function

Member of the Board

Presiding Director Committee

Chairman and Member of the

Board

Member of the Board

Committee Chairman and Member

of the Board

Member of the Board

Committee Chairman and Member

of the Board

Name

Non-employee Board

of Directors

Nicholas Brady

David Butters

William Macaulay

Robert Millard

Robert Moses Jr

Robert Raynel

Executives

Bernard Duroc

Danner

Andrew Becnel

Stuart Ferguson

Keith Morley

Jessica Abarca

David Colley

Peter Fontana

Joseph Henry

Card Hoyer

James Hudgins

William Jacobson

Amount and Nature of Shares Beneficially Owned

Direct Includes Unvested Deferred

401k Shares Restricted Exercisable Unexercisable Compensation

Held Shares/Units Options Options Plan Holdings Grand Total

862064 17200 5679 884943

62831 601419

10710 1636170

8798 1561256

11441 577905

21767 662083

1310652 920680 1862002 336650 386292 4816276

206098 304766 680000 120000 45421 1356285

135358 213620 100000 46071 495049

156930 159744 400000 43413 760087

92191 123382 60000 60000 27266 362839

138398 84831 59315 282544

92084 127500 5478 225062

28315 86760 38000 16772 169847

74730 92000 11778 178508

58252 47333 49302 154887

103380 103380
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WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LTD

NOTES TO STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Continued

The Company-wide internal risk assessment process
consists of regular reporting to the Board of Directors on

identified risks and managements reaction to them The procedures and actions to identify the risks and where

appropriate remediate are performed by specific corporate functions e.g Treasury Legal Internal Audit

Engineering and Operations as well as by the business units of the Company

These functions and business units have the responsibility to support and monitor the Company-wide

procedures and processes to ensure their effective operation

12 Guarantees and Commitments

Weatherford International Ltd as the ultimate parent company of the Weatherford group guarantees the

obligations of Weatherford Bermuda and Weatherford International Inc The guaranteed debt includes certain

short-term commercial paper notes revolving credit facilities and debentures totaling approximately CHF

6.9 billion at December 31 2009 Footnotes and 10 in the Companys consolidated financial statements contain

more detailed information on the underlying debt guaranteed by the Company

13 Acquisitions

In July 2009 the Company completed its acquisition of the Oilfield Services Division OFS of TNK-BP In

this transaction the Company acquired ten oilfield services companies providing drilling well workover and

cementing services operating in West Siberia East Siberia and the Volga-Urals region The Company issued

24.3 million shares valued at CHF 490 million in connection with this acquisition In addition if TNK-BP sells its

shares in the Company for price less than $18.50 per share prior to June 292010 the Company is obligated to pay

TNK-BP additional consideration in an amount equal to the difference between the price at which the shares were

sold and $18.50 The Company will pay any additional consideration in cash or at the Companys option in certain

instances in additional shares following such date

During 2009 the Company issued 30 million conimon shares valued at CHF 610 million as consideration for

business acquisitions which includes the TNK-OFS acquisition In addition subsidiary of the Company issued

five million shares out of treasury valued at CHF 113 million in consideration for business acquisitions

14 Related Party Transactions

subsidiary of the Company Weatherford U.S L.P WUSLP performs general and administrative

functions and provides oversight management services to most Weatherford entities WUSLP personnel duties

include but are not limited to marketing tax treasury risk management real estate human resources information

technology and legal services

The Company was charged management fee by WUSLP in consideration for these duties during 2009 These

charges included costs incurred on the Companys behalf for executive salaries board of director fees financial

statement audit fees internal audit costs and investor relations costs In addition the Company was allocated

percentage of various other functional expenses including legal financial reporting tax and treasury activities

15 Insurance

The Company maintains insurance policies covering the property equipment and leasehold improvements of

the Weatherford group of affiliates The value of the coverage
is at replacement cost which is in excess of the book

value of Weatherfords consolidated property plant and equipment balance at December 31 2009

16 Personnel Expenses

Consolidated personnel expenses for the Weatherford group of affiliates for the year ended December 31 2009

was approximately CHF 2736 million
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